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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
HEEPIXKE

TREASURER’S REPORT

S EHE

Overview

The financial year 2010/11 was a very challenging year.
The financial stress in the US market, coupled with
the Eurozone debt crisis, has brought difficulties and
uncertainties to the global financial system. The general
sentiment is that economic outlook for the near future is
grim and it is forecast that significant improvement may
only be possible beyond the next twelve months. While
the downside risk of the local economy continued to
increase, Hong Kong has remained fairly robust but the
advance of inflation will pose considerable problem.

Against this unfavourable financial climate, | am pleased
to report that the University has further strengthened its
financial position with net assets reaching almost $11
billion at the end of the financial year 2011, representing
an increase of 12% over 2010. All categories of
income, both government and non-government funded
activities, recorded increases (except for donations and
benefactions as all donations raised under the Fifth
Matching Grant Scheme were accounted for in 2010).
The overall annual surplus rose to $1,149 million in
2011, comprising $59 million for recurrent government
funds, $201 million for UGC Matching Fund and $889
million for non-government funds. A major part of the
surplus of non-government funds was reserved to
support the setting up of endowment funds and the
construction of new colleges as well as consequential
spatial re-organisation works.

Financial Analysis

The financial statements reflect the total income and
expenditure for both recurrent and non-recurrent
activities funded by government or supported by other
non-government funds. The tables and charts on pages
6 to 8 provide additional information and analysis of the
financial results of the University by different categories
and sources of funding. Comments and highlights in the
following sections refer to the operating results of the
University (including two newly-established Colleges),
whereas consolidated financial statements have also
been prepared which include the operating results and
financial positions of the four constituent Colleges.

Operating Results and Financial Position
Income

The total income in 2011 increased by 10% from $5,773
million to $6,336 million, mainly due to the increase
in government subventions and returns from buoyant
investment markets.
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Government Subventions, including Block Grants,
Supplementary Grants, Earmarked Grants, Capital
Grants and Grants from Government Agencies,
increased by $392 million or 14% to $3,267 million,
mainly attributable to the receipts of matching grants
under the Fifth Matching Grant Scheme launched by
the University Grants Committee (UGC) in 2010 and
the supplementary grants for pay adjustments.

Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees Income continued
its growth trend and reached $1,436 million in 2011,
representing a rise of $100 million over the 2010 figure.
The fee income from non-UGC funded programmes
accounted for 55% of the total fee income as these
programmes charged a relatively higher tuition fee than
UGC-funded programmes.

Expenditure

The total expenditure recorded a small increase of 4%
from $4,985 million to $5,187 million, partially caused
by the upward revision of pay adjustments.

Expenditure on Learning and Research amounted to
$4,215 million, which accounted for 81% of the total
expenditure and continued to be the largest area of
the University’s investment. Spending on Central
Computing Facilities declined by 22% in 2011, as the
investment in the implementation of a student-oriented
IT system was largely completed in 2010. Expenditure
on Institutional Support was contained at a modest level
and represented 19% of the total expenditure.

Operating Results

The University has been drawing down its reserves
and incurred annual deficits for the past four years
in activities funded by recurrent government grants
in support of its pursuit of scholarship advancement,
development of quality education and capacity building
for the implementation of the four-year normative
curriculum. With additional government preparatory
funds for the new curriculum and the heightened
cost-saving awareness of departments and units in
general, the University was able to turn around the
deficit of $77 million in the recurrent government funds
sector to a surplus of $59 million in 2011. For the non-
recurrent government funds, an unspent balance of
$201 million was transferred to UGC Matching Grant
Fund. In addition, non-government funded activities
continue to report favourable operating results and
a sizeable surplus of $889 million was achieved,
attributable to good investment returns which made
up for the reduction in donations as all donations
raised under the Fifth Matching Grant Scheme were
recorded in the previous year. The unspent balance
in the non-government funds was set aside to cover
future expenditure on the projects of the respective
restricted funds.
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Balance Sheet Position

Riding on the favourable operating results, total net
assets grew by $1,149 million to $10,915 million
during the year. Cash and Short-term Deposits slightly
increased by 3% to $3,727 million. Increase in capital
allotted for long-term investments from the rising surplus
from non-government funded activities, together with
favourable investment returns, brought about a growth
in the total value of investments by 14%, from $5,894
million to $6,709 million.

The aggregate amount of Deferred Income declined
by 17% to $562 million, as a result of drawing down
the government funds earmarked for specific purpose
activities, such as research and capital projects.

The net book value of fixed assets recorded an increase
of 18% to $4,409 millionin 2011. For items acquired by
government funds with conditions attached or donations
with a specific purpose, the balance of their aggregate
net book values was treated as Deferred Capital Fund.
The total amount set aside under this category rose
proportionately to $2,390 million.

The General and Development Reserve Fund increased
to $1,109 million after the transfer of surplus of $59
million from recurrent government funds.

Research Activities

In addition to recurring grants from the UGC covering
maintenance costs of infrastructure for general research
activities, the University has also secured substantial
funding through different sources to support specific
research projects. In 2011, total grants of $183 million
were received from UGC and its Research Grants
Council. Another $373 million of research funds came
from the private sector and other sources in the form
of sponsorship or donation.

Donations and Benefactions

Donations received in 2011 amounted to $386 million.
The University is truly grateful to the alumni, friends
and organizations for their generous financial support
for its academic development, research activities,
scholarships and capital development programmes.

In addition to the contribution of $50.3 million in the
last financial year, Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities
Trust donated another $40.4 million in 2011 to support
scholarships for outstanding students and other
activities. The University is again most appreciative of
the continuous support from Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust.
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Capital Developments

Out of the total fixed assets of $991 million acquired
in the financial year 2011, $828 million was spent on
premises-related development projects.

To meet the surging needs for additional space for
teaching, learning, research, library and student
facilities in 2012, projects for new colleges and other
capital projects, viz. Centralized General Research
Lab Complex (Block 1) in Area 39, University Library
Extension, Two Integrated Teaching Buildings, Third
Integrated Teaching Building and Student Amenity
Centre were progressing steadily. For S.H. Ho College
and Morningside College, the occupation permits
were granted in August and October of this year
respectively.

Capital projects under construction including the
Shenzhen Research Institute, the New Chapel and
the Extension to Theology Building were scheduled for
completion in the near future.

Self-financed Activities

Dissemination of knowledge is one of the core
functions of the University. As a public institution and
in accordance with its role, the University provides
learning opportunities at sub-degree and postgraduate
levels, as well as lifelong learning programmes, that
complement the UGC-funded academic activities.
The main purpose of the University’s self-financed
programmes is to meet community and societal needs.
As a result of the improved operating environment and
the market demand for pursuing learning opportunities,
revenues from non-UGC funded programmes rose by
11% to $792 million.

The Way Forward

The reversion to a normative four-year undergraduate
curriculum in 2012 will see a significant increase in the
number of undergraduate students. In addition to the
construction of more colleges and academic buildings
to accommodate the enlarged student body, the
University has committed to the implementation of the
strategic campus master plan in formulating, executing
and promoting green plans on campus building. The
University will spare no effort in pursuing its excellence
in sustainable development and developing an
environment friendly campus.
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While the University is ready for the implementation
of the new curriculum that stresses interdisciplinary
teaching and general education with breath and depth
of knowledge across disciplines, the University will face
new challenges resulting from UGC'’s implementation
of a series of changes to the methodology of research-
related funding starting from 2012 which will introduce
greater competition and promote excellence in research
in UGC-funded institutions.

With the strategic direction to strengthen Hong Kong
and Shenzhen’s complementary advantages, the
University has been actively pursuing collaboration with
Shenzhen in education and research, and advancing
technology transfer. In addition to the setting up of
the Shenzhen Research Institute in Shenzhen Virtual
University Park, the objective of which is to enhance
the University’s research and training capabilities, the
University signed a Collaboration Agreement in July
2011 to establish The Chinese University of Hong Kong
(Shenzhen) Campus to offer education in Shenzhen.
This marks an important milestone in the University’s
academic development and represents a historical
step in the University’s expansion in mainland China,
especially in the Pearl River Delta.

Although the current difficult economic climate can be an
obstacle to securing charitable donations to support the
University’s strategic development, we are hopeful and
confident that the University will continue to benefit from
the generosity and staunch support from friends and
donors despite the economic challenges. Finally, on
behalf of the Council and the University Administration,
I would like to thank all our staff, alumni, students, and
benefactors for their strong and continuing support for
the University.

Roger K. H. Luk
Treasurer
29 November 2011
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
HEPIKER

Financial Highlights |:|
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Income Analysis I A 23 h

2011

Government Subventions
BATEBN

($3,266 milion HETT)

Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees
BE - RENHEMKE
($1,436 milion BETT)

Interest and Investment Income
B RIFE W=

($698 million BETT)
Donations and Benefactions
ESEEYSE B

($386 million HETT)

Ancillary Services Income
EHBNARTEUIA

($161 million BEIT)

Other Income

HAthgA

($389 million BETT)

Total #2%H
$6,336 million H&EIT

2011 2010
Year Ended 30 June AB=1TH(&E#£)
(HK$M) (%) (HK$M) (%)

Government Subventions BFERD 3,266 51.6% 2,874 49.8%
Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees 2% ZRLEMKE 1,436 22.7% 1,336 23.1%
Interest and Investment Income MBI EW S 698 11.0% 374 6.5%
Donations and Benefactions EELEPSESEN 386 6.1% 694 12.0%
Ancillary Services Income EBARFBULA 161 2.5% 159 2.8%
Other Income HmA 389 6.1% 336 5.8%

Total ($ million) % (EET) 6,336 100.0% 5,773 100.0%




Expenditure Analysis 3 {3 #F

Year Ended 30 June

Instruction and Research

Library

Central Computing Facilities

Other Academic Services

Management and General

Premises and Related Expenses

Student and General Education
Services

Other Activities

Total ($ million)

ANA=THEFER)

#

= YN

[

£

FRREE R AR I

HithH B

EEN—REIR

BF LB

BER—RBBEEHE

HitbE 7

REB(EET)

2011

Instruction and Research
BRI

($3,838 million BE7T)
Library

EES:]

($155 million HETT)
Central Computing Facilities
thRE ka2 bt

($90 million BETT)

Other Academic Services
H{th 2B ARTS

($132 million HETT)
Management and General
EER—REIE

($187 million HETT)
Premises and Related Expenses
BFREEXH

($483 million BETT)
Student and General Education Services
BER—BHESEH
($273 million HETT)

Other Activities

Hth=E#5

($29 million FHETT)

Total Z8%8
$5,187 million HE T

2011 2010
(HK$'M) (%) (HK$'M) (%)
3,838 74.0% 3,680 73.8%
165 3.0% 153 31%
90 1.7% 115 2.3%
132 2.5% 108 2.2%
187 3.6% 180 3.6%
483 9.3% 460 9.2%
273 5.3% 256 5.1%
29 0.6% 33 0.7%
5187  100.0% 4,985  100.0%
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Analysis on the financial position of the University as at 30 June of 2011 and 2010 are as follows:
RIF—FRTF—FFA=1H » KEBWHBERRAFNT :

(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars LB EETSIT)

201
—F—FE
Government Funded BUF&E B Non-Government ‘il
Recurring Non Recurring Funded st
i I BT EED ’
Income WA 3,113 921 2,302 6,336
Expenditure 3z 3,054 720 1,413 5,187
Surplus Z 8% 59 201 889 1,149
2011
3500
3000
2500
2000
1500
1000
500
0
Income KA Expenditure it Surplus Zgk
Government Funded Recurring Government Funded Non Recurring . Non-government Funded
BUFAEE M E D BRI EED FFHAFERD
2010
—E-BFE
Government Funded IBUT\TEH’J Non-Government Total
Recurring Non Recurring Funded e
i I FFBFTEED
Income WA 2,969 613 2,191 5,773
Expenditure 3z 3,046 622 1,317 4,985
(Deficit E518) /
Surplus 283 (77) 9) 874 788
2010
3500
3000
2500
2000
1500
1000
500
0
(500)
Income A Expenditure %t Deficit #548 /
Surplus 28
. Government Funded Recurring Government Funded Non Recurring Non-government Funded
BUFEE &R BRI EED IFHAFERD




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB S

TO THE COUNCIL OF THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HEEPNRBRED

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong (the “University”) set out on pages 10 to 80, which
comprise the consolidated and University balance sheets as at 30 June
2011, and the consolidated and University Statements of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure, the consolidated and University Statements
of Changes in Funds and the consolidated and University Cash Flows
Statements for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Council’s responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The Council of the University is responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such
internal control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Statute 12(7) of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the University and of the Group as at 30
June 2011 and of their surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

29 November 2011
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEREPXKE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

HRAaZEBER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

HE_T-——FRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L{#&#&FIT5]7R)

Note 2011 2010
PisE
Income LN
Government Subventions BATEERN 3 3,266,557 2,874,453
Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees BE - RENHMWE 4 1,438,530 1,338,104
Interest and Net Investment Income FIBRIEFWE 5 799,538 425,733
Donations and Benefactions 1EEE RIBR 6 490,534 739,899
Ancillary Services Income EHENARTSWIA 7 166,321 164,767
Other Income HAA 8 391,868 339,702
6,553,348 5,882,658
Expenditure 2 9
Learning and Research BBl R 5%
Instruction and Research HEBRMR 3,840,802 3,682,694
Library EES 155,009 153,409
Central Computing Facilities thRE MR 90,538 115,354
Other Academic Services H {2 EB RS 141,049 116,514
Institutional Support REBEHBNARTE
Management and General BER—MREIE 193,877 185,323
Premises and Related Expenses BFREEZH 487,482 466,096
Student and General Education Services BYEN—BHEER 294,608 288,082
Other Activities HhEEF% 34,038 38,569
5,237,403 5,046,041
Surplus for the year TEERR 1,315,945 836,617
Changes in Fair Value of OHHENRELREE 27,384 19,176
Available-for-Sale Investments E=E0)
Release of Revaluation Reserve RSt EIRAEE (4,011) -
upon Disposal of Available-for-Sale s 2 E (e
Equity Securities
Total comprehensive income for the year  REEREINEEEE 1,339,318 855,793
Attributable to: BREn:
Surplus/(Deficit) of Recurrent Government EEUBEEERR/ (BIR) 58,535 (77,306)
Funds transferred from/(to) General and EBE/(ZE)—RAERERES
Development Reserve Fund
Surplus/(Deficit) of Non-recurrent JEREM BT E SR ER/(E518) 200,993 (9,048)
Government Funds transferred from/(to) HE/(E)HNESHhEmEE
UGC Matching Grant Fund
Surplus of Non-government Funds BT EBNERER 1,079,790 942,147
transferred to Restricted Funds EEERES
1,339,318 855,793

The notes set out on pages 22 to 80 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HFEAPKE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET #Z83&ESER
AS AT 30 JUNE 2011

—E——FxA=+H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L{&#EF5T57R)

Note 2011 2010
FfiEE
Non-Current Assets ERBEE
Fixed Assets BEEEE 14 4,441,824 3,765,201
Investments BE 15 4,677,061 4,142,075
Employee Retirement Benefit Assets EERINMEFNEE 16 22,245 21,706
Other Receivables HtEWFRIE 17 53,790 100
9,194,920 7,929,082
Current Assets mENEE
Investments BE 15 2,706,320 2,502,849
Inventories =& 365 375
Staff Loans HEEaM 25 235,034 248,514
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and FEYTIRSR ~ FE{TFRIE K 17 320,931 181,953
Other Receivables HthfEWFRIE
Cash and Short-term Deposits with Banks IRE NIRITEEHATERR 18 4,359,135 4,102,002
7,621,785
Current Liabilities mEaE 7,035,693
Accounts Payable and Accruals FETIRFR A FESTE 19 855,542 564,289
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEFESE 20 314,005 260,607
Loans and Borrowings & 21 94,801 98,801
Deferred Income IEFEY 25 22 319,927 463,320
1,584,275 1,387,017
Net Current Assets mEEERE 6,037,510 5,648,676
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities BEERRESEE 15,232,430 13,577,758
Non-Current Liabilities JERENEE
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEFESE 20 199,526 197,894
Loans and Borrowings &R 21 27,173 42,976
Deferred Income IEFEY 25 22 242,541 210,206
469,240 451,076
Deferred Capital Funds EEEEEE 23 2,390,110 2,092,920
NET ASSETS BEFE 12,373,080  11.033.762
Restricted Funds SREE 10 10,211,936 9,132,146
Other Funds HitBEE 11 2,161,144 1,901,616
TOTAL FUNDS E2@E 12,373,080 11,033,762

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 29 November 2011

REGR=F——F+— A= +hBibERREZRILAFERR

Vincent H. C. Cheng Z};85R
Chairman of the Council IEZX[FE

Roger K. H. Luk [EEi=
Treasurer T]E

Joseph J. Y. Sung jitH2=
Vice-Chancellor &

Terence C. W. Chan [5E22
University Bursar B4 E

The notes set out on pages 22 to 80 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NERE-—+-BENTEZMERANHEHRRC—EMI
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
HEREBPxXKXKSR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

HeETEEHR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011
B@E-—T-——-FA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (& IT5IR)

Other Funds Efth&% (Note FifzE 11)

General and UGC Total Capital
Development  Matching Funds
Reserve Fund Grants
—RREBE HES
RiEEE Ec¥iwEBnE B BEES
Balance - 1 July 2009 —EFhFLtA—BH&R 1,127,774 860,196 1,987,970 1,464,319
Transfers (to)/from the LEEN=ESE S TS (77,306) (9,048) (86,354) 207,963
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer HEEBZEIR - - - :
Balance - 30 June 2010 —E-FFAA=1TH%R 1,050,468 851,148 1,901,616 1,672,282
Transfers (to)/from the LEIEN= EAEVE TS 58,535 200,993 259,528 379,433
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer EEEZER - - - -
Balance - 30 June 2011 ZE—-—FA=1+H%8% 1,109,003 1,052,141 2,161,144 2,051,715

The notes set out on pages 22 to 80 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Restricted Funds ZERE® (Note fft510)

Endowment Other Building  Research Others Investments Total Total
Funds Restricted Funds Project (Note 10.1) Revaluation Funds
Funds Funds Reserve
HftiE A #ZEER WHRIEE Hfth RESH
BrES BEE BEE BEs (FftzE 10.1) fii i ] BEEEH
2,215,517 1,871,358 237,657 480,953 1,767,827 152,368 8,189,999 10,177,969
228,549 204,909 71,714 (3,153) 212,989 19,176 942,147 855,793
(4,790) (102,627) 154,375 (12,411) (34,547) - - -
2,439,276 1,973,640 463,746 465,389 1,946,269 171,544 9,132,146 11,033,762
555,290 231,694 (431,026) 33,103 287,923 23,373 1,079,790 1,339,318
(111,141) 30,627 79,883 8,201 - (7,570) - -
2,883,425 2,235,961 112,603 506,693 2,234,192 187,347 10,211,936 12,373,080

13
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

EEPXKE
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS STATEMENT L8R ERER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

HE—F-——FRA=+THLTFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT IT5]7R)

Note 2011 2010
FisE
Operating Activities ReEe
Surplus for the Year TEERER 1,315,945 836,617
Adjustments for: HAEIEE :
Depreciation e 323,431 304,030
Loss/(Gain) on Disposal of Fixed Assets HERTEEERSE/(Fl&H) 3,338 (208)
Interest Expense B - 2
Interest and Net Investment Income MEREE WS (799,538) (425,733)
Operating Surplus before Changes in SESTEMIICERR 843,176 714,708
Working Capital
Increase in Employee Retirement EERNEFEEZIBM (539) (1,453)
Benefit Assets
Increase in Accounts Receivable, Prepayments  FEWIIRER ~ FE{IFRIE R EL{HFEUL (199,875) (16,884)
and Other Receivables FIEZIEHN
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories FEZEDI(8H) 10 (148)
Increase in Accounts Payable and Accruals FE(IIRFA N FEE & FH 2 1810 250,052 29,404
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for Employee  {EEf&F £ 180/(R) 55,030 (16,157)
Benefits
(Decrease)/Increase in Deferred Income IEFEUER 2 (G ) AN (111,058) 82,776
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities E&FEEL 2 REFE 836,796 792,246
Investing Activities 155
(Increase)/Decrease in Time Deposits with EFRHREBB =B B EAER (1,115,967) 1,348,380
Original Maturity over Three Months RZ (B>
Payment for Capital Expenditure BARRAZAM (1,003,732) (667,111)
Proceeds from Disposal of Fixed Assets HEEREEFSMIE 340 831
Payment for Purchase of Investments maeE (1,236,288)  (2,947,924)
Proceeds from Sales of Investments HEREFRSNIE 1,177,890 1,979,105
Dividend Received BREEE 16,587 14,634
Interest Received BKRFIE 174,642 158,817
Loans Granted to Staff HEE BN (38,980) (41,740)
Loans Repaid by Staff HEEIEM 52,460 39,054
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities BB REFRERRE R (1,973,048) (115,954)




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEREPXKE

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS STATEMENT
FEWEFHRER (Continued £8)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011
BE—_F——FA=1THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L{#&#&FT5]7R)

Note 2011 2010
PizE
Financing Activities BEEE
Increase in Deferred Capital Funds IEEEEES BN 297,190 154,495
Bank Loans Obtained for On-lending to Staff EHEPHREZFEITEM 6,000 5,000
Repayment of Secured Loan EETIEFEM (15,803) (15,801)
Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending EBEEHETHBECEITER (10,000) (4,000)
to Staff
Repayment of Construction Project Bank Loans  {EiEZ2EIBEERTEM - (2,535)
Interest Paid EFE - (2)
Net Cash Generated from MEREREERREEE 277,387 137,157
Financing Activities
Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash RENIESEY Z(/D)IEm (858,865) 813,449
Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents RERBREEEY - FILER 1,894,864 1,081,415
- Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year REMATEEY - FRE&R 18 1,035,999 1,894,864

The notes set out on pages 22 to 80 form an integral part of these financial statements.
FIEREZ_+_BEENTEZMEREHERR —EM -
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEREPXKER

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ZEW&Z&*

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011
B8E_F-——FRA=THLHFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT IT5]7R)

Note 2011 2010
Ptk
Income WA
Government Subventions BATERD 3 3,266,557 2,874,453
Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees BE - REREMKE 4 1,436,144 1,335,724
Interest and Net Investment Income FERREFWE 5 697,974 374,029
Donations and Benefactions 1B KB 6 385,988 693,752
Ancillary Services Income EHBIARFE YA 7 160,961 159,595
Other Income HA 8 388,723 335,884
6,336,347 5,773,437
Expenditure 2 9
Learning and Research Bili &R 5e
Instruction and Research BB NS 3,838,051 3,680,362
Library EZE 155,009 153,409
Central Computing Facilities th REFEERHE 90,538 115,354
Other Academic Services HhZ B RS 131,627 108,030
Institutional Support NEBEHENARTS
Management and General EBR—HREIE 186,813 179,790
Premises and Related Expenses BFEhEEXH 483,201 459,419
Student and General Education Services BEN—BBEERE 273,354 255,985
Other Activities HthEE5% 28,770 33,085
5,187,363 4,985,434
Surplus and total REEBRK
comprehensive income for the year EE=EE 1,148,984 788,003
Attributable to: SREmnN:
Surplus/(Deficit) of Recurrent Government & E M EE R/ (8518) 58,535 (77,306)
Funds transferred to General and BE-RABERREREES
Development Reserve Fund
Surplus/(Deficit) of Non-recurrent JEREM BT E SRR/ (E518) 200,993 (9,048)
Government Funds transferred to UGC EENESHRHEEEE
Matching Grant Fund
Surplus of Non-government Funds IEM AT E BN E R AR 889,456 874,357
transferred to Restricted Funds EEEAES
1,148,984 788,003

The notes set out on pages 22 to 80 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HEEPIXKER
BALANCE SHEET BEE&ER
AS AT 30 JUNE 2011

—2-—-FxA=1+H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L{&#ET5T57R)

Note 2011 2010
PizE

Non-Current Assets ERENEE
Investments in Subsidiaries KB ATIRRE 12 61,014 61,014
Fixed Assets BEE&EE 14 4,409,467 3,745,532
Investments BE 15 4,219,309 3,654,610
Employee Retirement Benefit Assets EERNENEE 16 22,245 21,706
Other Receivables HthFEWRIE 17 53,490 -
8,765,525 7,482,862

Current Assets MENEE
Investments BE 15 2,489,342 2,239,787
Staff Loans B EEM 25 235,034 248,514
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and FEWIRTR ~ FETTRIE K 17 310,506 176,142
Other Receivables H{thFEWRIE
Cash and Short-term Deposits with Banks IRE RIRITRREEM 18 3,727,399 3,606,543
6,762,281 6,270,986
Current Liabilities mENaE

Accounts Payable and Accruals FETRAR A FESTE 19 1,026,407 623,212
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEH S 20 312,848 259,160
Loans and Borrowings (EE 21 94,801 98,801
Deferred Income BT & 22 319,927 463,320
1,753,983 1,444,493
Net Current Assets mEBEEEE 5,008,298 4,826,493
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities REERRESEE 13,773,823 12,309,355

Non-Current Liabilities EREEE
Provision for Employee Benefits EE & £ 20 199,086 197,324
Loans and Borrowings &R 21 27,173 42,976
Deferred Income IEEW = 22 242,541 210,206
468,800 450,506
Deferred Capital Funds BEEEEE 23 2,390,110 2,092,920
NET ASSETS BESE 10,914,913 9,765,929
Restricted Funds EHEE 10 8,753,769 7,864,313
Other Funds Hitt2E 11 2,161,144 1,901,616
TOTAL FUNDS HEHE 10,914,913 9,765,929

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 29 November 2011
REGR-F——F+—AZThBIERIRERRILIAFFRE

Vincent H. C. Cheng Z}}E5R

Chairman of the Council REZX[FE

Roger K. H. Luk [E#is
Treasurer S[&E

The notes set out on pages 22 to 80 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Joseph J. Y. Sung jitH2E

Vice-Chancellor 1%

Terence C. W. Chan [5fE22
University Bursar B4

NHEHRB-+=HENTREZHEFRIMBERRC &M -
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEEPXKE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS EE#8)5k
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

HE_F-——FRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (Li&#FTT5I5F)

Other Funds

HittES (Note FizE 11)

General and uUGC Total
Development Matching
Reserve Fund Grants
—MRRER BEg
RiEEE EC¥imBnE EEEE]
Balance - 1 July 2009 —EBhFHLA—A4&8R 1,127,774 860,196 1,987,970
Transfers (to)/from the LENSESENNEES (77,306) (9,048) (86,354)
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer HERBEIR - - -
Balance - 30 June 2010 —E-FFXA=1THER 1,050,468 851,148 1,901,616
Transfers (to)/from the BE)/aEE=R 58,535 200,993 259,528
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Inter-fund Transfer BEERZEIR - - -
Balance - 30 June 2011 —E——FXA=1TH%ER 1,052,141 2,161,144

1,109,003

The notes set out on pages 22 to 80 form an integral part of these financial statements.
FEHRE_+T-BENTREZMERARHBRRE &M -



Restricted Funds EFEES (Note is10)

Capital Endowment Other Building ~ Research Others Total Total
Funds Funds Restricted Funds Project (Note 10.2) Funds
Funds Funds
HthER EEIEE WRIER Hith
BEEE BAES EE 2 2E (Mf5E 10.2) EEEE] BB
1,458,250 2,121,172 1,575,802 237,657 480,953 1,116,122 6,989,956 8,977,926
194,362 223,349 165,036 71,714 (3,153) 223,049 874,357 788,003
- (2,882) (104,535) 154,375 (12,411) (34,547) - -
1,652,612 2,341,639 1,636,303 463,746 465,389 1,304,624 7,864,313 9,765,929
366,745 473,767 200,652 (430,671) 33,103 245,860 889,456 1,148,984
- (111,093) 30,579 79,883 8,201 (7,570) - -
2,019,357 2,704,313 1,867,534 112,958 506,693 1,542,914 8,753,769 10,914,913
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEEPXXKER

CASH FLOWS STATEMENT RERSR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

HE—_F-——FRA=+THLTFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L{#&#&FT5]7R)

2011 2010
Operating Activities RETER
Surplus for the Year TEERER 1,148,984 788,003
Adjustments for: HAEIER :
Depreciation e 323,065 303,645
Loss/(Gain) on Disposal of Fixed Assets HEEEEEEE/(Flw) 3,338 (208)
Interest Expense FEZH - 2
Interest and Net Investment Income B RITEE W= (697,974)  (374,029)
Operating Surplus before Changes in SESTEHNEERN 777,413 717,413
Working Capital
Increase in Employee Retirement EERIMMEFEEZIZM (539) (1,453)
Benefit Assets
Increase in Accounts Receivable, Prepayments  FEIIRFR ~ TE{(TFRIE R E i FEUL (181,526) (19,635)
and Other Receivables FRIEZIENN
Increase in Accounts Payable and Accruals FEfTIRFR A FEEH & R 238 hN 328,994 58,366
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for Employee  {EE{EFI#E 2 1EH0/(GE) 55,450 (16,528)
Benefits
(Decrease)/Increase in Deferred Income IEFEU 25 2 (G2 ) AN (111,058) 82,776
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities EEEMEEZREEHA 868,734 820,939
Investing Activities 1BEEE
(Increase)/Decrease in Time Deposits with FREREB = E BB HER (807,602) 1,093,525
Maturity Period over Three Months 2Z ()i
Payment for Capital Expenditure BEARRARZ M (990,678)  (653,125)
Proceeds from Disposal of Fixed Assets HEBEREEEFRSWIE 340 831
Payment for Purchase of Investments BRGE (1,169,825) (2,770,048)
Payment for Investment in Subsidiary BERMEAS - (29,334)
Proceeds from Sales of Investments HEREMRSWIE 964,290 1,831,945
Dividend Received SRR 3,007 1,817
Interest Received 2RFIE 154,121 135,769
Loans Granted to Staff HEHE BN (38,980) (41,740)
Loans Repaid by Staff BB IR 52,460 39,054
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities KBRS FRER R ERSE (1,832,867)  (391,306)




THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEHEbhXE

CASH FLOWS STATEMENT IRERE R (Continued £§)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

HE—_F-——FRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT IT5]7R)

Note 2011 2010
LhE
Financing Activities &R
Increase in Deferred Capital Funds BESERESZEM 297,190 154,495
Bank Loans Obtained for On-lending to Staff ST E v RTESR 6,000 5,000
Repayment of Secured Loan (EEEEEam (15,803) (15,801)
Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending (EEEETHEEZRTEN (10,000) (4,000)
to Staff
Repayment of Construction Project Bank Loans  (gi@sssmRRTE= - (2,535)
Interest Paid 2FFIE - (2)
Net Cash Generated from RS EEFRESE TS 277,387 137,157
Financing Activities
Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash RERRTZB/EYZ(FS)ALM (686,746) 566,790
Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents BEERBESZEY - E9E% 1,483,978 917,188
- Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year B2 RIASZEY - FRER 18 797,232 1,483,978

The notes set out on pages 22 to 80 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NERE-_+T-BENTREZMERARHBERRE &M -
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
HEEPIXKE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M mRAIEE

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong which includes Morningside College and
S. H. Ho College (collectively the “University”) and of
the Trustees of the four constituent Colleges, namely
The Trustees of Chung Chi College, The Trustees of
New Asia College, The Trustees of United College
and The Trustees of Shaw College (collectively the
“Group”). The Trustees of these constituent Colleges
were incorporated under The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). As the
Colleges function to complement the University
in the provision of a balanced, holistic education
which also embodies different intellectual and
cultural traditions, management of the University is
of the opinion that the Trustees of these constituent
Colleges are created to accomplish academic
and related objectives, consistent with those
of the University. Therefore, pursuant to Hong
Kong Accounting Standard 27 “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements”, the consolidated
financial statements of the University include the
financial results and assets and liabilities relating to
the Trustees of the four Colleges. The aggregate
surplus for the year of the Trustees of these four
Colleges amounted to $167 million (2010: $49
million) and their aggregate net assets at the
balance sheet date amounted to $1,459 million
(2010: $1,268 million).

The consolidated financial statements have
not incorporated the financial statements of the
University’s subsidiaries as management is of
the opinion that their total net assets and income,
which constituted 1.2% and 0.5% of the respective
consolidated totals, are insignificant.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term include all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“‘HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of
the significant policies adopted by the Group and
the University is set out below.

FREMBRREETEPXAR - EPCEaRE
Ehx - =2HEKR (5% "KE, ) MEERESR : R
BEERRED - HEERKED - BMESERKREG R
KERRESNUBHRR (518 "KERE. ) - W
SERREGHREFEPXABRFRGIMIL - HILHK
SERINENHPABRHUFERTENHYE @ I
BEFEBERAXLES - FIUABEEBRANE
ERVESWEIL - BR 7T EREABE—HREI K
HEER - BB AS (FESFTERD) F2++15%
(RERBUMBERR) @ AEoHUBERTEET
MEKEERNWEERRELEENEE - HEKREE
RAEERRH—RATEEERT CF—FF£ @
FhEagr) MEFEEMNRTOEATIERER (=
E-BF: +ZFAFTNEET) -

EEERRMBASCFEERRARBRIEREBE
BB —H-NEALZEHA - HABERRE
EANEE  AFRSHRAEFESHMBLATZH
BH|EK -

FEEFHIR
SNER

FHBHRRERREE I MO SR R ERARAR
H (EFEMBERELER) - EREEEREERNER
(EHEMEmEEN) - (FEIEER) BEES;

MAEZRNERRELATEEERMN ZETRAIMES
UTZARBEERABREANT RS BERME -



2.2

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
amendments to HKFRSs and Interpretations that
are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
University. None of these are relevant to the Group’s
and University’s financial statements.

The University has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 33).

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except as otherwise stated in the accounting
policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about the carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

2.2

BEED MASERBETSIEMI MEETNEE
MBHEREANAEE  RABBERABESSEHF
EREEENHTHRRRRA - ZFERILZEHR
AREBEENABH TSRS AR -

ARENEEERNE T EEFRARENAIFIT R KT
E(RMIEE33) o

MBHRNEFIEE

ARG A TSR - BRTER IS BERP ML A
25 BLBEER S ERER

ERBINSEEVMBREENCMBRRE - B2
fELLAHEER - SRR B EFRRAS T BER A
WENEE - BF - WARZL - AR BREERE
ERNBEERAZEAEZRER THERGENERFE
Bt - MPUELETEMAER KIS EERAENIRE
8 - SEHEENREREMBREEEAIS © Fif4st
MEETREERCEREFER -

B IHERRRERIFER - WRIFHEFH
ERIERER R - AR EFE ST BRANER
MFRIESTHERMMARABIERE - AITEELIERT
HYSARIFIZR SR AR P LARERR -
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Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group.
Control exists when the group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

In the Balance Sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less any impairment losses (see
note 2.9).

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets, other than Construction In Progress
and Art Collection, are stated in the Balance
Sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2.9).

Construction In Progress represents buildings and
other fixed assets under construction, and is stated
at cost less any impairment losses (see note 2.9)
and is not depreciated. Construction In Progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of fixed
assets when completed and is ready for use.

Art Collection is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 2.9). The residual value of art
collection is expected to be equal to or greater than
the carrying amount, and therefore Art Collection is
not depreciated.

Leasehold Land granted by the Government for use
by the University is recorded at nil value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has
resulted in an increase in its future economic benefit,
such expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
fixed assets, less their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives or economic lives, whichever is shorter,
as follows:
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2.6

Over the
remaining lease

Interest in Leasehold Land
held for Own Use under

Operating Leases term
Buildings 40 years
Equipment, Furniture 3-10 years

and Fittings

Shorter of useful
life or duration
of project

Assets acquired for
Research Projects

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset is determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the fixed asset and is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use.

Investment properties are stated in the Balance
Sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2.9). Any gain or loss
arising from the disposal of an investment property
is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described
in note 2.13(v).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
investment properties, using the straight line method
over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives of
investment properties are the same as for buildings
or interest in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases as shown in note 2.4.

Leased Assets

Leases of assets under which the lessor has not
transferred all the risks and benefits of ownership
are classified as operating leases, except for
property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis.

25

2.6

EEEEETERLM FERTEE AR
BE M-+

i ~ ZREKE =E+F
DEEMAEEREL ORAFRHIER
EE&EE FH URESE

EHERREMEENEFABRZUZEECEEN
FHERLREEENERAE REEWERREEH
EEEBSRAER

UMEEEEP AR EARNTTRFR » BIEKZS
FUGEEESRESED - WOFEMEME - EE
OISR EMBREGER)SREFES -

=LY E S
REVERERERFERERNNL/EREE -
DB E S WA EEEREE - ELEYREER
FSEMmMATEEREN Lt o

RENFEEEERBRPURSENRZBINENR
EEE(RMEE2.9)5 - (EAEMRELEREENR
BHEZEPRIRAER © EiIREMFRINESK
AZLAMIEE2.13(v) PRt A A AR ©

REVRIITES S A A= E A BRI ERET
AYCTFREFRRANEN - THREYISRAVOIRFREEENRE
EHSETBERLMER - RHiEE2.4 -

HERE
EEREPIRHBEAREERETRNZEERERR
REOHNEE - ZEERBARCENRE ; MEHEE
ETHENYENSREVRNERN - ZFMRA
BLUSEYRESERBADIRENSE -



26

2.7

Assets Held for Use in Operating Leases

Where the Group or the University leases out
assets under operating leases, the assets
are included in the Balance Sheet according
to their nature and written off in accordance
with the accounting policies as set out in
note 2.4. Income arising from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with the
income recognition policies, as set out in note
2.13(v).

Operating Lease Charges

Where the Group or the University has the use
of assets under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term.
Lease incentives received are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.

Investments

The Group’s and the University’s policies for
investments in securities other than investments in
subsidiaries are as follows:

(i)

(iii)

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or
the University has the positive ability and
intention to hold to maturity are classified as
held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are initially recognised in the Balance
Sheet at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are stated in the Balance
Sheet at amortised cost less impairment losses
(see note 2.9).

Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets and are initially
stated at fair value. At each balance sheet date
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Investments in equity securities that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are recognised in the Balance
Sheet at cost less impairment losses (see note
2.9).

Limited Partnership investment and alternative
investments are initially recognised at fair
value. At each balance sheet date, the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
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(v) Other investments in securities are classified
as available-for-sale securities and are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.
At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised directly in fair value reserve,
except for impairment losses (see note 2.9)
and, in the case of monetary items such as debt
securities, foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised directly in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
Where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
When these investments are derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
directly in fair value reserve is recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

(vi) Investments in securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group and/or
the University commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

Staff Loans and Accounts Receivable

Staff Loans and Accounts Receivable are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts (see note 2.9), except where
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see
note 2.9).

Impairment of Assets

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and receivables:

Investments in debt and equity securities and
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale
securities are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more
of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and
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a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as
follows:

For unquoted equity securities and receivables
that are carried at cost, the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses for
receivables are reversed if in a subsequent
period the amount of the impairment loss
decreases. Impairment losses for equity
securities are not reversed.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets).

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that had been recognised directly in fair
value reserve is removed and is recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is
the difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.
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Impairment losses recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such assets is recognised directly in fair value
reserve.

(i) Impairment of Other Assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
identify indications that the Fixed Assets and
Investments in Subsidiaries may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. When an asset
does not generate cash inflows independently,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised to reduce the
carrying amount of the asset or assets in the
cash-generating unit on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs
to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Reversal of impairment losses

Animpairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and their
maturity dates are within three months from the
date of acquisition.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the University
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where itis not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Income Recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received/receivable. Provided it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group or the University and the income
and expenditure, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, income is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as
follows:

(i) Government Subventions

Recurrent grants for general purposes are
recognised as income when the grants have
been received or are receivable from the
University Grant Committee (“UGC”). Any
such grants, which are received in excess of
the related expenses incurred are transferred
to General and Development Reserve Fund
in the reporting period in accordance with
prevailing UGC guidelines.
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(iif)

(vi)

Matching grants are recognised as income
when the grants have been received or are
receivable from the UGC.

Recurrent grants and earmarked grants for
specific purpose spent on capital expenditure
are initially recorded in Deferred Capital
Funds and are recognised as income over
the useful lives of the related assets when the
assets are put into use, to the extent of the
related depreciation expenses incurred for
that period.

Earmarked grants for specific purposes are
recognised as income to the extent of the
related revenue expenditure incurred during
the reporting period.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Dividend

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment becomes ex-dividend.

Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees

Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees are
recognised on an accrual basis and unearned
fees are treated as receipts in advance.

Rental Income from Operating Leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable.

Donations and Benefactions

Donations and benefactions with general
purposes are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure when
the Group or the University become entitled to
the donations and it is probable that they will
be received.

Donations and benefactions for specific
purposes are recognised as income to the
extent of the related expenditure incurred
during the year.
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(vii) Other Service Income

Other service income is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure when the related service is
rendered.

2.14 Books and Periodicals

Library books and periodicals are written off to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in the year in which the expenditure
is incurred.

2.15 Employee Benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowances
and the cost to the Group or the University of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by the employees of the Group or
the University.

Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment of not less than two
years. The gratuity, together with the total
amount of the University’s contributions to a
particular retirement scheme, will add up to
10% or 15% of the appointee’s basic salary
drawn during the contract period.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
schemes, including Mandatory Provident
Funds (“MPF”) as required under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure as incurred.

The net obligation in respect of a defined benefit
retirement scheme is calculated by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their services in
the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine the present value,
and the fair value of any scheme assets is
deducted. The discountrate is the yield at the
balance sheet date on high quality corporate
bonds that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s or the University’s
obligations. The calculation is performed by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method.

(vii)
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In calculating the obligation in respect of the
scheme, to the extent that any cumulative
unrecognised actuarial gain or loss exceeds ten
percent of the greater of the present value of
the defined benefit obligation and the fair value
of scheme assets, that portion is recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure over the expected average
remaining working lives of the employees
participating in the scheme. Otherwise, the
actuarial gain or loss is not recognised.

Where the calculation of the net obligation
results in a negative amount, the asset
recognised is limited to the net total of any
cumulative unrecognised net actuarial losses,
past service costs and the present value of any
future refunds from the scheme or reductions
in future contributions to the scheme.

(v) Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group or the University
demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility
of withdrawal.

2.16 Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the market
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses on foreign currency
translation are dealt with in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
the fair value was determined.

TR ERNETEIR RN - BEUREERCR
BRI RELREN SR B RENZ
REINEER ARBE(CEZBRAZF)NEILZ
+ - IR BHEMNIRS BRI EIE T 25T
TR T TREZEW SRR © FRICLS) -
ZFRE W B IE T WER o

HFEEELEHN  HRCEEERREAR
TEARHERS R K R B 1R R AR TS Al A4S R R 3RER
LR Bl SRR AR D LU ET BRI IRE -

(V) BHRLHERSEASERYABEMES -
A - BEAKTIREMDIETBIRS - WARIBZETE
BRERMEEMALIL SN (E L HIER - 7T
BBRXZ -
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2.17 Related Parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group or the
University if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or the University or exercise
significant influence over the Group or the
University in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group or the University;

(ii) the Group or the University and the party are
subject to common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or the
University or a joint venture in which the Group
or the University is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the University or a
close family member of such an individual, or
is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

(Vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or the University or of any entity that is
a related party of the Group or the University.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.

2.18 Taxation

The University and its four constituent Colleges
are exempted from payment of Hong Kong Profits
Tax by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland Revenue
Ordinance.

2.19 Inventories

Inventories represent souvenirs held by the Chung
Chi College for resale. They are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.
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GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS  EIfF&8)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (W&HEFIT5IT)

The Group and the University

REAEERE T KER
2011 2010
Subventions from UGC HEFEM
Block Grants EREmE 2,321,866 2,264,919
Supplementary Grants IBHEEE 43,828 (3,308)
2,365,694 2,261,611
Earmarked Grants IEEREMEE
Research Grants fRSEENE 162,189 147,424
Housing Benefits EERF 49,313 66,539
Matching Grants EoEitEnE 220,000 -
Area of Excellence EFHNERRL SR 20,436 13,220
Ophthalmology and Visual Sciences IR A RERE 18,147 17,887
School of Law HRIEERR 9 20
Restructuring and Collaboration Fund SHNGERBIE 3,803 1,708
One-off Special Equipment Grant — BRIk EREIE 8,028 5,533
Knowledge Transfer Activities M5 8,286 3,621
Other Earmarked Grants Hithis EREHEEE 36,742 30,553
Rates and Government Rent Refund RiE= A B AThE 34,818 31,478
Capital Grants and Alterations, Additions,  EZ#HBIEENE - MNE - 150,164 127,591
Repairs and Improvements (AA&I) HIS RN ETREREEM
Block Allocation
3,077,629 2,707,185
Grants from Government Agencies BIRFHIB IR 188,928 167,268
3,266,557 2,874,453
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3.1

Matching Grants  Eo¥i#iEhE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT IT5IR)

Matching Donations

Matching Donations

Grants Grants
Eo¥itiEnE B oI fEnE b
The Group The University
KREBEEES KE
2011 2011
Balance - Beginning of Year FEVEERR 851,148 1,546,596 851,148 1,512,704
Income WA
Grants/Donations fHBNE/ABM 220,000 - 220,000 -
Interest and Net Investment Income FIE2&IEEFWZE 54,877 33,638 54,877 32,217
274,877 33,638 274,877 32,217
Expenditure (Note) X (FftEE)
Teaching and Research HENAR 15,863 19,864 15,863 19,676
Academic Development BT R 16,854 12,283 16,854 11,777
Student Exchange Activities BERER 2,252 6,439 2,252 6,425
Student Development BAE 6,867 1,528 6,867 1,342
Scholarships ZEE 32,145 10,543 32,145 9,819
Capital Projects HiZlHH - 11,303 - 11,303
73,981 61,960 73,981 60,342
Transfer from/(to) Capital Fund HE(R)EEES 97  (289,428) 97  (289,431)
Balance - End of Year TR 1,052,141 1,228,846 1,052,141 1,195,148
The Group The University
RERERE KRE
2010 2010
Balance - Beginning of Year FYEER 860,195 1,294,771 860,195 1,249,980
Income WA
Grants/Donations HHBNE /BT - 395,000 - 395,000
Interest and Net Investment Income FI2 &IGE Bz 32,185 76,225 32,185 74,949
32,185 471,225 32,185 469,949
Expenditure (Note) X (FfEE)
Teaching and Research BENHAR 10,299 3,334 10,299 3,334
Academic Development BT R 692 32,289 692 32,255
Student Exchange Activities BERRER 1,667 5,199 1,667 5,144
Student Development BAeRE (3,024) 7,663 (3,024) 7,208
Scholarships IREE 33,571 7,442 33,571 6,468
Capital Projects HEEH - 25,390 - 25,390
43,205 81,317 43,205 79,799
Transfer from/(to) Capital Fund EBR/I(R)EEES 1,973  (138,083) 1,973  (127,426)
Balance - End of Year

FRER 851,148 1,546,596

851,148

1,512,704



Note

Pt

: For Matching Grant Schemes, private donations secured for purposes including construction of campus buildings

and scholarships but excluding self-financed activities were matched. Grants were awarded on a dollar-for-dollar
matching basis up to $45 million and on a $1 for $2 matching basis (i.e $1 Government Grant for every $2 donation)
for the amount beyond $45 million and limited to a total of $220 million.

RHHEBEEIRHAESNMABREERARBERS MEEE - EFEERARBEESNER - HPEXSESHEN
FHEERFEAIVEI—TTH—TtER)EE - HRSRAIL— Mttt R B Smrti AR OS2l — Tl
fIBIE)FTE - MESUR/BREBER =R =TFE&T

TUITION, PROGRAMMES AND OTHER FEES BE - RERHKE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB IT5IR) o
The Group The University
RERERE RE
2011 2010 2011 2010
UGC-Funded Programmes HEFEMRRE
Tuition Fees BE 632,241 612,028 632,241 612,028
Programmes and Other Fees SRE M EMKE 11,975 9,940 11,975 9,940
Non-UGC-Funded Programmes B EMIRE
Tuition Fees BEE 788,757 711,041 786,417 708,796
Programmes and Other Fees oz M EAMRE 5,557 5,095 5,511 4,960
1,438,530 1,338,104 1,436,144 1,335,724
INTEREST AND NET INVESTMENT INCOME B RBE BN
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB IT5lIR)
The Group The University
REREERS XE
2011 2010 2011 2010
Interest Income from Listed Securities LhEEf RN 16,920 20,328 6,833 6,110
Interest Income from Unlisted Securities JE_EmE 5T B = 106,595 100,013 106,448 99,953
Interest Income from Time Deposits ERERAE 52,122 25,851 44,741 21,439
Net Realised and Unrealised HihBEvBEIR AR 577,792 238,673 511,872 224,547
Gain on Other Securities BB
Dividends from Listed and LTRIELETE 39,242 29,744 21,213 16,786
Unlisted Securities R =
Other Investment Income HithigE W= 6,867 11,124 6,867 5,194
799,538 425,733 697,974 374,029
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DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS Bl R IER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT IT5IR)

The Group The University
REAREED KREE
2011 2010 2011 2010
Capital Projects HEEH 6,451 3,597 1,083 318
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries IBEE - BENEEE 110,549 70,667 31,963 82,811
Donations for Research Activities BREm 151,505 79,362 151,505 79,362
Donations for Establishment of B REERIEM 1,459 61,376 1,459 61,376
Morningside College
Donation for Establishment of A EREREMN - 70,000 - 70,000
Wu Yee Sun College
Donations for Establishment of B EEERIEM 620 99,047 620 99,047
S. H. Ho College
Donation for Establishment of AT ERRIET 5,075 40,350 5,075 40,350
C. W. Chu College
Donation for Establishment of B FNEZERRIEMN - 70,000 - 70,000
Lee Woo Sing College
Donations for General Academic Use = —R&Z4E4EFR 214,875 245500 194,283 190,488
490,534 739,809 385,988 693,752

Note: Total donations of $40.4 million were received from the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust for the year

(2010: $50.3 million).

Mzt AEEREEEREEESEAERRECNEHNTIN+ER CE—FF: ATE=1&xN)-



ANCILLARY SERVICES INCOME RN ARFE U A

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT IT5IR)

The Group The University
REERE KRE
2011 2010 2011 2010

Resident Halls BYRES
Rental Income WA
Catering and Hospitality Services IERNEERE
University Press REH ARt
Rental Contribution from Staff R SRS HMR
Retail Store Sales TEEHEE
Others Hith

OTHER INCOME  HfthlgA

80,726 80,606
42,627 39,223
7,081 9,526
8,019 8,842
10,572 10,350
1,453 2,086
15,843 14,134

80,111 80,055
37,880 34,602
7,081 9,626
8,019 8,842
10,572 10,350
1,453 2,086
15,845 14,134

166,321 164,767

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A& IT5Im)

160,961 159,595

The Group The University
REEE KRE
2011 2010 2011 2010

Service Income BRFEYIA
Contract Research BEREA
Miscellaneous Hit

165,785 159,823
89,934 79,589
136,149 100,290

165,160 159,431
89,818 79,589
133,745 96,864

391,868 339,702

388,723 335,884
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EXPENDITURE X

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB T7T5I7R)
The Group
REBEEE
Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2011
and Benefits Expenses Total
B THrEM
Ktz BERIX e FEEL]
Learning and Research BiliRfE
Instruction and Research HERZE 2,659,822 1,036,712 144,268 3,840,802
Library E=e 68972 80575 5462 155,009
Central Computing Facilities PR E R R Bt 60,595 16,889 13,054 90,538
Other Academic Services H B3RS 97,790 41,131 2,128 141,049
2,887,179 1,175,307 164,912 4,227,398
Institutional Support (Note 9.1)  AXE#HBNIRFS(HI5$9.1)
Management and General EBA—REE 156,219 34,294 3,364 193,877
Premises and Related Expenses  1BFRERAZH 115,839 218,619 153,024 487,482
Student and General Education BEN—BRHEERE 127,026 166,096 1,486 294,608
Services
Other Activities HLthET 17,832 15,561 645 34,038
416,916 434,570 158,519 1,010,005
Total Expenditure - 2011 —E——FE%H 3,304,095 1,609,877 323,431 5,237,403
Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2010
and Benefits Expenses Total
BT EEM
KiEFl R e L]
Learning and Research Bl K iR e
Instruction and Research HENHAR 2,568,309 978,635 135,750 3,682,694
Library EES:H 69,529 78,264 5,616 153,409
Central Computing Facilities th R EE KRR I 60,717 43,529 11,108 115,354
Other Academic Services H{th24ERRT% 89,310 24,810 2,394 _ 116,514
2,787,865 1,125,238 154,868 4,067,971
Institutional Support (Note 9.1)  XE3EHRNBRFE(HIFE9.1)
Management and General EBA—REE 147,407 34,663 3,253 185,323
Premises and Related Expenses  #EFRBEXZH 119,986 202,461 143,649 466,096
Student and General Education BEN—BBEERE 130,443 156,075 1,564 288,082
Services
Other Activities HLhEET 16,031 21,842 696 38,569
413,867 415041 149,162 978,070
Total Expenditure - 2010 —E-TFETH

3,201,732

1,540,279

304,030

5,046,041



9.

EXPENDITURE %

(Continued #&)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAEH#EFIT5IR)
The University
KRE2
Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2011
and Benefits Expenses Total
BT EEN
KAzl RERHR & FEEL]
Learning and Research BiliRf%
Instruction and Research HERHAE 2,659,717 1,034,068 144,266 3,838,051
Library EES:S 68,972 80,575 5462 155,009
Central Computing Facilities th R EfEER bt 60,595 16,889 13,054 90,538
Other Academic Services Hth#EBARTE 89,547 39,983 2,097 131,627
2,878,831 1,171,515 164,879 4,215,225
Institutional Support (Note 9.1)  KE3HfBHAR% (Pi15E9.1)
Management and General EBEN—HREIE 150,145 33,306 3,362 186,813
Premises and Related Expenses EBFERERERH 115,389 214,946 152,866 483,201
Student and General Education BEN—RHEEE 119,764 152,274 1,316 273,354
Services
Other Activities HLHEET 17,314 10,814 642 28,770
402,612 411,340 158,186 972,138
Total Expenditure - 2011 —E——FAYH 3,281,443 1,582,855 323,065 5,187,363
Staff Cost Operating Depreciation 2010
and Benefits Expenses Total
ST HM
KAEF RER® & L]
Learning and Research Bii kiR
Instruction and Research HEBRAR 2,568,065 976,549 135,748 3,680,362
Library EIE8E 69,529 78,264 5,616 153,409
Central Computing Facilities o REEERRHE 60,717 43,529 11,108 115,354
Other Academic Services H {2 B ARTE 82,009 23,672 2,349 108,030
2,780,320 1,122,014 154,821 4,057,155
Institutional Support (Note 9.1) X ERGHBhAR 75 (PFI5E9.1)
Management and General EEN—REIE 142,730 33,812 3,248 179,790
Premises and Related Expenses BFABREXH 119,621 196,294 143,504 459,419
Student and General Education BERN—RHESEE 123,767 130,787 1,431 255,985
Services
Other Activities H{thEE5 15,906 16,538 641 33,085
402,024 377,431 148,824 928,279
Total Expenditure - 2010 —E-BF4TH

3,182,344

1,499,445

303,645

4,985,434
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9.1 Analysis of Institutional Support Operating Expenses XEHBRISEEAX 2
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT IT5IR)

The Group The University
REREERS KRER
2011 2010 2011 2010
Management and General BIEN—MREIE

General Insurance — iR REEE R 4,089 4,912 4,072 4,908
Legal and Other Professional Fees  iEENEHEBHAER 2,390 977 2,378 966
Auditor’s Remuneration % EEMEN = 1,156 981 1,156 981
Other Operating Expenses Hithis&m% 26,659 27,793 25,700 26,957

34,294 34,663 33,306 33,812

Premises and Related Expenses BFAERXH

Repair and Maintenance HIENIRE 101,232 93,720 98,771 88,456

Utilities KERERE 77,512 73,318 77,512 73,318

Government Rent and Rates =R AR 35,768 32,288 35,623 32,162

Security, Environment and Safety RE - RERTZEER 2,570 2,228 2,015 1,682
Services

Property Insurance MERRER 1,031 680 1,025 676

Other Operating Expenses Hith#iRERR 506 227 - -

218,619 202,461 214,946 196,294

Student and General Education BYEL—BHEEH
Services
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries  #ZEE - S8F NEIEE 99,589 83,209 80,366 70,187
Resident Halls Expenses BAESHX 29,150 30,919 27,573 30,438
Student Exchange Programme BAEREETE 6,719 5,070 6,682 5,032
Careers, Counseling Services and B3k - BiEREREBE 14,889 12,250 32,237 14,954
Student Activities FRIMESED
Student/Extra-curriculum Activities ~ E34%ARINEE) 6,516 11,247 - -
Alumni Affairs RRBHRETE 3,751 5,978 3,751 5,978
Sports and Other Facilities EERHEMES 1,628 1,208 1,583 1,208
Student Financial Aids BA i iE &R 625 610 - -
Student and Staff Health Services B4 N 3B S R ERRTS 64 2,988 64 2,988
Other Operating Expenses Hithis &% 3,165 2,596 18 2
166,096 156,075 152,274 130,787
Other Activities HthEE
University Press REH ARt 8,094 9,106 8,094 9,106
Catering Services IERARTE 2,143 5,923 2,143 5,923
Souvenir Counter BmEp 219 1,257 219 1,257
Miscellaneous ML 5,105 5,556 358 252

15,561 21,842 10,814 16,538

434,570 415,041 411,340 377,431




9.2 Remuneration of Senior Staff SN E TR

The number of staff members in the University whose remuneration exceeded HK$1,800,000 during the year ended
30 June 2011 and 2010, irrespective of the funding sources and listed by the various bands, are as follows:

RAEEREFERSEREX (I FHEEEE—BNTRTNETABUSARINWT -

The Group and the University

REBERRAEB
2011 2010
$ $

1,800,001 - 1,950,000 30 33
1,950,001 - 2,100,000 26 34
2,100,001 - 2,250,000 9 9
2,250,001 - 2,400,000 15 17
2,400,001 - 2,550,000 6 7
2,550,001 - 2,700,000 10 12
2,700,001 - 2,850,000 7 4
2,850,001 - 3,000,000 5 3
3,000,001 - 3,150,000 8 9
3,150,001 - 3,300,000 8 6
3,300,001 - 3,450,000 7 5
3,450,001 - 3,600,000 5 9
3,600,001 - 3,750,000 5 4
3,750,001 - 3,900,000 2 3
3,900,001 - 4,050,000 - -
4,050,001 - 4,200,000 2 2
4,200,001 - 4,350,000 - -
4,350,001 - 4,500,000 - -
4,500,001 - 4,650,000 1 -
Total Pk 146 157

Included in the total figure above are 82 clinical staff members (2010: 77).
Ll FEERREEASHRA (TB—FF77TA)

Remuneration includes salaries, contributions to retirement schemes, housing benefits, education allowances,
contract-end gratuities and other allowances.

M EEFE - RINEHAR - BEEH - BERR © 2mbE S (thi2hs -

43



10. RESTRICTED FUNDS SHESE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the Group’s and the
University’s Restricted Funds are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds and the Statement
of Changes in Funds respectively.

RERERABNERAESASAMED RV IR GERNEIER - SREGRSESEHRAESEHRPIT -

10.1 The Group KEEE

(i) As at 30 June 2011, the balance of Others includes the Pommerenke Trust Fund of $667 million (2010:
$625 million) and the operating reserves of $1,567 million (2010: $1,321 million) for self-financed activities,
ancillary services and privately funded projects. The Pommerenke Trust Fund originates from a gift of land
donated in 1970 to the Chung Chi College by the Reverend Herbert Henry Pommerenke and Mrs. Jean
Macpherson Pommerenke in commemoration of Doctors Stewart and Julia Kunkle. The land gift was
outside the precincts of the University and, since 1976 and in accordance with The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Ordinance, has been vested in the Board of Trustees of Chung Chi College on the same trusts
and subject to the same terms and conditions on which the land gift was then held.

BEECS——F/A=1TH HtESCOEEEREESAEATLEER(CS—TF: AE-THEER)' &
REBETE - AEHMREAMAEHEENSERFETABATLEER(CS—SF . +=B-FT—8&
7t) - BEERES FERERBEIRERAR—N LI E R4 2 Doctors Stewart KJulia Kunkle g k45 REERR
By Lith o EREEISRN NI AEBERI - B—NtAFEE » RIFEEDPIABRAFIRBESEAERT
BzEEE T FIRRERERURERIGER R - BEREBRRES -

(i) The transfers to the various restricted funds, except for Capital Funds, are partially attributable to the
donations and benefactions of $491 million (2010: $740 million) as disclosed in Note 6.

REEESLS - BRESEFAESNHPTHREARRABRNBECNENTBERT(CE—F: tEET
B)FREE - iR RIBRZ A ITEFIIRHIEE6A

10.2 The University K&

(i) As at 30 June 2011, the balance of Others includes the operating reserves of $1,025 million (2010: $883
million) for self-financed activities and ancillary services.

HETS——FA=TH ' At ESTEZEEEESAABHDRBHEERFERTRETAEER (&5F
—8F : \ENF=EEBT) -

(i) The transfers to the various restricted funds, except for Capital Funds, are partially attributable to the
donations and benefactions of $386 million (2010: $694 million) as disclosed in Note 6.

REEEZLY  BIRESERESNHPEGRERELERRGE =BNTAEERCE—F : A EATH
BRT)ES & BB 2 SR HiEEeA



NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESTRICTED FUNDS

Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book value
of the Fixed Assets which were financed by funds with
non-designated purpose.

Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations received by
the University, usually with the stipulation from the
donors that the principal amounts should remain
intact in perpetuity or for a defined time period for
specific purposes.

Other Restricted Funds

Other Restricted Funds represent the unspent
balance of funds donated for the development of the
new colleges. In addition, the Funds also comprise
the unspent balance of sponsorship grants and
service income.

Building Funds

Building Funds comprise the privately-funded capital
projects funded by external private organisations.

Research Projects Funds

Research Projects Funds represent the unspent
balance of projects with designated purpose in
carrying out research activities, including those
funded by HKSAR Government, related organisations
and external private organisations.

Others
Others comprise reserves generated from self-

financed programmes, ancillary services, scholarships
and bursaries and miscellaneous activities.

BEESWHERAR

wEES

AEES ERR RN E S HENE CAENIED
B

grEe

BEAESRABWEIREEANE  BEREEZERN
EEREFAY - BEFEREEECHEAERERE -

HthSHEE

HithERES BEABRAFERRTS RAVBEIE - It
5 - BEEMNESEBNIRRAVEREE N ARFS LS o

BRIEEESE

BEXREEESOEEMARBENNERTRE -

MREEEE

MREEEEEARBAFRHRENAEBNES » HP
NEMEBEEBRAITHERA - HERAKERFAA
ttd o

Hith

HttZRAEEAELBEREERE - BHR - 128
& - BIBRERBEEENRERER
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1.

OTHER FUNDS HihBEE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the Group’s and the
University’s Other Funds are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds and the Statement of
Changes in Funds respectively.

ABEELABNEMESASARE 2 Y MERERNEE - 2EGRSESEBRAESESHRPIIR -

(1

The General and Development Reserve Fund (GDRF) represents the unspent funds carried over from one
funding period (usually a triennium) to the next to facilitate the University’s longer-term planning and new
developmental needs. The balance of the GDRF at the end of a funding period should not exceed 20% of
the University’s approved Recurrent Grants other than the Earmarked Grants for Specific Purposes for that
funding period, and any excess amount is refundable to UGC.

—RABREHRESERERPREER=ZF)RBAMTEES —BRPREABRETELERNES - —
B BREHRESPRCERUABERECEEHHMS(BHFABRIEEHMERINNESC=TRIR - T
BHRENSIEREABHEENEZEE -

$291 million of the UGC Matching Grants has been set aside as permanent endowment capital, to support
strategic initiatives such as endowed professorships, endowed scholarships and other indicated activities
in perpetuity. Only investment income from these permanent endowments will be used to fund these
programmes.

YEGRBHMEPTHN BN T EETEREBFESNELSE - LFREBMNZRIER - SEEMHIRE
i1 ~ BENREE LEMTEES - MZEFHEBEESH - ROtEAES RN ERES(T



12.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES RHBAERIRE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB IT5ITR)
The University

RE

2011 2010

Unlisted Shares, at cost JEETRRRM - AR 61,014 61,014

As explained in Note 1, the results of all subsidiaries including the following companies have not been consolidated
into the Group financial statements:-
UNFEE—FREAR - REBRRES MAFEIRR UL B RS U T M B ABIREATEAR S -

Name of company Place of Percentage of equity held Principal activity
incorporation FrBtEkstLE

and operation
stmpisry by the University by a subsidiary

AEETE Pk BASHNE HRBLENE B3R
The Chinese University of Hong Kong Note To sponsor, develop, promote and
Hong Kong Foundation &8 FzE encourage public participation in
Limited (“Foundation”) public services
BEPXARBESE & -~ BR - ([BELSRTELR
BRAT ( "BEEE" ) SHNHEE
Information Networking Hong Kong 100% To provide technology transfer
Laboratories Limited * &5 and investment holding
MBPEERARFABRAT) * RGBT RIREER
The Hong Kong School Hong Kong 100% To operate intranet services for
Net Limited * g schools in Hong Kong
BEEERMEAERAE * EEBREBRPEREE
PA Company Limited Hong Kong 100% To provide services which are
E8BIRAE T charitable and educational in
nature
REZERHEHEAR
HKIX Hong Kong Limited  British Virgin 100% Investment holding
Islands REER
RBERHE
The Hong Kong Internet Hong Kong 100% To provide internet services
eXchange Limited & Rt B BB ARTS
EEEFRE BRI
BRAT
CU Business Administration Hong Kong 100% Not yet commenced operation
Holdings Limited * & FRERAIRARE

PARBEZRBRAT
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Name of company Place of Percentage of equity held
incorporation FhatetgsLLE

and operation
HAESIR by the University by a subsidiary

Principal activity

NSIESEES s HASEHE HMBASRE IEXH
CUGEN Limited * Hong Kong 100% To commercialise research
hEEYRKAERAT * 'aBE outputs
ISRFARREFRIE
CUCAMed Company Limited Hong Kong 100% To promote Chinese medicine in
hARPEERZERAE aE Hong Kong
EEBHEEDE
The Hong Kong Institute of Hong Kong Note To develop an internationally
Biotechnology Limited 58 MitzE recognised biotechnology industry
HEEYMREHATER in Hong Kong
BRAT EEERREFRRUNEYNRE
I
IBSOmed Bioscience Limited Hong Kong 100% Dormant Company
ERBIEBRAE BE NEEAT
BPARRRCGRINBIRASE * People’s 100% To carry out research, technology
Republic transfer and related technical
of China services on advanced technology,
hEAR provide consulting service
HHNE on international technology
development, and manage owned
properties
BT S ~ {0 RARRE T
A% - BIFREHRIER AN - BEY
FHEmER
Asia Diabetes Foundation Hong Kong Note To organise activities and research
Limited * BE [ regarding diabetes on a non-profit

*  Companies not audited by KPMG.
* WAEIMIRE S LIFREFEBEIEISEHEAMARE -

Note: This is a company limited by guarantee without a share capital.

fist: WWASIR—FHERBRAE  WEHEMEL o
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13. ASSOCIATE BEQT

The Chinese University of Hong Kong - Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Community College Limited (the “Community
College”) is a company limited by guarantee with two members, being the University and the Tung Wah Group
of Hospitals (“TWGHSs”). Pursuant to an agreement dated 17 February 2003 (the “Agreement”), the University
and TWGHSs establish, operate and develop the Community College as a non-profit making post-secondary
education institution in Hong Kong.

According to the Memorandum of Association of the Community College and the terms of Agreement, the
University has no beneficial interest in any surplus assets of the Community College and is not required to finance
its operations or contribute to the shortfall of net assets since all responsibilities for financing the establishment
and recurring operations of the Community College rest with TWGHSs. Accordingly, the University’s financial
statements do not share any of the Community College’s net assets and results of operations.

BEPXAB-RE=[REDR( "HEDR., )ARASZAABRRE= ( "RE, MM SFTEMRN—RERE
REEAQT - RB=ZFF=F_F+LHRENHR( "HE. ) KABERETIFFNNRATHIL - BEERERMT
EERS—FE LHEHE -

kiEttEBRAA M A ERERNRERE LAFRR - XABRADHESRRHEE LFEES - MHSBkE RN
ERBNRERHE - TABRMIEAEEFPAMBANREZBHERESR  TESFER - LHREHE X
- RBISARERHEENED - ERERT - ABEMBHRR LIARRECHESRAIEENEIEELREER
BRENESIS -
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14. FIXED ASSETS ElR&E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUEYTF7T5IR)
The Group
REREERS
Equipment,
Construction Furniture Art
(Note [fizE) in and Fittings Collection
Land Buildings Progress &&fiE ~ &2 Eff Total
tith EE fEEIR PE ] WiEm B8
Cost %N
At 1 July 2010 “B-FF 336,848 4,054,817 392,845 2,532,457 13,791 7,330,758
g o=l = F5:53
Additions 1N - 71,522 769,704 161,997 509 1,003,732
Disposals HE - - - (48,194) - (48,194)
At 30 June 2011 1
~B=1B#8 336,848 4,126,339 1,162,549 2,646,260 14,300 8,286,296
Accumulated Depreciation RIEIFEE
At 1 July 2010 “E-FF 50,769 1,435,154 - 2,079,634 - 3,565,557
+tB—B%8
Charge for the Year TERE 7,732 113,432 - 202,267 - 323,431
Written Back on Disposal HE#Z DR - - - (44,516) - (44,516)
At 30 June 2011 B
~NB=1HB#8 58,501 1,548,586 - 2,237,385 - 3,844,472
Net Book Value at —8—-—-F5A=1+H
30 June 2011 IREFE 278,347 2,577,753 1,162,549 408,875 14,300 4,441,824
Cost |27 3
At 1 July 2009 “BENEF 336,848 3,725,893 264,971 2,391,929 13,478 6,733,119
+tBA—B#&
Additions by I} - 194,408 262,590 209,800 313 667,111
Transfers [EFE7 - 134,716 (134,716) - - -
Disposals HE - (200) - (69,272) - (69,472
At 30 June 2010 “E-TF
~NB=1B#8 336,848 4,054,817 392,845 2,532,457 13,791 7,330,758
Accumulated Depreciation RiEHTEE
At 1 July 2009 “BENE 43,037 1,328,388 - 1,958,951 - 3,330,376
+tB—B4%&8
Charge for the Year TEsE 7,732 106,948 - 189,350 - 304,030
Written Back on Disposal HER DS - (182) - (68,667) - (68,849)
At 30 June 2010 —B-FF
~B=1H#%8 50,769 1,435,154 - 2,079,634 - 3,565,557
Net Book Value at —B-8g5A=1+H
30 June 2010 IREFEE 13,791

286,079

2,619,663 392,845

452,823

3,765,201

Note: - Land refers to “Interest in Leasehold Land held for Own Use under Operating Leases”.
- The properties, including land and buildings, are located in Hong Kong. Leasehold land of the Shatin campus is granted by
the Government for use by the University under medium-term leases and is stated at nil value.
- Land and buildings include investment properties in Siu Tao Fung Shan, Shatin. The investment properties are stated at zero
cost and have a market value of approximately $130.7 million (2010: $107 million) at the end of the financial year.
- A property, categorised under Buildings, with carrying amount of $102 milion was pledged in the year of 2003 to secure an
interest-free loan from the HKSAR Govemment with current outstanding amount of $27.1 miillion.
MifeE: - DHEIEESERSHE TRIERA I
- FrEEREREDHNERITEEE - HBEE ZURA PSS R FRE FAR PR - MATRZATIE -
- DEEEHEADE/ ERILAHIEYISE » INATRATIR - RAMBEREEE - FEFREYRHEN S —R=TF
tHERCEE—EStEERT )
- EREERT - Hh—IBREER— SIS _EETAWES - ST =FERTRRRREEREER < IRERETER
FtEa—t&Emw-



14. FIXED ASSETS [ER&E (Continued £&)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A& IT5T)
The University
REB
Equipment,
Construction Furniture Art
(Note Ffiz¥) in and Fittings Collection
Land Buildings Progress z&fi ~ %8 ity Total
tith EE ERBIE  ARE Wi e B
Cost 5%
At 1 July 2010 “B-FF 336,848 4,050,121 378,449 2,525,442 13,192 7,304,052
tA—B#&eR
Additions a0 - 71,459 756,917 161,793 509 990,678
Disposals HE - - - (48,018) - (48,018)
At 30 June 2011 85—
~B=1HB#6% 336,848 4,121,580 1,135,366 2,639,217 13,701 8,246,712
Accumulated Depreciation RT&HTE
At 1 July 2010 “E-FF 50,769 1,434,721 - 2,073,030 - 3,558,520
+tH—B#&8
Charge for the Year ITEERE 7,732 113,312 - 202,021 - 323,065
Written Back on Disposal & Ei% - - - (44,340) - (44,340)
At 30 June 2011 _F—F
~NB=1B4E% 58,501 1,548,033 - 2,230,711 - 3,837,245
Net Book Value at —E——FxA=1+H
30 June 2011 IR FE 278,347 2,573,547 1,135,366 408,506 13,701 4,409,467
Cost 5%
At 1 July 2009 “ETNE 336,848 3,721,718 263,983 2,384,878 12,879 6,720,306
+tA—B#&R
Additions 1&h0 - 193,887 249,182 209,743 313 653,125
Transfers B - 134,716 (134,716) - - -
Disposals e - (200) - (69,179) - (69,379)
At 30 June 2010 “E-FTF
~NA=1+HB#%E 336,848 4,050,121 378,449 2525442 13,192 7,304,052
Accumulated Depreciation ZiEHiE
At 1 July 2009 “EBEFNE 43,037 1,328,061 - 1,952,533 - 3,323,631
+tHB—B#&8
Charge for the Year ITERE 7,732 106,842 - 189,071 - 303,645
Written Back on Disposal HEZ O - (182) - (68,574) - (68,756)
At 30 June 2010 —E5-8F
A~NB=1B#8R 50,769 1,434,721 - 2,073,030 - 3,558,520
Net Book Value at —E-FFXA=1+H
30 June 2010 IREFE 286,079 2,615,400 378,449 452,412 13,192 3,745,532
Note: - Land refers to “Interest in Leasehold Land held for Own Use under Operating Leases”.

- The properties, including land and buildings, are located in Hong Kong. Leasehold land of the Shatin campus is granted by
the Govemment for use by the University under medium-term leases and is stated at nil value.
- Aproperty, categorised under Buildings, with carrying amount of $102 million was pledged in the year of 2003 to secure an
interest-free loan from the HKSAR Govemment with current outstanding amount of $27.1 million.

Mizt: - TS EHEESHETHERLH -

- FMEERSREIMEEENTEEE - HBEFMEEEARHAPABMRYBAERE AN tEPRAZRRLY - I

LB AT -

- EEREERT - AP —-RREES—RFZEETNNE - RTFT=FER—HRARREMEER - RFRX

fERBER=TtE—1T8xT -
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15.

INVESTMENTS  #%&
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB IT5IR)
15.1 Non-Current Investments JERENIRE The Group The University
RERERRE REE
2011 2010 2011 2010
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities, HEEIHRGESES
at Amortised Cost TR EHm A
Unlisted JELT 2,839,679 2,417,884 2,730,601 2,282,552
Listed Overseas =5 iy} 149,752 273,702 100,000 200,000
2,989,431 2,691,586 2,830,601 2,482,552
Available-for-sale Securities ot ERES
Unlisted Equity Securities, IE LR AEES -
at Cost &R 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001
Less: Provision for Impairment B R EEE 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
1 1 1 1
Equity Securities Listed in Hong Kong, & LRSS
at Fair Value BAREE 237,908 217,417 - -
237,909 217,418 1 1
Limited Partnership Investments, [RESBIRE -
at Fair Value (Note 1) wAOEE (1) 1,172,158 990,669 1,172,158 990,669
Alternative Investments, FERE
at Fair Value (Note 2) BRAREE (FiEE2) 216,549 181,388 216,549 181,388
Investments in Unconsolidated JEFSMEAT
Subsidiaries, at Cost HUISE - REAS 61,014 61,014 - -

Non-Current Investments

IEREMRE

4,677,061 4,142,075 4,219,309 3,654,610




Note:(1) These investments represent the University’s equity interest as a limited partner in three limited partnerships
and are stated at fair value. The University intends to hold these investments for long-term purposes. The
main limited partnership, which started in July 2006, targets to maximise long-term risk-adjusted returns and
to achieve capital appreciation and invests in proprietary funds, discretionary accounts and partnerships
across a broad range of marketable and alternative asset classes, including both publicly traded and
privately held securities and obligations. The main limited partnership’s lock-up period of the initial capital
contributions ended on 31 December 2009 and 1 February 2010. A further injection of US$7.5 million was
made in January 2010 and this injection has a lock-up period of 2 years ending on 31 December 2011.

In July 2009 and February 2010, the University joined as a limited partner of two new limited partnerships
set up by the same General Partner. These new limited partnerships were set up to invest in highly selective
investment opportunities formerly held by limited partners of other limited partnerships who have been forced
to sell in the market at substantial discounts their high-quality limited partnership interests in private equity,
distressed credit, real estate, natural resources, etc. The capital commitments will be drawn over a period of
four to five years. The University’s commitments are about 4% and 1.8% of the respective total commitments
of these two new limited partnerships. The maximum sums payable by the University are US$14.9 million
and US$2.25 million respectively.

(2) The alternative investments represent the University’s investments arranged by an investment consultant
in the United States. These alternative investments include hedge funds, private equity funds and limited
partnership with a lock-up period of two to three years. The University intends to hold these alternative
investments for long-term purposes.

Mizt: (1) REBZRESBASHNRARER=ERESBERZHMUALBEEIIR - AEHEIRPHEIEFIREEE -
REIBNRESBIRER"ST F ARG - BRENENRG L EAMRARRESHNEN - WENERIEE -
b%ﬁéﬁﬁ@%é“gﬁ EREERPAEUZEHEENSHREASZEEES - HPTEELHEE R
AFENESLEY - ERTENRESBREETNHEHEPRS IR =FIANF+ZA=+—HBAZF—FFZ
B—HR#& - R=%F— $¢ B AEBRETEITEXRTRE—RESRIEE - MREESNEERRM
F EZF——F+ZRA=1+—H-

AENBRR=ZBENFLAR=ET-SF_ARERNMEFRESHIER - EMEMRNRESBIEENUL
REMRIERESHEBNEHE—ESBARH - EMERNRESBEEIERENEEREREBEN
HittfRESHIER - ELRESHEBRHRANRESBAEERTSEEERGMU LIRNHMIRESHIE
B - BERESBEERESELERE - BEEEGER - BittE - RRERSE - #ERBETIRENERFHA
Xft o REFRFRENRBEERDRAMESBIERENREFNERCOARBERZ—HR/\ » BN ERSHB—

FOEATEERAZBE=+HERT -

(2) ZERER—FHXENREBRRASRH  BFEHTEE - REREREESNHEME=FHTEPNRESH
REF - AEFEIRPHAZESERE -
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15. INVESTMENTS 3%# (Continued £8)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT IT5IR)

15.2 Current Investments RENRE

The Group The University
REREEES RES
2011 2010 2011 2010
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities, HEERIHBERKRES
at Amortised Cost RIS
Amount Matured Within One Year —FNEIEA
Unlisted LM 530,627((1,033,988| | 502,956| | 937,431
Listed L
in Hong Kong TEEB 23,374 48,987 - 27,916
Overseas 1£5859h 100,000 -| 100,000 -
654,001 1,082,975 602,956 965,347
Trading Securities, at Fair Value OEERS ' BAREE
Debt Securities E#5:E
Unlisted JELEM 438,670 184,546 438,670 184,546
Equity Securities B ANEE
Unlisted JELEm 25,384 18,624 25,384 18,624
Listed il 7]
in Hong Kong EEE 383,683| | 250,513|| 219,087 109,683
Overseas =85 692,909 | 566,051|| 692,712| [ 564,110
1,101,976 835,188 937,183 692,417
Unit Trusts BuEFRES
Unlisted JELEM 456,249|| 353,965|| 456,249| | 353,965
Listed L
in Hong Kong =EE 1,140 1,025 - -
Overseas E=85% 54,284 43,512 54,284 43,512
511,673 398,502 510,533 397,477
Equity Linked Notes IEE =S
Unlisted LT - 1,638 - -
2,052,319 1,419,874 1,886,386 1,274,440
Current Investments mEgE 2,706,320 2,502,849 2,489,342 2,239,787

Total Held-to-maturity Debt Securities (Including Non-Current and Current Investments) :

FEZIMREBESRR(SEERSLREIRE) :

The Group The University
AR KE
2011 2010 2011 2010

At amortised cost

At fair value

RIS

BAoREE

3,643,432 3,774,561 3,433,557 3,447,899

3,708,236 3,813,738 3,491,408 3,476,802




16.
16.1

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT ASSETS EERAGNEE
Defined Benefit Scheme and Employee Retirement Benefit Assets FEFRBIRESEAENEE

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme for staff under Terms of Service (C), The Chinese University
of Hong Kong Terms of Service (C) Staff Terminal Gratuity Scheme (“the TGS Scheme”). The TGS Scheme
was registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance on 15 November 1995. Since the
establishment of a MPF Scheme on 1 December 2000, the TGS Scheme has been closed to new members.
REBERS(R) ERBFRGESRM—EFREHRETE - Bl "&EBPXKRER)ERB RO ESLAEINMEEE.
EFEIZRBRFERMET SRR —NAAE+—B+H B - BB EEAR ST F+"F—HMIL
% WRENZABEFBEZMME -

As of 30 June 2011, the asset allocation of the TGS Scheme comprised Cash and Bank Deposit of $39.2 million
(2010 : $15.2 million) and Bonds with market value of $68.9 million (2010 : $98.6 million), approximately 36%
and 64% of the total asset value.

RIZ——FB=10 ' FEPXKE(R)ERBIFRGIESZIBEIIMESTENEERRIRELRITER=FIE
—tERx (CT-FF : —FTABR-1ER) ) AHEATFNEATERCE—FEF : A FN\EATER) NES ' £
AMEREENB D=1 K"+ M o

(i) The amount recognised in the Balance Sheet is as follows:
BERBRAERHEAT :

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAEEEFTHIR)
The Group and the University

BRI N KER
2011 2010
Present Value of Funded Obligations HREEIRE (97,630) (102,024)
Fair Value of Scheme Assets FEIREEC AREE 108,146 113,743
Net Unrecognised Actuarial Loss RERZIEEEIEFEE 11,729 9,987
Net Assets FEE 22,245 21,706

A portion of the above assets is expected to be recovered in the next twelve months. However, it is not
practicable to segregate this amount from the amount recoverable after more than one year, as future
reductions in contributions will also relate to future services rendered and future changes in actuarial
assumptions and market conditions.

B L E ESFERAR AR+ ZEAAKE - (ERRASBHHRERRE HRRNEEMELN © HlIUERESR
HAVERTS ~ BERRATISIRREE - RILER EFREISER—F7 alENEE D BEHIR

(i) Movements in the net assets recognised in the Balance Sheet are as follows:
HEERBRAERIZFEESEEE !

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAEHTFTTHITR) o
The Group and the University

REBERRKRE
2011 2010

Balance - Beginning of Year FEEES 21,706 20,253
Contributions paid to the Scheme ETEIHEER 1,012 1,141

Current Service Cost REERTEH A (1,349) (1,464)

Interest Cost LS (1,856) (2,440)

Expected Return on Scheme Assets sTEIRE E 2 TEHADR 2,732 4,216
Net (Expense)/Income recognised B(EH)WARER (473) 312

in the Statement of Comprehensive W RPIER

Income and Expenditure

Balance - End of Year TR 22,245 21,706
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The net expense/income was recognized in the line item of staff cost and benefits under Management and
General in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
BXHMWARZEEWZRPWEE R —KREBIERNES TEHMAEFPRET -

The actual return on plan assets of the Group and the University (taking into account all changes in the fair
value of the plan assets excluding contributions paid and received) was net expense of $3.4 million (2010: $2.6

million).

ABEELABRNGTEINEENERONR (BEMBEAEENLABEEZE - EFFECKEINHMAERT
gFlEm) - HEXHB=EN+ER (ST —FF: 25 TERT)

(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations:

REFZTEBRENES)

The Group and the University
REEERAE

2011 2010
Balance-Beginning of Year TR 102,024 104,764
Benefits paid by the Scheme st {TFl= (10,029 (8,980)
Current service cost REFERRTEA A 1,349 1,464
Interest cost MEMA 1,856 2,440
Actuarial Loss EEEE 2,430 2,336
5,635 6,240
Balance - End of Year FLRiER 97,630 102,024

(iv) The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 30 June 2011 are as follows:
REF——FA=THREEMFEAZEERERAT -

The Group and the University

REBELEE N RE
2011 2010
(% p.a.) (% p.a.)
Discount Rate at 30 June ANA=THZIFIRE 1.60 2.00
Expected Rate of Return on Scheme Assets sEINEEZTRRAEIFE = 2.50 2.60
Interest Credited on Plan Accounts FEEAGTEIREZFE 5.00 5.00
Average Future Salary Increase R ZFIFREFHIRIRE
Over 5 years AFA 2.50 2.50
Thereafter Hizg 2.50 2.50
Historical Information iB{F&#!
The Group and the University
REBERR N ARE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Present value of the HMREEIRE (97,630) (102,024) (104,764) (103,084) (97,359)
defined benefit obligations
Fair value of the Scheme FEIRNEEY 108,146 113,743 118,992 121,777 124,194
Assets [hEE
Surplus in the Scheme BEIFE 10,516 11,719 14,228 18,693 26,835
Experience adjustments arising FtEIEEZ &R (283) 663 397 (1,862 899
on scheme liabilities (B518)/ =8
Experience adjustments arising EtEIEEZ&5H (688) 1,626 510 693 (1,537)

on scheme assets

(B518)/ &R



16.2 Defined Contribution Scheme SREMFRETE!

17.

In addition to the defined benefit scheme disclosed in Note 16.1, the Group operates two defined contribution schemes,
i.e. The Chinese University of Hong Kong Staff Superannuation Scheme (1995) (“the 1995 Scheme”) and a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”). Total contributions of the Group and the University
to these defined contribution schemes for the year ended 30 June 2011 were $214.3 million and $212.9 million
respectively (2010: $234.7 million and $233.7 million). The 1995 Scheme is registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance.

FREfEE16.1FRiR RRVSREFIZRETE] - RABERNBHEHMESRHU TMERENFREHRETE - AIFEBEPXAREHEE
AEEEE(—HAAR) "—HAREEL ) FEEFRMLTEERFE TEEEETEL ) - —hA AR BIZIRERRINGT AR
BITEM - E=F——FER » AEERERRBAIWEASIFMEENERS ISR —THNE=TEBRA—R—TFT=
BATERCE-3F: _f=THEt+ERA-R=F=at+&8xN) -

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND BUIRER ~ FA(TFEIE R BB FRIE

OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUEHTFTT5IR)

The Group The University
NEREEE RE
2011 2010 2011 2010
Loan to Subsidiary BERFHEAS] 53,490 - 53,490 -
Other Loan Receivable HEWER 300 100 - -
Accounts Receivable FEUTIRFR 149,220 126,263 144,601 122,618

Sundry Deposits, Prepayments and HIBIRSE - EIMIER 45,061 42,793 40,182 41,925
Other Receivables EL{hEWER

Student Loans BLam 5,164 4,970 3,701 3,524
Current Accounts with Colleges ERRERIE - - 536 148
Current Accounts with Subsidiaries Pt AEERIR 5,661 5,543 5,661 5,543
Amount due from UGC HESERIR 115,825 2,384 115,825 2,384

374,721 182,053 363,996 176,142
Less: Non-Current portion of Accounts & : FEYUIRFR A FE{T

Receivable and Prepayments FIBEIETRENER S 53,790 100 53,490 -
Current portion of Accounts FEWIR TR A TR FRIE
Receivables and Prepayments mEnE s 320,931 181,953 310,506 176,142

The non-current loan to Subsidiary is unsecured, interest free and repayable in January 2021.
EREBERFHBLATIREIEN - RRLFER"S_—F—FBEE -

Student loans are granted to local undergraduates and postgraduate students of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. The amount of the loan depends on the student’s financial hardship and/or the loan received from the
“Tertiary Students Finance Scheme-Publicly-Funded Programmes” or the terms of the respective loan schemes.
All student loans are interest-free and repaid by instalments within a stipulated period or upon graduation. If the
borrower ceased to be a student of the University, all loans are then repayable immediately.

BEERZEMFEEPNABHNIRAMRRZHFINSBE - BHEFERFEBENMBTEER/EZBER
TENE LEREBEEMNEE., PARESHNERE - MENBEERNBREER - FEEFRREENRERS
B8 - MEEABR TRIEBENS G - FIAERELEEE -

The current accounts with Colleges and Subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and without fixed terms of
repayment. Other than part of Student Loans receivable, all of the other accounts receivables and prepayments
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

ERNMEBASERIRRBRIER - RRAEEEEENR - FREMIBEERI) - HttBKIRRREREE—FZRE
Ok iR ©
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AGEING ANALYSIS

FEWIRFRIRES 2 17

The balance of accounts receivable mainly comprises bills receivable and interest receivable, with the following
ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date :

FEMIRRAVERE T ERIERWIRERIE R BN S - TEESEREEANRR ST :
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TT5IR)

The Group The University
REREERE XE

2011 2010 2011 2010
Current F<ZEIHA 96,159 78.526 92,762 _ 75029
Less than 1 month past due PR—EB 48,173 37,361 47,014 37,306
1 to 3 months past due —EBRE=EAH 2,923 6,725 2,923 6,722
More than 3 months but less than 12 =EBRE+=EA 1,482 2,723 1,482 2,723

months past due

More than 12 months +ZEBUE 483 928 420 838
Amount past due BE|HA 53,061 47,737 51,839 47,589
Total FEUWIR R A8 EE 149,220 126,263 144,601 122,618

The Group and the University are satisfied that the past due amount is likely to be recoverable. No impairment

loss is provided for the year.

ARBEEAASZITRREIPNSEMETIERED - ALt - FERTFEATARRRIERER



18. CASH AND SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS WITH BANKS IRENEIRITISHITEZRR
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (M&HEFIT5IT)

The Group The University
REAERE K&
2011 2010 2011 2010
Cash in Hand and with Banks and RE - RITRHEM 129,413 82,126 124,240 39,592
Other Financial Institutions TSR TE R
Time Deposits EHREMR 4,229,722 4,019,876 3,603,159 3,566,951
Cash and Short-term Deposits in the  EEBEBERAMIRER 4,359,135 4,102,002 3,727,399 3,606,543
Balance Sheet IRITHEHAER
Less: Time Deposits with Original W B =Es
Maturity over Three Months BIEHATZA 3,323,136 2,207,138 2,930,167 2,122,565
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the RERERANIRE

Cash Flows Statement MIREEFEY 1,035,999 1,894,864 797,232 1,483,978

Cash and Short-term Deposits with Banks included the following amounts denominated in foreign currency:

RELRTRPEMARESHE - SFETIIMNERE:

(Expressed in thousands)  (LF{57R)

The Group The University
A R
2011 2010 2011 2010
Australian Dollars AUD BT 219 220 219 220
Pounds Sterling GBP R 857 957 57 157
Renminbi RMB NS 111,834 - 8,820 -
United States Dollars usD ETT 18,585 99,421 585 77,083

Note: Time Deposits of $15.9 million (2010: 18.2 million) was pledged to secure a loan from Government (Note
21(b)).
Mzt BE—TFARABATER(CE—FF: —FN\EZTHER)ZEHERCIEFFBAEREMZERFIEE21
(b)) °
19. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS  FE{TiRFR R EstE A
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUETF7T5IR)

The Group The University
FERELEE KREA
2011 2010 2011 2010
Student Fees Received in Advance JEWNEE L HMKE 322,724 198,313 322,724 198,313
Accounts Payable FE(TRTR 182,773 133,908 177,691 130,430
Other Creditors and Accruals HEMRARESTER 71,133 70,845 71,133 70,845
Deposits and Caution Money Received 1&E RIRILE 228,490 135,275 228,490 135,275
Current Accounts with Colleges ShRERIR - - 175,947 62,401
Current Accounts with Subsidiaries Mt EASIERIR 50,422 25,948 50,422 25,948

855,542 564,289 1,026,407 623,212

The Group and the University will settle the accouts payable and loans according to payment due date. For the
ageing analysis of the accouts payable, please refer note 30.1(ii).
ARBEZERABERBIREREREIRE - I EESE - BIRFIRERAS AT - SHSRIMIEES0.1() ©
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20. PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

21.

EERETERE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAY IT5IR)

The Group The University
REARERE KRER

2011 2010 2011 2010
Staff Leave Entitlements EERERTEF 324,308 317,871 324,180 317,754
Contract-end Gratuity and Long Service HinMERREHE 126,111 125110 124,642 123,210

Payments IR &
Retirement Benefit Scheme Contributions IRUREEFIHEFR 10,721 9,733 10,721 9,733
Salaries and Wages FERTE 52,391 5,787 52,391 5,787
513,531 458,501 511,934 456,484

Payable: F&f :

Within 1 year R—FA 314,005 260,607 312,848 259,160
After 1 year R—&F% 199,526 197,894 199,086 197,324

LOANS AND BORROWINGS  {&&

513,531 458,501 511,934 456,484

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB IT5IR)

The Group and the University

ANEAEER K KER
2011 2010
Bank Loans for On-Lending to Staff (Note a) HETHEE RITEM(FiEa)
Within One Year —FA 79,000 83,000
Secured Loans (Note b) BRI E M (FIEED)
Within One Year —FA 15,801 15,801
Between One and Two Years —E- 15,801 15,801
Between Two and Five Years “ERF 6,823 20,351
Over Five Years AFEMUE 4,549 6,824
42,974 58,777
Total Loans and Borrowings ETRAREE 121,974 141,777
Less: Repayable within One Year and B —ERRAEEZ 94,801 98,801
Included in Current Liabilities REIaE
Amount included in Non-current Liabilities —FREEZIERIBEE 27,173 42,976




Notes FfizE:

(a)

The bank loans for on-lending to staff are repayable within twelve months and renewable annually subject to
the Bank’s consent. At present, the loans bear interest at 2.5% below the lending bank’s best lending rate.
BEPHRERITENERRR—F - MEZRTEE - BFEHUEYN » REFERERRTREBEEMRFIRR
—BAE-

The secured loans comprise two start-up loans from the Government to provide self-financing full time accredited
post-secondary programmes. The loans are interest-free, repayable in equal annual instalments over 10 years
starting from October 2003 and November 2008 respectively. One of the loans, with an outstanding amount of
HK$27.1 million, is secured by properties with carrying value of $102 million and the other loan of $15.9 million
is secured by a time deposit of same amount.

HEPEMEEMERBATELNRIE - LAERNZEFBaRB RIS LRE - IIMEERIIBREER » 7
=TT =F+AR=FT/\F+—BRE2+FHYEE - Hh—ERE—T tE—TRITNER - KBLURE
E—RESZEETNYEBEERER  MBE-—EERBEBEB—TRAENTE - ABLAEEHENEHAFRERIEHE -

22. DEFERRED INCOME IEFEUL S
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT 7T5I7R)
The Group and the University
REBERE N KB
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from Others 2011 2010
IEERA&EIE and Government Total Total
AA&I Block  Agencies
Allocation Funds
HEEmbnEen
INEE ~ M8 - 4B
Research Others RNEIRE - BAFHE
iR Hith R B Hith B FEEL]
Balance - Beginning HR AR 241171 212,343 167,323 46,010 6,679 673,526 590,750
of Year
Subventions Received/ BW/FEW 199,038 140,149 321,282 57,876 12,173 730,518 745,036
Receivable &hn
Recognised as income ZAFRER (157,906) (132,578) (56,012)  (66,789) (12,651) (425,936) (401,712)
in the year A
Transferred (to)/from  E(F)EBIE (5,748) (7,528) (398,191)  (4,283) 110 (415,640) (260,548)
Deferred Capital Funds BRES
Balance - End of Year HR#R#58R 276,555 212,386 34,402 32,814 6,311 562,468 673,526
To be recognised: 1SHEERTE -
Within 1 year —FR 161,159 85,241 34,402 32,814 6,311 319,927 463,320
After 1 year —Fi& 115,396 127,145 - - - 242,541 210,206
276,555 212,386 34,402 32,814 6,311 562,468 673,526
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23. DEFERRED CAPITAL FUNDS BEEEREE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L&Y TFTT5I7R)

The Group and the University

REBERRAE
Earmarked Grants Capital Grants Grants from Others Total
SRR MEE and Government
AA&I Block  Agencies
Allocation Funds
HEminse

GE ~ N -~ #HE
Research Others REETHE BUFHAE
Rlar Hfih EEREITR e b Hith b

Balance - 1 July 2009 —EBFhE
tHA—B%&8R 5,589 17,539 1,889,373 3,622 22,302 1,938,425

Transfer from/(to) Deferred ~ #EB/(ZE)ELE 6,884 31,078 223,050 (195) (269) 260,548
Income Wz

Transfer to the Statement of BEZEWRZ R (4,453) (7,469) (89,845)  (3,961) (325) (106,053)
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Balance - 30 June 2010 =Z—FfF
~BZ=+H%&E 8,020 41,148 2,022,578 (534) 21,708 2,092,920

Transfer from/(to) Deferred ~ BE/(E)IEE 5,748 7,528 398,191 4,283 (110) 415,640
Income Wgz

Transfer to the Statement of BEZMEWKZRIR (4,283) (12,186) (94,152)  (7,684) (145)  (118,450)
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Balance - 30 June 2011 —E——5F
~BA=1+H%&8% 9,485 36,490 2,326,617 (3,935) 21,453 2,390,110




24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to the publicly funded nature of the University
and its four constituent Colleges and the composition
of their Council (being drawn from private and public
organisations), the University and its four constituent
Colleges have received from time to time donations
from University Council members, key management
personnel and companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them. The receipts of such donations
have all been individually reported to the Council
and approved in accordance with the University’s
financial regulations.

All transactions relating to the purchases of
goods and services and capital projects involving
organisations in which a member of the University’s
Council may have an interest are conducted during
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.

In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
there are the following material related party
transactions:

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24.

KBS R 5

AABNLHEMNEKRSERTIBEARER, FIUERES
REEREZNERLERE - ABLERSEFHRIME
RESME ' KEFEEWAS - REEZEHINATHZ
HEAFTENASTWEMEN - BLIBRE 2 Al EIHA
BREGURIEABIHFE R ERERI
ABEEREFBETRENRERS MERIER 6
HATRABRESME BN SREERNBERN - BELL
RGIEBA BN BRAEIEEIRBIEFET -
PRESMBREEMMORRENRS REGER - I
BUTHEESRS:

(UEBTTIIR)

The University

K&
2011 2010
(i) Income received from Subsidiaries (i) RMBLASNEEATESHN
and Associate Yrzs
Service fees and rental charges RIEENEE

25,730

The Group and the

16,147

University
REEENAKE
2011 2010
(i) Key Management Personnel (i) FEEBASHEE
Compensation
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits e MHMERESET 39,857 37,135
Post-employment benefits RIREF 4,435 4,125
44,292 41,260
The Group and the
University
REERRAE
2011 2010
(i) Loans to Related Parties (i) BT RABES
Loans to key management under the AEBHHEEREETET
University’s Staff Loan Scheme (Note 25) TEEEAR(MEE25)
Beginning of the year REH 4,880 3,550
Net loans granted during the year REARAZEER 1,270 1,330
End of the year REL 6,150 4,880
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25.

26.

27.

STAFF LOANS 25. HHEEFR

Staff loans, with interest at prime rate minus 2.5% ARERUEMFTEERAEBRNETEINMNHHTEE

at present, are available to eligible staff members of HEEMREREEIRBEHAE - BRIEESZE
the retirement scheme(s) operated by the University. EENEE > SlZARERNSEFENSSIIER
The loan is repayable upon demand or at the expiry BEAEERTEE o

of loan term due at the end of each calendar year
unless renewed by the University.

COMMITMENTS i
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LAE¥TF5T5lIR)

Commitments outstanding at 30 June 2011 not provided for in the financial statements are as follows:

REB——FAB=1H » REMBHRRBHERFREIFAT

The Group The University
RERERE RE
2011 2010 2011 2010
Capital Expenditure Commitments  BZ&IE
Contracted for B4 1,772,086 842,984 1,746,367 806,675
Authorised but not Contracted for CIFEERESEL 849,455 2,268,240 832,769 2,246,827

2,621,541 3,111,224 2,579,136 3,053,502

Operating Expenditure Commitments & FHIE
Contracted for B4 149,518 160,128 149,518 160,128

2,771,059 3,271,352 2,728,654 3,213,630

OPERATING LEASE RECEIVABLES MEW{E&THE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT IT5ITR)

At 30 June 2011, the total future minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:

REB——FA=1H  REFIRRNEERE - HREUNSEBEWABESFTAT

The Group The University
NEARZED KRER
2011 2010 2011 2010
Within one year —FRN 9,610 10,670 7,552 8,966
Two to five years “ERfF 4,005 5,496 3,837 5,344

13,615 16,166 11,389 14,310




28.

29.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS REHEHE
(BT THIT)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

At 30 June 2011, the total of future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating leases is as

follows:

REF——FXA=1H - REFIRRNEERE - RECNSERERERH AT :

The Group The University
REAELED RE

2011 2010 2011 2010

Within one year —FA 18,540 17,496 18,264 17,496

Two to five years “EhF 5,185 19,195 5,162 19,195

23,725 36,691 23,426 36,691

Operating lease charges for the year zkiFpssicasig 19,052 11,517 18,799 11,517
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 29. BLRER

The University is a government subvented tertiary
education institution established under the laws
of HKSAR which objects are to provide learning
and research in wide range of undergraduates and
postgraduate programmes in technology, science,
commerce, arts and other areas. Its activities are
mainly funded by government grants, tuition fees,
donations, income generated from self-financing
activities and investment income.

The University defines capital as including various
general and restricted funds balances. The various
funds of the University represent the accumulated
unspent balance of subventions, fees income,
donations and investment returns. These funds are
managed according to the relevant grant and funding
conditions, where applicable, and the University’s
investment and financial management guidelines
and procedures are established in accordance
with the relevant statutes of the University with the
view of meeting the objects of the University and
safeguarding the University’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

There has been no change in the University’s
capital management practices as compared to prior
year. The University is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements, except for the
balance of GDRF as disclosed in note 11.

FARBEETEEIITEREEE TN —FREBRE
BIVE FHERIE - STERAETHRERMRIRRER
M~ B2 - B3R - XBREMEENHE RIS - X
BREBTERHBRNMHEE - B8 - BENE - 8
BEBEBNRARREOHREER)

ABNEFERBE—RESNERAESE - KENF
IBEEHETREANERNHEE - WE - BER
AR E WY - ZEFEEERIEHEELERN
BN RIEMHVIFIEE » TIRE - MBEEEES IR
EFEREASEANRETEUHERABNER
RAEERBAFEEEES -

PRETEE 11 PRI EEM — R A B RERESR I - KBHN
EFXEEBREEFER - WRHNE - MALEARR
HIRERISFRIEMEVERZER
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30.

30.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Financial instruments of the Group and the University
include bank deposits, investment in debt securities,
equity securities, unit trusts, limited partnerships
and alternative investments, which have exposure
to credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency
and equity price risks arising in the normal course
of the Group’s and the University’s operations.
These risks are managed by the Group’s and the
University’s financial management policies and
practices described below.

Bank deposits, investment in debt securities,
equity securities and unit trusts

(i) Credit risk

The Group’s and the University’s exposure
to credit risk is mainly attributable to the
deposits they maintained with various financial
institutions and investment securities held by
fund managers, including held-to-maturity debt
securities and trading securities. The Group
and the University established their guidelines
to minimise the credit risk associated with these
financial assets. Held-to-maturity debt securities
are predominatly with minimum credit ratings
of “Aa3/AA” as assigned by international credit
rating agencies at the time of purchase. Trading
securities are all of good investment grade
and are held through appointed professional
investment managers who would manage the
portfolios through comprehensive monitoring
systems. The Group and the University have
no significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties.

Internal policies have also been set up to reduce
credit risk associated with bank deposits. Such
policies do not only restrict deposits to be placed
at Authorised Institutions (Note) of good credit
ratings but also address concentration risk by
limiting the total amount deposited with each
institution.

Credit risk associated with loans and other
receivables is immaterial to the Group and
the University and all doubtful receivables are
adequately provided for.

(Note: Authorised Institutions are deposit-taking
institutions that are licensed by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority to operate in Hong Kong.)

30. ERERERRAAEE

AREBEERABNEMTREOUERTER - BFES -
RS - BEfSREENRE - RESBREASE
124 - TAREFTD - ELERMTAMEHNERERE
EERR - REERER - FIRER - SNERBRLRE
BRER - AERIERABERATIINEREERRK
HEREE T LU S B

30.1 SRITERM - BHES - RAESRBEUEREZNRE

(i) EERERE

ABRERASHEHNEERRERZRBFHRR
FREMBHEBNTEREESRECEFRFNESR
& aERAENMAEHRESATEERRES - KX
BRELABEHTHERES SRR EE RN
EERREBERE - BARNGHEENNERSE
BARNRERFIRERERESTREBTE
#9 “Aa3” / "AA” #R ; FTEOEERFIIBRIFR
EfRl - IS BRENERRELEEREREZEN
BERAREE - AEBENABNEE R RES
MEPRELEEE - MESHRNRZHNRST °

BRERTERNEEER - KBRERAENA
HBERABHERETRBRFEETRAR I
1B - ARSERIEFIEESEFRIERR - S
BITEREETERE

ERERAEthEWIRFIERENEEERR 2K
W REBBRELRAKBHAEOWNERNCELE
$4 i o

(i RERB R R SRR TS
EIBBIRNT RN © )



(i) Liquidity risk

The Group and the University have sufficient
funds to finance its ongoing working capital
requirements. Measures are implemented to
regularly monitor the current and expected
liquidity requirements of the Group and the
University, ensuring that sufficient cash reserves
and readily realisable marketable securities are
maintained to meet its liquidity requirements.

The following table presents the earliest
settlement dates of the Group’s and the
University’s financial liabilities at the balance
sheet date, which are based on contractual

(i) mENE SRS

AERERABHEANRSES URHHEZEMN
T IRARAIEHERRENARBBEENT
2 DEREAEARDES RIRERERNTES
2% LIBEFREZE -

UT—BRIEABREIABEEABRACE
HRFAZMENY  KBRSGHCKRFRRERE

(BFEUSHFRATNNRZH - NEHFRE
FEFRAEFNE - IRREESGRANZFET

undiscounted cash flows (including interest mEtE)
payments computed using contractual rates or,

if floating, based on current rates at the balance

sheet date):

(@) The Group ~ REZEEES

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (WA TT5lm)
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

RENZAKRITVRRERHE

2011
Balance  Within 1 Year More than More than 2 5 Years Total
Sheet or 1 Year but Years butless and amount
carrying on Demand less than than More
amount 2 Years 5 Years
BEEER —&R wE—F #Be-—E IF
IEERE WEER EoR-E @dRAEE ME @
Accounts Payable and  FE{iRFR K fEST 855,542 855,542 - - - 855,542
Accruals &H
Provision for Employee {g5 {&#%&fi§ 513,531 314,005 182,546 16,980 - 513,531
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings &R 121,974 96,776 15,801 6,823 4,549 123,949
Deferred Income IEIEW 562,468 319,927 242,541 - - 562,468
2,053,515 1,586,250 440,888 23,803 4,549 2,055,490
2010
Balance  Within 1 Year More than More than2 5 Years Total
Sheet or 1 Year but Years butless and amount
carrying on Demand less than than More
amount 2 Years 5 Years
=1-3==F —#R BE—F BBR-F Fite2
EESE 2 WRER  @Eopr-—E BOREE ME  8F
Accounts Payable and FE{TIRFR K FERT 564,289 564,289 - - - 564,289
Accruals &H
Provision for Employee &S f&%%Efi 458,501 260,607 176,766 21,128 - 458,501
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings &3k 141,777 100,876 15,801 20,351 6,824 143,852
Deferred Income IEFEU = 673,526 463,320 210,206 - - 673,526

1,838,093 1,389,092 402,773 41,479 6,824 1,840,168
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(b) The University KREA

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(UEBETFTIE)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

RENKRIFRRETEE

2011
Balance  Within 1 Year More than More than 2 5 Years Total
Sheet or 1 Year but Years butless and amount
carrying on Demand less than than More
amount 2 Years 5 Years
BEARER —FRN Ee—5 BE-F hf
IREE 8 RER  EORZE EoREE ML #agm
Accounts Payable and FE{TIRFA R FEST 1,026,407 1,026,407 - - - 1,026,407
Accruals &H
Provision for Employee {ES &% 511,934 312,848 182,166 16,920 - 511,934
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings  f&# 121,974 96,776 15,801 6,823 4,549 123,949
Deferred Income IEEW 562,468 319,927 242,541 - - 562,468
2,222,783 1,755,958 440,508 23,743 4,549 2,224,758
2010
Balance  Within 1 Year More than More than2 5 Years Total
Sheet or 1 Year but Years butless and amount
carrying on Demand less than than More
amount 2 Years 5 Years
BESEBEXR —HFR BE—F BBRTF hf
EESE W WEER  EoncE EonagE UE @@

Accounts Payable and BE(TIRFAEETER 623,212

Accruals
Provision for Employee {EE {BH%(H 456,484
Benefits
Loans and Borrowings & 141,777
Deferred Income EREW & 673,526

623,212 - - - 623,212

259,160 176,196 21,128 - 456,484

100,876 15,801 20,351 6,824 143,852
463,320 210,206 - - 673,526

1,894,999

(iii) Interest rate risk

As to interest-bearing financial assets, the Group
and the University hold fixed-rate bank deposits
and debt securities.

The Group’s interest-bearing financial liabilities
at the balance sheet date are not significant. The
Group does not expect short-term fluctuations in
market interest rates will have significant impact
to the Group’s results of operations.

1,446,568 402,203 41,479 6,824 1,897,074

(iii)  FZREFH
HRESENBWSENEREE  KBBENKES
R EEEMRTERNERRES -

ABEERNEERERATZAEANTFEEME
& - REREBEPMSARSHRENI A ZHA
BRENEBERBNEANTE -



During the year under review, the Group and
or the University have no interest rate risk from
interest-bearing loan since the only interest-
bearing loan taken out by the University is for the
sole purpose of operating a staff loan scheme
and any fluctuations in market interest rates only
affect the staff loan borrowers.

The following tables indicate the effective interest

REMBEE » KEEELIAEBIYEEREEER
MZRFR RN E  AEELEEEERZAN
STEEE  MEENNREREHERNWET
HIE o

UT—BRIEERASUAEHEECBREFR

rates of these interest-bearing financial assets:

(a) The Group FEREL

HlE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB TT5IR)

2011 2010
Effective Carrying Effective  Carrying
Interest Amount Interest Amount
Rate Rate
% p.a. % p.a.

BRFNR  IRESH

BIRFMNR RESHE

Fixed Rate Notes and Deposits

(b) The University XE

EEEBAER 2.21 7,873,153 2.23 7,794,436
2011 2010
Effective Carrying Effective  Carrying
Interest Amount Interest Amount
Rate Rate
% p.a. % p.a.

BEFANR  REEHE

BEFANR RESH

Fixed Rate Notes and Deposits

EREBNEFNR 2.26 7,036,716

2.26 7,014,849
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(iv)

As at 30 June 2011, itis estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group’s
surplus by approximately $21,149,000 (2010:
$20,099,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the balance sheet date
and had been applied to interest rate risk for
investments in short-term time deposits in
existence at that date. The Group may be
exposed to interest rate risk indirectly via its
holding in the investment portfolios which
hold debt instruments. Increase/Decrease
in investment income from these investment
portfolios arising from interest rate change
however is not considered in the sensitivity
analysis above due to insufficient information
provided by fund managers. The 50 basis points
increase/decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date.

Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Group and the
University is Hong Kong dollars (HKD). Both the
Group’s and the University’s monetary assets are
denominated mainly in HKD and United States
dollars (USD) while their monetary liabilities
are predominantly in HKD. Those assets and
liabilities demoninated in currencies other than
HKD and USD are not material.

About 30% of the Group’s and 32% of the
University’s financial assets (including cash,
bank deposits with banks, debt, equity securities
and investments) are denominated in USD,
but it is considered that risk of movement in
exchange rate between the HKD and the USD
is insignificant as the HKD is currently pegged to
the USD under the linked exchange rate system
adopted by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region.

The following tables show the amounts of
financial assets (including cash, bank deposits
with banks, debt and investments) denominated
in various currencies at the balance sheet
date:

R=®——FXA=+E - BRAERETEEE
ERETE - WHEEIEIEHET - ASER
RERNERBEEIHS =T —E—HIEAT
TH—B—BF : FEAMATR) °

i RES TN ERRBAIRNETNEER
BERAHE - LERARKERERZENRTER
FRPTEZNFRER - ARESEERERHE
HEN > WA RSIMYZFREASTEEZR
BWmE - AliRBeERMU EMNSIRES P -
RS A+ R FRIEEEEHEETRFEEE
BERH BN RS IETRE S BRI -

(iv) SHEERR

AEBRERABNINEERREY - ERHEEL
BEBEEETRE  MEBUHEBEUEERE - &8
MEENSEMUIIMEEESEILAFAK

ARBEERABHBLURTREEEBNERNEE
BRIRMEEREERBENEAC=TRESZ=
TZ(EERE - FRRRGTENR - FiE - KRR
&) - BEEEFEHTRERFBRETERESRT
AUBHERLERFIET - KEEEER BRI B IEE
RBECEBRAERX -

UT-BRILEEAGRAUZSEERREEE
BHEMEECEH (2ERE - FRRETHNE
R~ BEARE)



(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(a) The Group REREL

Fole

(UEBTFTIR)

2011 2010
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
=8 ILREHE =8 LARERE
Currency &g EMNBRL ENBDL
HKD B 7,311,267 61 7,102,984 65
uSshD E v 3,568,249 30 3,323,940 31
RMB AR 518,235 5 - -
Euro ERTT 71,189 1 62,898 1
Japanese Yen H 44,196 1 50,448 1
Pounds Sterling e 59,011 1 50,382 1
Others Hith 109,355 1 95,260 1
11,681,502 100 10,685,912 100
(b) The University RE
2011 2010
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
=8 LRERE &8 ILRTHE
Currency &g EMBDLL ENBEALL
HKD g 6,410,476 60 6,340,124 66
usD EVH 3,267,202 32 2,913,153 30
RMB AR 390,594 4 - -
Euro ERTT 70,339 1 62,898 1
Japanese Yen Hit 43,667 1 50,448 1
Pounds Sterling REE 48,406 1 40,998 1
Others Hith 108,044 1 93,319 1
10,338,728 100 9,500,940 100

About 5% of the Group’s and 4% of the University’s
financial assets are denominated in RMB, which
is expected to appreciate. As the percentages of
financial assets denominated in currencies other
than HKD and USD to the total financial assets
of the Group and the University were both 4% as
at 30 June 2011 (2010: both 4%), exposure to
foreign currency risk is not significant.

REBELABHEUARBLEEEBNERMEE
ARIAMEENEERBENEICALEAZME » X
BEBRARBEHE E=F——FA=1H "
ARBEERARBLUBERRTUNMNEREECE
MEEGRENEEEERFEIRE(CES—FF
EREAN)  AABRERABOREEAZNINE
[E B AR o
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(v) Equity price risk

The Group and the University are exposed to
equity price risk arising primarily from equity
investments and unit trusts classified under
trading securities (see note 15). The equity
price risk of the investments is managed by
professional managers through their own risk
management and assessment policies. The
investment managers’ investment strategies
are governed by the University’s investment
and asset allocation guidelines. The Group and
the University also monitor the risk exposure by
reviewing periodic reports from the custodians
and investment managers. The Group’s and the
University’s investments in equity securities are
spread over major stock markets in the world.

At the balance sheet date, if the prices of the
respective listed equity securities and unit
trusts had been 5% higher/lower, with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s and the
University’s surplus for the year would have
been increased/decreased by $68,496,000
(2010: $53,926,000) and $44,121,000 (2010:
$35,865,000) respectively as a result of the
changes in fair value of the listed equity securities
and unit trusts.

The following tables show the breakdown of
the values of the Group’s and the University’s
investments in listed equity securities and unit
trusts by trading market at the balance sheet
date:

(v) BRRERERE

ARBRELASBEHNEREREAREZRRE S
BRUEBEESF THRTESREMEEES (M
i15) o REERERBERRECIEEBMFIF
IR R EEBURESEE - M REERE
HIFT R ERBERUARBABAHTNRENREE
AEHES|  REBERABNEERTEREB R
ERIENERREUTEER - KBEERAEM
FANRAESREVEAREESIMRERSEE
ek

REERERAD  EREESAENERESNE
BEATHRER A » EEMM—UITTERFIMHES
FEMERT - RERELABRFANELR - 81
EhRFRESAEMERESNATEEES - 2
BUENAR D S TFNERTABRARTR(CEE—FE
AF=BA+ZEBATR)ANTHE—+Z&8—F
T(=E—FF  =FRENTAEATR)

UT—BRIILEERRRAOABEERABRETE
BREMEC LMREREMEEERNEE -

(@) The Group REERE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (AEHTF7T5lI7R)
2011 2010
Equities Unit Trusts Total Equities Unit Trusts Total
Market 5 EAES BuEEEE AH EAEs BLuEREE B
United States ~ 3<E] 429,822 54,284 484,106 328,544 43,512 372,056
Hong Kong &8 621,592 1,140 622,732 467,930 1,025 468,955
Europe R 147,155 - 147,155 119,440 - 119,440
Japan H7s 43,999 - 43,999 49,756 - 49,756
Asia Pacific KE - 53,232 - 53,232 49,293 - 49,293
excluding BEM
Hong Kong BRI
and Japan
Others Hith 18,701 - 18,701 19,018 - 19,018
1,314,501 55,424 1,369,925 1,033,981 44,537 1,078,518




(b) The University FE2

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (W& TTHlImR)

2011 2010
Equities  Unit Trusts Total Equities  Unit Trusts Total
Market s EAESs EMfEREE @F AES BAEEES B
United States E S| 424,668 53,635 478,303 328,544 43,512 372,056
Hong Kong &HE 144,374 - 144,374 109,683 - 109,683
Europe R 145,392 - 145,392 119,440 - 119,440
Japan =F: 43,472 - 43,472 49,756 - 49,756
Asia Pacific SEAXE 52,400 - 52,400 47,352 - 47,352
excluding B5ER
Hong Kong HaspRSb
and Japan
Others Hith 18,477 - 18,477 19,018 - 19,018
828,783

53,635 882,418 673,793 43,512 717,305

30.2 Limited partnerships and alternative

investments

There may be frequent short-term fluctuations in the
value of the limited partnerships and the alternative
investments during the durations of the investment
horizons. Both types of investments are under
the close scrutiny of the University Administration
and the University’s Finance Committee and
Investment Sub-committee. Professional fund
managers handling these investments have ample
experience in administering endowment funds of
prestigious private universities in the United States.
They manage the investment portfolios by using
comprehensive monitoring systems to minimise
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk and equity price risk, where applicable,
of the underlying assets through diversifications
of their investment portfolios, frequent on-site due
diligence visits, proprietary quantitative analyses
and other relevant measures. The funds deployed
for these two categories of investment are of
non-UGC source, mainly comprising donations
and University’s own cash reserves. Short-term
diminution in the fair values of these investments
will not have significant impact on the University’s
daily operations.

30.2[RESBRERBERE

REGHREASBRENEEERRIRENPORE
BHARKE - ABEEBNMABHMBEEEGRHEETH
REZSERINERIMERENSD - AEEMFR
ENEEREEREEXEARMIABEFLERES
HUAEER - fhFIEB BB MAVEERSE (MIERE -
EREMEE - BIEINE) BEREREESASE
EEMRANGE - RBESE - FIR - MERREER
HER - EMERENEELIFREBFAABHEE
WZESRHENEEEHME - TBXZRBINKRER
BABHFEE - WERENEHRELAZHEX
BHNEEEE -
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(i) The following table shows the amounts of asset

i) UT—BRILNEERRRORESBIREEE

allocation in the limited partnerships at the HSEHSEE :

balance sheet date:
The Group and the University REBEERE T RER
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MA&#EFIToIm)

2011 2010
k| % k| %

Hedge Funds HPEE 261,308 23 279,310 28
Cash RE 32,664 3 27,931 3
Private Equity FAEpGHE 265,405 23 185,928 19
Real Estate EithE 116,914 10 77,248 8
Fixed Income EBWA 108,879 9 130,345 13
United States Equity ESEIlES - - 46,552 5
International Equity IRBRRRE 163,318 14 37,241 4
Emerging Markets Equity ~ FFEiEEE - - 46,552 5
Natural Resources RARER 101,643 9 77,248 8
Others Hifth 122,027 9 82,314 7
Total @ 1,172,158 100 990,669 100

(ii) The following table shows the amounts of

(i) UT—BRIIEREEREROSEREEED

asset allocation in alternative investments foEEE -
at the balance sheet date:
The Group and the University REBERAEA
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (W& EEFTTHIR)
2011 2010

Er L] % i %
Hedge Funds HinEE 156,830 72 141,844 78
Real Estate EithE 36,210 17 25,945 14
Private Equity TSR 23,509 11 13,599 8
Total s 216,549 100

181,388

100



30.3 Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 30
June 2011 and 2010.

The fair values of listed equity, debt securities and
unit trusts are based on quoted market bid prices
at the balance sheet date.

The fair values of unlisted equity-linked notes are
based on the valuations provided by the counterparty
financial institutions.

Fair values for held-to-maturity debt securities are
based on their trading values in the secondary
market on or nearest to the balance sheet date.

Since the limited partnership investments and the
alternative investments are not readily marketable,
the University management determines their fair
values based on the capital account statements
provided by General Partner of the Partnerships and
the administrators or investment managers of the
alternative investments, respectively. However, such
estimated fair values may differ from the values that
would have been determined had an open market
for these investments existed.

The amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, require disclosures relating to fair value
measurements of financial instruments across three
levels of a “fair value hierarchy”. The fair value of
each financial instrument is categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant
to that fair value measurement. The levels are
defined as follow:

- Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments

- Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices
in active markets for similar financial instruments,
or using valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly based
on observable market data

- Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input
is not based on observable market data

The table below analyses financial instruments,
measured at fair values as at the respective
balance sheet dates, by the level in the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements
are categorised:

30.3 AREE

FAEEMIAER-E-SFR"F——FA=1HH
IREMEIYERA REEREADH

EHiER - ERESLEMERESNAAEERRE
EfREERERENHEEAEMEIE

FEERHREHINREE AR EER AR REER
REMMGESE -

FAEENPAREBRSNAAEERRBEERER
Bl T = FESTISMNERERARE

HRRESBRENSERESAELRTEER ' K
BEREREHIIRNAAREZRERESBARSER
BRI HESEENTIFZHIERIRER - 798 -
&L ETEREELARMSETEENEBEEEER -

BEMBHREENETRIEE "ERMIA KT, 2R
#B=E “ARBERBR" FRKETHEEMIENS
REEE  SEEMITENAAEEERIZRER
EREREKTFRBAR=ZESFREPZ— - Z@FEN
ERUT -

- Eh— (BEFR)  2EMIEZLERRTS LN
HEIA R EE (R HE

- ERZ - ZERMTAEZLUEERTS LAEULRE
B3R(E - RIETHIS DO ik AR R RRIAEHRIY
HERITETRE

- HR= (REER)  ZEMIAERUHBMGAERIS
MikE  EPERNEKBAEEDHES ETHREN
g

UT—BRIILEEGRRAAAEEMENEH
TREARBERERELUTOHM

75



76

(a) The Group REREEES
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT IT5R)
2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FiR— FR= Fih= ]
Trading Securities o E5EZ 2,052,319 - - 2,052,319
Available-for-sale Securities ot HEEE 237,908 - - 237,908
Limited Partnership Investments [RE&BILE - - 1,172,158 1,172,158
Alternative Investments BIEIGE - - 216,549 216,549
Total gy 2,290,227 - 1,388,707 3,678,934
2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
El— EH= EH= ]
Trading Securities EEEELE:] 1,419,874 - - 1,419,874
Available-for-sale Securities ot HEEAs 217,417 - - 217,417
Limited Partnership Investments [RE&EIRE - - 990,669 990,669
Alternative Investments BIEIRE - - 181,388 181,388
Total Pt 1,637,291 - 1,172,057 2,809,348
(b) The University AKE2
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB TTHE)
2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EFR— FiR= FiR= o E]
Trading Securities oOE5E 1,886,386 - - 1,886,386
Limited Partnership Investments [RESEBIRE - - 1,172,158 1,172,158
Alternative Investments BIEINE - - 216,549 216,549
Total yayy 1,886,386 - 1,388,707 3,275,093
2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
El— EH= Fih= b
Trading Securities FEEE 1,274,440 - - 1,274,440
Limited Partnership Investments [RESEBIRE - - 990,669 990,669
Alternative Investments BIEIRE - - 181,388 181,388
Total yagy 1,274,440 - 1,172,057 2,446,497



During the year there were no transfers between FREBEBESR—HESH_ZEFHE o
financial instruments in Level 1 and Level 2.

The following table shows a reconciliation from MU T—EBRIITABEELABREASALBEEFR=MNE
the beginning balances to the ending balances FITEBCEYIEFEREIRES) !

as for the fair value measurements in Level 3 of

the fair value hierarchy for both the Group and

the University:

The Group and the University REEERARE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LLBETTTHIR)

2011

Investment securities

BHRE

Opening balance as at 1 July 2010 BRtDASeR 1,172,057

Total gains included in the Statement of EaEEEEiZRD 190,235
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure AR

Additions 18R 26,415

Closing balance as at 30 June 2011 HAFRASES 1,388,707

2010
Investment securities

Opening balance as at 1 July 2009 HA#DESER 875,090

Total gains included in the Statement of EaEEEERZRTD 143,997
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure BYZE I 5

Additions R 152,970

Closing balance as at 30 June 2010 HASR&SER 1,172,057

There were no transfers of financial instruments ~HZEZZ——&FA=1H ' AEBEELABNER=CE
into or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for  ghigENEEEMEAGEL o

both the Group and the University for the financial

year ending 30 June 2011.

All gains and losses for the fair value measurements ~ AEBERELABSENSR=SHTR  8E"F——FX
in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy were HB=+HMEZCEREKRIZREDR -

recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure for both the Group and

the University for the financial year ending 30

June 2011.
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The Level 3 financial assets of the Group and the
University are the investments in the three limited
partnerships and the alternative investments
arranged by an investment consultant in the United
States as detailed in Note 30.2.

Although the Group and the University are of
the view that fair value measurements in Level
3 financial assets based on the capital account
statements provided by the General Partner of the
three limited partnerships and the administrators or
investment managers of the alternative investments
are appropriate, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions by the underlying investment
managers engaged by the limited partnerships and
the University could lead to different measurements
of the fair values. Because of the vast number of
investment managers managing a wide spectrum
of investment vehicles, changing one or more
of the unobservable inputs used by any one of
these investment managers to certain reasonably
alternative assumptions would have different
degrees of impact on the fair value of the respective
investment vehicles. The US-based investment
consultant’s advice has been sought and its
analysis of returns of widely-used market indices for
alternative investments (i.e. funds of hedge funds,
private equity funds, real estate funds and natural
resources funds) against general conditions of
investment markets suggests that while the returns
of these indices are historical and past performance
is not a guarantee of future results, these indices
can be applied to a simple overall quantitative
sensitivity analysis relating to the fair values of
major alternative investments in the Group’s and
the University’s Level 3 financial assets.

Assuming that

(i) the widely-used market indices for funds of hedge
funds, private equity funds, real estate funds
and natural resources funds had increased/
decreased by 5% and the fair values of assets
under “Fixed Income” and “Others” of the Level
3 financial assets had increased/decreased by
5% and

(i) the prices of United States/international/emerging
markets equities had been 5% higher/lower,

with all other variables held unchanged, the fair
values of the Group’s and the University’s Level
3 financial assets, and hence the Group’s and
the University’s surplus would have increased/
decreased by approximately $67,802,000 (2010 :
$57,206,000).

ARBEERABNEFR=EMEEDIEMEE30.217
EHN=EREE¥EEAH—AXBEREBRATR
HISBEIRE -

BARBEERNAERDER=CENEENLE
EUERREGBEENEEBARSERECIRER
B HESEEASMRANERRERREIEZES!
K - EREESBARABBENRESEERRE
WG EARRR - HEFHARNAREE - BRZER
R ECEHBNREEENERRS - HEM—AR
BEER—ERZEMS EATHRANEBAERES
FH—LEEENRTE - BENLABEREFIREZEEN
& - REREMRKEREBRABMND R -
WhiSEZERESERE (NHPEE - AERER
& - BHERS - RRERES) HENERERED
BNEEINRE —EMNHEERRF - BAZFEHIOR
EERBENBIEMAENRRIL A NE R RISRAD]
) ZEFERE(CUARHEABRER KBNS
= EMEENLAEEFEEHENEREENBEESNT
HE(LEE -

{BR%:

() ERHEEZEAMCGERREIES - ERIE
BEE - BMEERERRAREREESNEHLEA/T
BKEARARESHR=LZEHMEET "ERW
A" H CHft ERNEENLAEELA/ T
BaAM

(i) REARM/FERSRENER LA/ THRESLZ
Eil

MEMITESEEEREFE - KEBERABNER=
R EMEENARBENABRERASBRFEFANZELR
SEINBP AN T EENTRE TR (CF—FF
AFtEtEZHERTFR) -



31.

32.

NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET
EVENT

The recent negative outlook of the United States
economy has put the global financial markets under
pressure. The impact is further intensified by the
increased concern of the credit risk of European
banks triggered by the recent sovereign downgrade
of European countries like Greece and ltaly. As
the Group and the University have substantial
investments in diversified portfolios of financial
assets, the recent financial market turmoil could
have a negative effect on the market value of the
financial assets, like equities, of the Group and
the University. Due to the uncertainty of market
conditions in the United States and Europe, the
University Management is currently not having
reliable and concrete data on hand to ascertain
the extent of effect of the recent financial market
turmoil on the Group’s and the University’s result
of operations and financial position.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s and the University’s fixed assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account their estimated residual value. The Group
and the University reviews the estimated useful
lives and residual values of the assets annually
in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives and residual values are based on
management’s historical experience with similar
assets and, where applicable, taking into account
anticipated equipment upgrade and replacement.
The depreciation charges for future periods are
adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

The split between current and non-current portion
of the balance of Deferred Income is based on the
expenditure spent in the current year or the unspent
balance of the grants, whichever is lesser.

Notes 15 and 16 contain information on the
assumptions and risk factors relating to financial
instruments and defined benefit retirement
obligations.

31.

32.

HEEAREEREER

HRAHEERXEEESE HIRRR M EMERMDE
K GIINFE - EAFSHEREETREGREMES
TEGMIRITHEEREEE - ERERMHIBHZES - KE
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BRNEHMMEEH  SHABRERABNERME
E - MEAHRENHEEERRRTE - FXE REMAE
BRI AAARS - KBRERAEEETENES IS
RS ANERTSEREABRERARBNEE
R R EAIR R RAVRE o

MR E {5+ B HIER

AERERABNEEEE - SMEMTIRAERAE
BRMEME - LESRHBIVETING - 85 - KEERLAER
EECEEEENIAFRAZREELRESEDE
FEARNITER WL - IRAFRAZEREERENEE
BHREREELEENEER - REERRRAEANE
B o MPHEMMETREEANE - RIRFHFERR
SRR -
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33.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has pronounced a number of
amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 30
June 2011 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

33. BE-F——FRA=S+THLFECHEBEMNREN

HMBET ~ MET AN EaREENRE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB ES

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF CHUNG CHI COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
HEEPTXABREDRRER

We have audited the financial statements of the Trustees of
Chung Chi College (the “College”) set out on pages 2 to 27,
which comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 2011, and
the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure, the
statement of changes in funds and the statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such
internal control as the Board of Trustees determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Statue 12(7) of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Board of Trustees, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the College as at 30 June 2011 and of its
surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road,Central, Hong Kong

20 October 2011
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THE TRUSTEES OF CHUNG CHI COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BERPIABREERKRES

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ZHIKZ R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

BE—_T-——FRA=STHLTFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAEMETFITHIT)

2011 2010
Pommerenke  Other Pommerenke  Other
Trust Funds Trust Funds
Fund Fund
Note BB Hith ] Hifth
His: HE HE 2 HE
Income WA
Subsidy from Pommerenke EEEmETEN - 20,348 - 15,572
Trust Fund
Tuition, Programmes and Other BE .- FERHM 3 - 2,533 - 2,380
Fees W&
Interest and Investment Income BRI E W= 4 59,981 10,631 27,246 4,788
Donations and Benefactions BN ER 5 - 29,053 - 23,660
Ancillary Services Income EEBNRRFSWA 6 3,980 1,466 3,928 1,244
Gain on Disposal of Investment HEREY RS - - 5,930 -
Property
Other Income HithtA 7 - 4,429 - 2,665
63,961 68,460 37,104 50,309
Expenditure ZH
Learning and Research B3y &t 5E 8
Other Academic Services HZERRTS - 8,739 - 7,917
Institutional Support EAprE B AR 75 8
Management and General BER—REE 12 3,762 11 2,396
Premises and Related Expenses BF BT 1,544 1,423 1,576 145
Student and General Education BER—BHE - 23,239 - 20,141
Services =
Other Activities H{hEE5 - 2,071 - 730
Subsidy to University/College EBhAES/ERRR 20,348 - 45,572 -
Academic Activities ESfif;EE)
21,904 39,234 47,159 31,329
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year REERR/I(EE) 42,057 29,226 (10,055) 18,980
Other Comprehensive Income Hitt2miizs
Change in Fair Value of Available- oIt ERE AN - 2,515 - 1,694
for-sale Equity Securities [AEEZEDR
Release of Revaluation Reserve A St £ - (4,011) - -
upon Disposal of Available-for- AEEMBLHZ
sale Equity Securities E Rl
Total Comprehensive Income rEEREWNEEEE 42,057 27,730 (10,055) 20,674
for the Year - -
Transfers to/(from): HIRE/(H) :
Endowment Trust Funds BiEtEE - 763 - 1,601
College Head’s Discretionary RRXZMETES - 871 - 156
Trust Fund
College Development Trust Fund BRERERES - 5,513 - 3,596
Student Welfare Trust Fund BAENGEEES - 1,527 - 1,548
Divinity School Fund HEREE - 7,791 - (1,183)
Investment Revaluation Reserve BEShRE - (1,496) - 1,694
Pommerenke Trust Fund EEREE 42,063 - (10,060) -
Capital Fund BEEEE (6) 12,761 5 13,262
42,057 27,730 (10,055) 20,674

The notes set out on pages 6 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NEREAREEZ+LEZMERAMBHRERC —E



THE TRUSTEES OF CHUNG CHI COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
HEEPTXABSZEBRGEST

BALANCE SHEET EE&ER

AS AT 30 JUNE 2011
—E—-—FXA=1+H
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L#E#TFTHT)
Note 2011 2010
PiE
Non-Current Assets ERENEE
Investment Properties BREYE 10 - -
Fixed Assets EE&E 11 27,505 14,750
Investments Et A= 12 174,205 230,783
201,710 245,533
Current Assets MENEE
Investments Eita—i 12 196,748 242,731
Amount due from The Chinese University FEWE B P SIAREIRIE 13 - 2,345
of Hong Kong
Student Loans BEENR 412 368
Inventories =B 365 375
Deposits and Payments in Advance BE MFETRIE 13 1,898 651
Accounts Receivable FEWTIRTR 13 3,274 3,422
Cash and Time Deposits RE MIRITERTER 14 532,803 371,704
735,500 621,596
Current Liabilities mEEE
Amount due to The Chinese University T B ABIRIE 15 536 -
of Hong Kong
Creditors and Deposits FEATIRTR R IRE 15 2,025 1,782
Provision for Employee Benefits ESEF£ESE 865 1,324
3,426 3,106
Net Current Assets mENEEFE 732,074 618,490
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities BEERRBARE 933,784 864,023
Non-Current Liabilities EREBEE
Provision for Employee Benefits EE &R 2R 429 455
NET ASSETS BEEE 933,355 863,568
Endowment Trust Funds BifERES 37,518 36,693
College Head’s Discretionary Trust Fund RRXZEETEES 6,103 5,294
College Development Trust Fund BIRRRETES 64,767 59,254
Student Welfare Trust Fund BEEiETEER 15,229 13,702
Divinity School Fund BERES 101,040 93,249
Investment Revaluation Reserve BEEhREE 14,031 15,527
238,688 223,719
Pommerenke Trust Fund EEmRES 667,162 625,099
Capital Fund EEES 27,505 14,750
TOTAL FUNDS BEREE 16 933,355 863,568
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees on 20 October 2011
FREBREREENRZF——F+BTHHiltE RIS B RICEITEHREK
Karl C. Kwok Chairman, Board of Trustees
AR RESERE
Aubrey K.S. Li Chairman, Finance Committee
THE RESUEEESER
Leung Yuen Sang Member, Board of Trustees
RE REBZELE

The notes set out on pages 6 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE TRUSTEES OF CHUNG CHI COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEEPXABSEEBRLES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS ES#&8%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

BE—_F——FA=1+HLEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAEMETFITHIT)

College
Head’s College Student
Endowment Discretionary Development Welfare Divinity Investment Pommerenke
Trust Trust Trust Trust School Revaluation Trust Capital
Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund Reserve Fund Fund
EBfif{E5 IRRX%HE BRHR BEEf @8k RESER BEER BE
EE EEEE EtEE GEREE E=2 fifi 2E 2E
Balance at 1 July 2009 —EThE 35,157 5,150 55,783 12,154 95,695 13,833 635,177 -
tHA— B4R
Transfers from/(to) Statement HEE/(E)ZHEZR 1,601 156 3,596 1,548 (1,183) 1,694 (10,060) 13,267
of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure
Transfer between Funds EEE Bk (65) (12) (125) - (1,263) (18) 1,483
Balance at 30 June 2010 =—F—FfF 36,693 5,294 59,254 13,702 93,249 15,527 625,099 14,750
~REtTH&ER
Balance at 1 July 2010 —E-BF 36,693 5,294 59,254 13,702 93,249 15,527 625,099 14,750
tHA—B%&R
Transfers from/(to) Statement EE/(E)ZEKE 763 871 5,513 1,627 7,791 (1,496) 42,063 12,755
of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure
Transfer between Funds EEEER 62 (62) - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2011 =8--%F 37,518 6,103 64,767 15,229 101,040 14,031 667,162 27,505
~REtTH&ER

The notes set out on pages 6 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE TRUSTEES OF CHUNG CHI COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEAPXABSEEBRRET

CASH FLOW STATEMENT HEFRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

HE—F-——FRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L#E#TFTHT)

Note 201 2010
PR
Operating Activities mEES
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year BEERER/(E1E)
Pommerenke Trust Fund EERES 42,057 (10,055)
Other Funds HithEE 29,226 18,980
Adjustments for: HEIER:
Depreciation e 182 198
Gain on Disposal of Investment Property HEREYE R - (5,930)
Interest and Investment Income NERIEE W=
Pommerenke Trust Fund ERmRES (59,981) (27,246)
Other Funds HitE S (10,631) (4,788)
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) before changes in SEATEHRIEER(EE) 853 (28,841)
Working Capital
Decrease/(Increase) in Amount due from FEUE BT AREBIRIEZ 2,345 (2,345)
The Chinese University of Hong Kong R (HEA0)
Increase in Student Loans BEERZIBM (44) (17)
Decreasel/(Increase) in Inventories FEZIBD(3E) 10 (148)
(Increase)/Decrease in Deposits and BE RFEMTIEZ (EI)m (1,247) 350
Payments in Advance
Decrease in Accounts Receivable FEMIRTRZ iR 296 246
Increase/(Decrease) in Amount due to FEIEBPXAREIRIEZ 536 (569)
The Chinese University of Hong Kong EH0 /GREA)
Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors and Deposits FE(TIRFR R IR E R 3G NN/ (GRS 243 971)
(Decrease)/Increase in Provision for Employee {EE 2 w2 (B2 )8 (485) 289
Benefits
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) Operating RETFREES/(FRA)WREREE 2,507 (32,006)
Activities
Investing Activities IBEEE)
(Increase)/Decrease in Time Deposits with FEREABE = B BWEEATERR (296,329) 239,586
Original Maturity over Three Months 2 ($Eh0)R
Payment for Purchase of Fixed Assets WREEEE (12,937) (13,465)
Payment for Purchase of Investments ok S (57,704) (141,411)
Proceeds from Sales of Investments HESERRESIE 203,764 134,368
Proceeds from Sales of Investment Property 1D S YRS ERIE - 5,930
Interest Received EWF 20,099 22,616
Dividend Received SRS 5,370 4,749
Net Cash (Used in)/Generated from Investing BEEE(FR)EENRESEE (137,737) 252,373
Activities
Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash RENREFEW B )IEM (135,230) 220,367
Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year RERREEEY - FNETE 295,329 74,962
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year RERFEZEY - FREF 14 160,099 295,329

The notes set out on pages 6 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE TRUSTEES OF CHUNG CHI COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
HAEPXABSEDORRET

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS ERRMIGE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of The Trustees of Chung
Chi College (the “College”) reflect the state of affairs
of all the funds of the College at 30 June 2011 and
the College’s results and cash flows for the year then
ended. The assets of the College are vested in the
Board of Trustees of Chung Chi College under The
Chinese University of Hong Kong Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRS, amendments to HKFRSs and new
Interpretations that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the College. The adoption of the
new and revised HKFRSs has no significantimpact on
the financial statements of the College for the years
ended 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2011.

The College has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 22).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except otherwise stated in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the College is set out below.
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2.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Fixed Assets

Fixed assets, other than construction in progress and
art collections, are stated in the Balance Sheet at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2.4).

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 2.4) and is not depreciated.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of fixed assets when completed
and ready for use.

Art collections are stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 2.4). The residual value of art
collections is expected to be equal to or greater than
the carrying amount, and therefore art collections are
not depreciated.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has resulted
in an increase in its future economic benefit, such
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of
that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
fixed assets, less their estimated residual value,
if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Interest in Leasehold Land Over the
Held for Own Use Under remaining lease
Operating Leases term
Buildings 20 — 40 years
Equipment, Furniture, 3 —10 years

Fixtures and Fittings

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset is determined as the difference between
the net proceeds and the carrying amount of the
fixed asset and is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use.

2.2

EEFHBR
EE&E

REBIENEMWES - BEEERMMFERER
sHTERREBEREERGERPIIREMEE24)

AREIEZENEERERNERE - LNAEHRE
MR ERBERIIR(RMHEE2.4) - RAZINE - MR
IES2EIERAOdRERRBAESENEEE
EXER

BifEEURSERERERR(RMEE24) - BH
MEMEMETBEERVAREEREE - FIUZEITY
BAGIHE -

BAMEEERBABLE—IEZEEERRERENR
HuFEFR/ARVEE A - Hi » SFNEREEEE LIRS
HEEE BRI E ORI E ERARRAEER ks - 18
EXHERERL - W BZEENMTINKE

HENERERUEEE BN ANREE A TRIRIER
BEGESR)  LUERTEEMMREE AT ERFRE
HAAS - EREENMGEHERERIT ¢

EEREETHNE 6 & HA R o I &R
FAtith HYLFHA

RE “t+EN+F

s ~ R KA =Ft+F

B EENERFRAMBEEGERESHE
o

Bl EETH S REREE T MRmEEE & %
ZEEHEMSRNESEMREERCEEHE - R
HERRECBEIAZEKSZERA °

REMR

REYREERERSTEHEERN I thF/ENEE
DIBAS WA ESTHE - ZFBEREFHEMAR
BiEERBALIM -

Ccc7



CC8

23

Investment properties are stated in the Balance
Sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2.4). Any gain or
loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for
as described in note 2.8(v).

Investments

The College’s policies for investments in securities
are as follows:

(i) Dated debt securities that the College has
the ability and intention to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-
to-maturity securities are initially recognised in
the Balance Sheet at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are stated in
the Balance Sheet at amortised cost less
impairment losses (see note 2.4).

(i) Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets and are initially
stated at fair value. At each Balance Sheet
date the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

(i) Other investments in securities are classified
as available-for-sale securities and are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs. At each balance sheet date, the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised directly in
investment revaluation reserve, except for
impairment losses (see note 2.4) and, in the
case of monetary items such as debt securities,
foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised directly in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
Where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
When these investments are derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
directly in the investment revaluation reserve is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure.

23

REVFTEEESERPLUNSENRRHTELRE
BSEFIIR(RHIEE2.4) © (EAHRRYRARENHEME
EHNBEBEIEZEUTRAER R IRERREE
SRANTSHEIEREZEBRA » BHEE2.8(v) ©

A=
FERZEFREGETBRAT:

() ERBRENLEHFFERHANEEES
BES "HEENNAES. - HEERRHRE
SESVERR - BUAABEENLERSHMAEAR
NHEEERBRPER - HR - TEEARRES
B - M#HEm AR EREBRIIR(EMEE2.4) o

(il EERFRECTRERRIEE @ RUULRERE
AR - EBRGEEONSRENIEELREE &
BEMUEMNRERIBEERERZRAREST

(i) HfthEsREARES "IHHESES. - &N
AREBEMERSRAHER - TREEEHSRE
FetEHARE - BRERERBEINFIEE2.4) - 0
BEETEERERESHRHFEPER - BEMEEEA
BNEBES MR RN EENEERERER
XRPHER - ZERERTRES  FJIRGUE
BHRGATEREREREWZRD - WZIER
EWIIR - HUFERRERERESARHEPN
RetEs - BEEEZERZRPRE



(iv) RENERNFIRBEISERFERENHEXR
EIRRHZREIERABRNT

(iv) Investments are recognised/derecognised on
the date the College commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.

24 BERE
(i) EBESHRE  BEAESLEREWIRREE

2.4 Impairment of Assets

(i) Impairment of Investments in Debt and

Equity Securities and Receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale
securities are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

- For receivables that are carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial
asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for receivables
are reversed if in a subsequent period the
amount of the impairment loss decreases.

- For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets).

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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- For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that had been recognised
directly in investment revaluation reserve
is removed and is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
is the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Impairment losses recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure in respect of available-for-
sale equity securities are not reversed
through the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised directly in the investment
revaluation reserve.

(ii) Impairment of Fixed Assets and Investment

Properties

An impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, is more
than its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of an asset, or of the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the assets.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.
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2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Inventories

Inventories represent souvenirs held by the College
for resale. They are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and their
maturity dates are within three months from the
date of acquisition.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the College has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as
a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Income Recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the College and the income and expenditure,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure as follows:

(i) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.
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2.9

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Dividends

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees

Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees are
recognised on an accrual basis and unearned
fees are treated as receipts in advance.

Donations and Benefactions

Donations and benefactions are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure when the College becomes
entitled to the donations and it is probable that
they will be received.

Rental Income from Operating Leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the non-cancellable lease term.

Other Service Income

Other service income is recognised when the
related service is rendered.

Employee Benefits

(i)

Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowances
and the cost to the College of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees of the College, and the vast
majority are settled before the end of the
financial year.

Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment of not less than two
years. The gratuity, together with the total
amount of the College’s contributions to a
particular retirement scheme, will add up to
10% or 15% of the appointee’s basic salary
drawn during the contract period.
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Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans, including Mandatory Provident Funds
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are
recognised as an expenditure in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as
incurred.

(iii)

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the College demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
on foreign currency translation are dealt with in the
relevant fund account through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Related Parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the College if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the College or exercise significant influence
over the College in making financial and
operating policy decisions, or has joint control
over the College;

(i) the College and the party are subject to
common control;

(iii)  the party is an associate of the College or a joint
venture in which the College is a venturer;
(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the College or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity
under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

210

2.1

SREHFURIETBIZ R - SEERaERIFRGIE
HATEHEIMEHERR - RNERREREEERRR
RIFERRE -

(iii)

(iv) BHRIEHBERSESBREMEN -F4- 8
AAROJEEREIRA IEBE S4B - SiREZ
sTEIBREREEMA L SN FHHEER - 7
HERR

ShesimE

FRALUMHEREBAZEIERS YRR S A ERR
E5EE - REERBRREEALUMEIECEBItE
ERERE  UZAERGEEREE - hEERRE
HREEWNRZREZLBAFREBESA

BARER

TEMRBAATEIRERN - BAERRAEENSG 215

() “RATHEENEERSEREE—ERZEPTA
5 - SO REE AR ERBRAME LIEER
R EHREERI S

(i) ABREZATIIZHEZES

(i) FATBABENBEASNSEAT ;

ZALTBABREIEEEASHABZFALN
IERMREMS ~ SRZFALIES - SiHEHES
REAFENERE

(iv)
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(v) the party is a close family member of a
party referred to in (i) or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence
of such individuals; or

(vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
College or of any entity that is a related party
of the College.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.

(v) RATUEG)FBEATHERREMRSHZZ
FERAATIES - SHEEHSERTENS
B

(vi) BRUENFPIBRNEFBREBREENRE
SRRERREFIEE -

BARERRER & = s TRt PR A BRI 5T
 OREBREZBBEARAZHEENKENS -

3. TUITION, PROGRAMMES AND OTHER FEES BE - RENHBKE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (A#&H#EFT5Im)

2011 2010
Non-CUHK Degree Programmes JEP ST KERERGIERTR
Tuition Fees BE 2,487 2,245
Programmes and Other Fees oz REMKE 46 135
2,533 2,380
4. INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME  FIBRiRZEEE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LIBEEFT5IT)
Pommerenke Other
Trust Fund Funds
FREGRES HithEE
2011 2010 2011 2010
Net Realised and Unrealised BEERSEIRAKR 42,247 9,016 - -
Gains on Trading Securities BIRF=EHE
Net Realised Gains on Disposal HETHtHERS - - 5,236 -
of Available-for-sale Securities 2 EEFRE
Interest Income from Debt BHEFSFBWA 8,091 11,557 1,902 2,511
Securities
Dividends from Listed Securities LHEERE 5,089 3,852 878 897
Interest Income from Bank RITEPERFE 4,554 2,821 2,615 1,380
Deposits KA
59,981 27,246 10,631 4,788
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DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS ECLYSECEN

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT T
2011 2010
Capital Projects HiEIEH 5,368 3,825
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries REE - BENMEBE 1,790 4,411
Others Hith 21,895 15,424
29,053 23,660
ANCILLARY SERVICES INCOME EHERFEWA
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LUBYET7THm)
Pommerenke Other
Trust Fund Funds
EERES HittEE
2011 2010 2011 2010
Residence Halls BYRES - - 699 551
Rental Income HEKA 3,980 3,928 767 693
3,980 3,928 1,466 1,244
OTHER INCOME Hithlg A
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUBEEFITHIR)
2011 2010
Service Income BRFSWIA 451 202
Contract Research BREA 116 -
Miscellaneous Hith 3,862 2,463
4,429 2,665
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8. EXPENDITURE 2 ]
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB YEFTHIT)

Staff Cost Operating Depreciation Total

and Expenses
Benefits
BT ErM
KTl TR TE @
Learning and Research B Rz

Other Academic Services H 2 E AR TS 7,813 895 31 8,739

Institutional Support (Note 8.1) EAP B AR 75 (P 5E8.1)
Management and General BB R—IREE 3,085 689 - 3,774
Premises and Related Expenses BFRERE%ZH 450 2,481 36 2,967
Student and General Education BN —REE 6,633 16,491 115 23,239

Services =4
Other Activities HAH=EE 506 1,565 - 2,071
10,674 21,226 151 32,051
Total Expenditure 2011 —E——FE%H 18,487 22,121 182 40,790
Learning and Research BiliRifx

Other Academic Services H BB RS 6,880 992 45 7,917

Institutional Support (Note 8.1) AP BN AR 75 (Pfi 5E8.1)
Management and General EBN—HREE 1,839 568 - 2,407
Premises and Related Expenses BFLREEXZH 365 1,327 29 1,721
Student and General Education BEL—BEE 6,127 13,890 124 20,141

Services S

Other Activities HhEH 124 606 - 730
8,455 16,391 153 24,999
Total Expenditure 2010 —E-TFATH 15,335 17,383 198 32,916

The above analysis represents all expenditures incurred by the College as a whole. It does not include the subsidy
provided by Pommerenke Trust Fund to the University or other funds within the College.

A ESRESRNZL - EFEEERAESHASR SR HEMESNED -
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8.1 Analysis of Operating Expenses on Institutional Support  EREHBIRISMELEZ A
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (/BT TTHIT)

2011 2010

Management and General EER—MREIE
Legal and Other Professional Fees HRNERENHER 12 1
Others Hith 677 557
689 568

Premises and Related Expenses BFABREZH
Contribution paid to The Chinese University BEEEBPIARE( KB ) 781 -

of Hong Kong (the “University”) for BEBYRS
Construction of Student Hostel
Minor Works BT 159 61
Repair and Renovation Works HIEMEETRE 329 363
Government Rent and Rates = Rt 145 126
Management Fees EEEA 555 546
Property Insurance RREM 6 4
Others Hith 506 227
2,481 1,327
Student and General Education Services BYER—BHEEE

Residence Halls Expenses BEESERX 1,577 481
Scholarships, Bursaries and Prizes REBE - PEENIES 7,588 6,504
Student Exchange Programme B4 ZiEETEl 37 38
Student Financial Aids B ER) 559 526
Student Development Programme B RSl 3,583 3,747
Others Hith 3,147 2,594
16,491 13,890
Other Activities Hth=#5 1,565 606

21,226 16,391
9. OPERATING LEASE RECEIVABLE [EH&ZEEHE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (PA#EYFTTHITR)

The College’s total future minimum lease income receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

REFTERNEENRS - ERTHRBUNSEEEWARBEIRNT

2011 2010
Within 1 year —FRA 2,058 1,704
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRMEAN 168 152

2,226 1,856

The College is the lessor in respect of a number of properties held under operating leases. The leases typically last
for an initial period of 1 to 2 years, with an option to renew the lease under which all terms are negotiable. None of
these leases includes contingent rentals.

AERREERELAN TR —EMFRNEAA - —RESFHANF—EMF - ATREER - AR REERERR
BE - BLEERNRFERE "AwFAE. o
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10.

1.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties originate from a land gift at
Siu Tao Fung Shan, Shatin from Reverend and Mrs.
Pommerenke to the College in 1970 (see also Note 16).
The College subsequently entered into an agreement
with a developer under which it agreed to exchange its
interest in the land for 36 flats and 57 carparking spaces
in the completed development together with a proportion
of certain proceeds from the development. Since
completion of the development in 1996, the College
has been holding the exchanged flats/carparking
spaces for renting purpose. The above exchanged
properties are classified as investment properties and
stated at zero cost in the Balance Sheet. Starting
from 2006/2007, the College has been selling part of
the properties. The College’s investment properties
were revalued as at 30 June 2011 by CB Richard
Ellis (Pte) Limited, an independent firm of property
consultants, who has appropriate qualifications and
experience in the valuation of properties, on an open
market value basis, after taking into consideration the
net rental income allowing for reversionary potential.
Pursuant to the consultant’s valuation, market value
for the investment properties still in hand at the end of
the financial year was approximately HK$130.7 million
(2010: HK$107 million).

10.

BB
BREYEREEEMPEIRERAR— A LTIFEBEH
AR E/MERILZ 1 3th(RHiEE16) - HigAE R
M—RtERREAGE ARG LRtz %
BREZATRES  UXBRREERZ=1TE
1EFEM AR HESEMZERURSHHERA -
BRFEIE—NNAETHE - RIBFRIEFEN
REMIEEERE - BiliRIBYZERFRERINEN
EEUBHATAEESSBR - BTN FTt
FERME - NERRHET D - NBRAINIZTEYSH
RIS —FA=+HEBIASERRIF AT
CB Richard Ellis (Pte) Limited {fEHH & 1{E - {HEESR
AFMEBREFHSWARZREBEHELESRE
THER o IRIFRIGTEIRLE - EERENIRENRELZ
MERAHBEELERFNRBE—BE=TSt+E
BT BE—ETtEER)

FIXED ASSETS EIE&E
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (BUEHSTFTTIm)
Equipment,
Construction Furniture,
in Fixtures Art
Progress and Fittings Collections Total
EETE & &8 ZEiE e
PSE3 ]
Cost 5% X
At 1 July 2009 “EFNFtA—H 988 4,275 32 5,295
Additions & 13,408 57 - 13,465
Disposals HE - (74) - (74)
At 30 June 2010 “E-TFEAA=1TH#ER 14,396 4,258 32 18,686
Accumulated Depreciation ZEiHiFE
At 1 July 2009 —EZhFtA—H - 3,812 - 3,812
Charge for the Year REEIRE - 198 - 198
Written Back on Disposal HER % - (74) - (74)
At 30 June 2010 “E-EFEXA=1THERS - 3,936 - 3,936
Net Book Value at 30 June 2010 —=F—FF5H=+HIREFE 14,396 322 32 14,750
Cost |57 X
At 1 July 2010 —E-8FtA—H 14,396 4,258 32 18,686
Additions 3Ehn 12,787 150 - 12,937
Disposals HE - (11) - (11)
At 30 June 2011 —E——FxA=1TH%#&S 27,183 4,397 32 31,612
Accumulated Depreciation ZitifE
At 1 July 2010 “E-FFtA—H - 3,936 - 3,936
Charge for the Year KEERE - 182 - 182
Written Back on Disposal HER O - (11) - (1)
At 30 June 2011 —E——FB=1TH#&% - 4,107 - 4,107
Net Book Value at 30 June 2011 =F——FxA=1HIRmSHE 27,183 290 32 27,505




12. INVESTMENTS &&

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT T5IT)
2011 2010
Non-Current Investments FERENIRE
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities (Note) HEEIHBBEEES MiF))
at Amortised Cost 1R RS
Unlisted JELTR 105,078 133,332
Listed llys] 48,235 72,181
153,313 205,513
Available-for-sale Securities ot &S
Equity Securities Listed In Hong Kong, EEE LR AE
at Fair Value BRAREE 20,892 25,270
174,205 230,783
Current Investments mERE
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities (Note) HEEIHBBEEES MiF))
Amount Matured within One Year —FAEHA
at Amortised Cost RIS
Unlisted FEEH 27,671 96,557
Listed il 7] 23,374 21,071
51,045 117,628
Trading Securities OEE#
Equity Securities BEASE S
Listed, at Fair Value i BmBonEE
in Hong Kong & 145,506 123,162
outside Hong Kong EHELSH 197 1,941
145,703 125,103
196,748 242 731
Total Investments BisE 370,953 473,514

Note: The total fair value of held-to-maturity debt securities (including Non-Current and Current Portions) was
HK$211,109,313 (2010: HK$333,252,745) at the end of the financial year.

MizgE: RAMBEELLZR FEEIPHEEESC A ABEERE(BEERBRTREEMD) R B
211,109,3137T (2010 : & ¥&333,252,7457T) o
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13. AMOUNT DUE FROM THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG, ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, DEPOSITS

14.

AND PAYMENTS INADVANCE  EBIREEPIAEIRIE - BKIRR - 122 RFANRIE

The outstanding balance with CUHK is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed repayment terms. All of the
accounts receivable, deposits and payments in advance are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses
within one year.

B RBFRIRAER A DRI - RENBEIEEERYG - FIARKIRR - BERBEARERBE-—FATK
OskfEeR B3 ©

Included in accounts receivable are the following amounts denominated in foreign currency:

BUWIRABIE T HILSMEREMRIEEE

(Expressed in thousands)  (AFTTHI7R)

2011 2010
United States Dollars uUsb E7T 126 267
CASH AND TIME DEPOSITS RERPITEHRER
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB FTTHIR)
2011 2010
Cash at Banks and Other Financial Institutions HRIT M HE BT HAE 4,411 42,131
and in Hand EFRRIRE
Time Deposits EHIER 528,392 329,573
Cash and Time Deposits in the BEEGERAZIREN 532,803 371,704
Balance Sheet IRITEHEFER
Less: Time Deposits with Original Maturity W EREBBR=EAZ (372,704) (76,375)
over Three Months TEHEM
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Cash Flow RERERAZIREN 160,099 295,329
Statement REEEY
Cash and time deposits included the following amounts denominated in foreign currency:
REMRITEREAEIETIILIIMESEMEER
(Expressed in thousands)  (IAFTT5I7R)
2011 2010
Renminbi RMB AR 103,014 -
United States Dollars uUSsD ETT 18,000 22,338



15.

16.

AMOUNT DUE TO THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY
OF HONG KONG, CREDITORS AND DEPOSITS

The outstanding balance with CUHK is unsecured,
interest free and has no fixed repayment terms.

All creditors and deposits are expected to be settled
or recognised as income within one year.

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF FUNDS

Pommerenke Trust Fund

The Pommerenke Trust Fund originates from a gift
of land donated in 1970 to the Chung Chi College by
the Reverend Herbert Henry Pommerenke and Mrs.
Jean Macpherson Pommerenke in commemoration
of Doctors Stewart and Julia Kunkle. The land gift
was outside the precincts of the University and, since
1976 and in accordance with The Chinese University
of Hong Kong Ordinance, has been vested in the
Board of Trustees of Chung Chi College on the same
trusts and subject to the same terms and conditions
on which the land gift was then held.

Endowment Trust Funds

Endowment Trust Funds represent donations
received by the College, usually with the stipulation
from the donors that the principal amounts should
remain intact in perpetuity or for a defined time
period for specific purposes.

College Head’s Discretionary Trust Fund

College Head’s Discretionary Trust Fund originates
from donations, designated for supporting
educational programmes and other worthy activities
as determined by the Head of the College.

College Development Trust Fund

College Development Trust Fund is financed by
donations and subsidies, for use in programmes and
activities which are essential for the development of
students and the College as a whole.

Student Welfare Trust Fund

Student Welfare Trust Fund is financed by donations
and investment income, designated for student
welfare and bursary purposes.

15.

16.

BT E B DI ABIRIA - BTIRRRIEE

B X ARBERKRABRBHBMIER - LELE
EIREEE R -

FrERMIRRAIEEERE - FAZTREZR RN
Ao

BEEMMELRRE

ERREE

EERESRERBRYAMAERAR—NALSE
B2 Doctors Stewart K Julia Kunklef B i% 435
HERA Tith o SHREEIBS R T A EBEE
b B—AEREFR  RIEFBEPIABIFEIFIZ
BEFEAERGEZSEE T FRRNERIE
SURMBEEIFRR ARG - REREBRRES -

BiiEEEE

BiiERE ST 2RV EINERMNIE - BRERE
SIERFEZREAT - BEFSAEIEEHREA
EYTERE -

RRXEEREE

IRRZEISAETRERABR - TEREARHGH
BEELEMRREREEENERES

BRERETES

BRERETESNEERBIBEMNEDR) - BARE
EBLEEARRLBRERZRNEENES -

BEFEFGERES

BERNERESNEEREBRNRENS & B
AREEERTNZSEE -
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17.

Divinity School Fund

Divinity School Fund is financed by donations,
investment income and reserves generated from
self-financed programmes, with designated purpose
in carrying out theology education, research and
related activities.

Investment Revaluation Reserve

Investment Revaluation Reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-
for-sale equity securities held at the balance sheet
date and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies in note 2.3(iii).

Capital Fund

Capital Fund represents the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets which were financed by
funds with non-designated purpose.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The College is a not-for-profit organisation and
forms part of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
It aims to provide higher education in accordance
with Christian traditions, using the Chinese language
as the primary medium of instruction. It seeks to
promote Christian faith, learning and research.
The College defines capital as including various
general and restricted funds balances. The
various funds represent the unspent balance of
donations, grants and income. These funds are
managed in accordance with the College’s financial
management procedures and the relevant funding
conditions, where applicable. The College’s primary
objective when managing capital is to safeguard the
College’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain a strong financial base to support the
development of the College. To achieve the above
capital management objective, the College follows
guidelines on investment and financial management
as set out in note 18.

There has been no change in the College’s capital
management practices as compared to prior year.
The College is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirement.

17.
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18.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The College’s financial instruments mainly include
student loans, accounts receivable, bank deposits,
unit trust cash fund, investments in equity securities
and debt securities, which are exposed to credit,
foreign currency, interest rate and equity price
risks. The risks on financial assets are controlled
in accordance with the investment guidelines
approved by the Finance Committee under the
College’s Board of Trustees. This is achieved
through diversified asset allocation, rules governing
the selection and credit limits of investment
counterparties with reference to their credit ratings
and financial strength. The Finance Committee
reviews investment strategies and performance
periodically to ensure that the investment objectives
and performance targets are met. A sub-committee
under the Finance Committee meets regularly to
manage and monitor risk exposures associated
with respective financial assets to ensure that
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

(i) Credit Risk

The College’s investment guidelines control the
credit risk on bank deposits and debt securities
by limiting the counterparties to banks and
companies with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-ratings agencies. The
College has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over large
number of counterparties. Credit risk associated
with student loans and accounts receivable is
immaterial to the College and all doubtful
receivables are adequately provided for. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset
in the Balance Sheet.

18.
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(ii) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk arises where assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency different
from the functional currency of the College,
which is Hong Kong dollars (HKD). The
Finance Committee (FC) sets up investment
guidelines to govern the exposure of investments
denominated in foreign currencies.

The College does not have significant
investments that are denominated in foreign
currencies other than United States dollars
(USD) and Renminbi (RMB). As the HKD
is currently pegged to the USD, the risk of
movements in exchange rates between the
two currencies is insignificant. Following the
relaxation in RMB placements and RMB-
denominated investments through banks in
Hong Kong since July 2010, the FC reviewed
the College’s investment strategy. In anticipation
of the possible currency appreciation of RMB in
relation to HKD and USD, the FC resolved that
a small proportion of the financial assets can
be invested in time deposits and debt securities
denominated in RMB.

The following table shows the amounts of
financial assets (including cash, bank deposits
with banks, debt and investments) denominated
in various currencies at the balance sheet
date:

(i) JMEEMmLES

FERMITEEBRET - ERFELIMBEEES
BHEENSEREIERINERR - MBEEES
RRITIREES HERI LISME SRR E AR

BRETMARESI » RNBRUIMNESEEEEEM
REWMAS - ERITHE TTHER TR B RER
ET  BREXTZENIMERRFK - B=F
—BFLARFEEBRITFRARBEEEL
ARBEENREERNERBRENER  #
BEEECEMRHIEBRNTERE - ERA
EBEFEEN - MBEEEZREF/NBINE
REERETAREERTERNES -

UT—-BRINHEERBRAMSEERREEE
BHEMEECEHE (BFRE - FRRIRTHNE
;- REAIRE)

201 2010
Amount % of total Amount % of total
value of value of
financial financial
assets assets
Er L hEEmE &% LARERE
Currency &#S ENESt ENESL
HKD o 520,947 57 442,586 52
usD =TT 258,755 29 400,691 48
RMB AR 124,029 14 - -
Others Hith 25 - 1,941 -
903,756 100 845,218 100
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The proportion of financial assets denominated
in foreign currencies other than USD and RMB
is individually less than 0.5% of the total financial
assets as at 30 June 2011 and 2010. Noting that
the appreciation in RMB is expected to continue
and the proportion of RMB-denominated assets
is less than 15% of the total financial assets,
the College’s foreign currency risk on financial
assets is not considered to be material.

(iii) Interest Rate Risk

The College has exposure to interest rate risk
through the impact of the rate changes on
interest bearing financial assets, including bank
deposits. The College manages exposure to
interest rate risk through spreading fixed-rate
interest bearing financial assets into different
tenures.

As at 30 June 2011, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in bank
deposit interest rate, with all other variable
held constant, would increase/decrease the
College’s surplus for the year and net assets at
the balance sheet date by approximately $5.3
million (2010: $3.7 million). This analysis has
been determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet
date and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for bank deposits in existence
at that date.

(iv) Equity Price Risk

The College is exposed to equity price risk arising
primarily from equity investments classified as
trading securities and available-for-sale equity
securities (see note 12). The maijority of these
investments are blue chip shares listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and are included
in the Hang Seng Index. These investments
have been chosen based on their long term
growth potential. College management monitors
regularly the performance of the investments
to ensure its suitability as an investment for the
College.

REB—FJBERZF——FA=1TH " LUER
BARBLSHIMNSEEEEBNERNERMEE
DRETHEEN 0.5% - FERAREAERE
58 UARBEGEEBNEETIRESH
BEENBS TR - ~BRAMEHAYINERRIE

rkh
HESH o

(iiii) FIZREBS

RERAAEHEZF R EREERERNF2BA
XEMEE - SFRITER - TERBBSHE
AREIEHRRERNREESHECSHEEFR
AR B

R=F——%FXA=1AH & RRFAEEMTIEEE

T AERREFANBRLRFRNFEEEDE
nmimP#Haa=+8rx (ZF—F: =Z5t+8
7T) e WIESMERRAERNESNEEARE
TEAREAEH EFENRITER

FERERE

FEREHNRRERRREIERETEERTH
HEREES (RIEE12) - SBRFENKREXR
BMEEEELHAEETEEEEHNESR - %
HREEREERENERQIZEEE - FEREEE
FEGEAELESRENRRBETESEEERESE
BRRIFRE -
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(v)

19. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Based on their carrying amounts at 30 June 2011,
it is estimated that a 10% increase/decrease
in the fair values of the equity investments,
with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the College’s surplus for
the year and net assets at the balance sheet
date by approximately $14.57 million (2010:
$12.51 million) and $16.66 million (2010: $15.04
million) respectively.

Fair Values

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, require disclosures
relating to fair value measurements of financial
instruments across three levels of a “fair value
hierarchy”. The fair value of each financial
instrument is categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to
that fair value measurement. The levels are
defined as follows:

* Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments

*  Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly
or indirectly based on observable market
data

* Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable
market data

At 30 June 2011, the financial instruments of the
College carried at fair value were available-for-
sale equity securities of HKD20,892,000 listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and
trading equity securities of HKD145,506,000
and HKD197,000 listed in Hong Kong and
outside Hong Kong respectively. These
instruments fall into Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy described above.

BAEIE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(v)
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- FR=(REFR) - ZERTERDBERMGE
BIGMHE @ EPERNREFSERS L
OEREREIAVER

HEZE——FA=TH ' *BRHENERT
8 - BETEEERSM LMNaHHERTES
HARBERBBZTENTIAE=TR ' UAkd
EBkFES  EPREEERETES L -
HAnBESHNGSEE—RETAEATEATT
MEBTNEETT - REU L REEERNE
% FERNEMTEBREFR— -

(UBEFTIT)

Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2011, not provided for in the financial statements, were as follows:

REF——FA=1H » REMHERRBFEMCERREIRAT -

2011 2010
Contracted for B4 25,364 35,865
Authorised but not Contracted for EIREEIREL 15,496 17 497

40,860 53,362



20.

21,

22,

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

REHSHEIE
(LB Tm)

At 30 June 2011, the total of future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:

RES——FA=1H  REFURRNEERE - SRECNRERERERH AT -

2011 2010
Within one year —FRN 276 -
Two to five years —ERF 23 -

299 -

Operating lease charges for the year rEERKEHEER 253 -
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 21. BEBARS
Due to the not-for-profit nature of the College and HRAEBRIIFETINE - HREGHERRBNE -
the composition of the Board of Trustees (being NHEEF BN S HE » AERASEESKESHE -
drawn from private, public organisations and HEpsEEsE NS s E A EH2 AT
local churches), the College has received from HIIEER o IEAENTIEIANGES - BRI R BATS IR
time to time donations from its Trustee members, B A R T A B B R A A A o
key management and companies controlled or
significantly influenced by them. The receipts of
such donations have all been individually reported
to and approved in accordance with the financial
regulations of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
(the “University”) by the Board of Trustees and the
University Council.
All transactions relating to the purchases of ERBRNIEREFEBRRIBENRTE  URER
goods and services and capital projects involving EETY »r Aol AERKREe R EEFEBEEN
organisations in which a member of the Board of HIEERE  (BELEKMZS » HERENEEIE
Trustees may have an interest are conducted during IR AT R 1T o
the normal course of business and in accordance '
with the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.
POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 22, REZE_F——FA=+HLEFESHEEHEMGE

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not
yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2011 and
which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.

The College is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these amendments,
new standards and new interpretations which is
expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significantimpact on the College’s
results of operations and financial position.

REBMESET ~ T EARRBTREEHE

HEXAMBHRTIZEHL - FESEHMLSHEBHS
IREEHEREET ~ METERIRERERR =S ——F
AB=THIEFEEN - FERERIZRRARENY
HUERT BRI HERI Ka2 R o

FEREHAREMANERT RFTE AR K2 AR EIFRT
i1 » IRPEERRR B ER PSS RT RAfa T 2RI R i A5 2
RAEBERMMBIRRGAEEEANEE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RS

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF NEW ASIA COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEEPXABHEERRED

We have audited the financial statements of the Trustees of
New Asia College (the “College”) set out on pages 2 to 20,
which comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 2011, and
the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure, the
statement of changes in funds and the cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such
internal control as the Board of Trustees determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Statue 12(7) of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Board of Trustees, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the College as at 30 June 2011 and of
its surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

25 November 2011
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THE TRUSTEES OF NEW ASIA COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BAEPXABHGEERRER

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 2E % &
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

BE-_F-——FRA=THLEFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT ITHIR)

Note 2011 2010
FiEE
Income A
Interest and Investment Income FEREE WS 3 3,720 2,935
Donations and Benefactions E=[EPSE =R 4 10,205 19,698
Other Income HAtUZA 210 947
14,135 23,580
Expenditure 2 5
Learning and Research Efig M A5E
Instruction and Research HEBRAR 878 624
Other Academic Services Hth24EART% 64 18
Institutional Support EPrEHEARTS
Management and General EEN—HREIR 270 279
Premises and Related Expenses BFAEREXH 355 -
Student and General Education Services BYER—BHESHE 5,709 6,338
Other Activities H{hEE1% 528 2,624
7,804 9,883
Surplus and Total Comprehensive TEERGRR 6,331 13,697
Income for the Year TEERmMKNEE -

The notes set out on pages 7 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NERFLEEZ+RMERTMEBRRC—EMD -




THE TRUSTEES OF NEW ASIA COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

HEAEPXABHGERRER
BALANCE SHEET EE&@EX
AS AT 30 JUNE 2011

=®-—FxA=+H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB #TFITolmR)

Note 2011 2010
FitEE
Non-Current Assets ERBEE
Fixed Assets EE&EE 7 567 567
Investments BE 8 5,517 3,521
Other Receivables 300 100
6,384 4,188
Current Assets mEEE
Investments ®BE 8 15,510 19,285
Accounts Receivable and Prepayments FEMUNR TR K TR TRIE 9 2,419 214
Cash at Bank and Time Deposits RIT M EHATER 10 55,342 49,638
73,271 69,137
Current Liability mEaE
Accounts Payable and Accruals FE(IRFA N FESTE 11 730 731
Net Current Assets mENEERHE 72,541 68,406
NET ASSETS BESH 78,925 72,594
Restricted Funds EHEE 76,205 69,414
Other Funds HithBEE 2,720 3,180
TOTAL FUNDS BT

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees on 25 November 2011

MERERREEN - ——F+— BT+ ARIERBRERIEMTIERR

Charles Y. W. Leung #¥efi

Chairman, FJi

Board of Trustees f%&E &

Leung Hung-kee ZJifi:din

Vice-Chairman, Fl3:J§

Board of Trustees ##i &

The notes set out on pages 7 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NERELtREEZ+RMERTMERTRC —87 -

78,925

72,594

NA3



NA4

THE TRUSTEES OF NEW ASIA COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEAEPXABHGERRER

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS E&#8%K
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

HE_FB-——FRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT ITHIR)

Restricted Funds

ERES
(Note Fftz6)
Donations
Capital and Endowment
Fund Benefactions Fund Total
EEEET BERER BEES FEEL]
Balance at 1 July 2009 —EFhFLA— B4R 567 46,045 9,422 56,034
Surplus and total comprehensive FEEZEE - 13,626 832 14,458
Income for the year
Inter-fund Transfers BEEBZ IR - 842 (1,920) (1,078)
Balance at 30 June 2010 —E-BFXA=TRARLR 567 60,513 8,334 69,414
Balance at 1 July 2010 —E-EFHHA—B&8%R 567 60,513 8,334 69,414
Surplus and total comprehensive EEZHE = - 6,406 38 6,444
Income for the year
Inter-fund Transfers HEERB @R - 457 (110) 347
Balance at 30 June 2011 —E—-—-FXA=TH%ER 567

67,376 8,262 76,205

The notes set out on pages 7 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NEHRFEtREEZTRZMERAMBHER &M



THE TRUSTEES OF NEW ASIA COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
EEPAREBHDERRER

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS E$#8i% (CONTINUED )
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

BE—F-——FRA=+THLEFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L& ITHIT)

Other Funds
HittES
(Note FfizE6)
Donations General
and Endowment Total
Benefactions Fund Reserves Total Funds
BELER —REFES: #Es k] B85
Balance at 1 July 2009 —EFhTFLtA—B%&eR 1,187 1,278 398 2,863 58,897
Surplus and total FEZHW (765) - 4 (761) 13,697
comprehensive
Income for the year
Inter-fund Transfers HEMEIR 1,078 - - 1,078 -
Balance at 30 June 2010 =F—F&FXA=1H&EH% 1,500 1,278 402 3,180 72,594
Balance at 1 July 2010 =—ZE—ZFtH—H&8 1,500 1,278 402 3,180 72,594
Surplus and total FEEZEWE (166) - 53 (113) 6,331
comprehensive
Income for the year
Inter-fund Transfers EEMZEIR (347) - - (347) -
Balance at 30 June 2011 —Z——FXB=1+H%&H% 987 1,278 455 2,720 78,925

The notes set out on pages 7 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NHRFELREE-TEZMEREMBRR —85 -
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THE TRUSTEES OF NEW ASIA COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEAPXABHRGERRER

CASH FLOW STATEMENT BREHER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011
B8E_F-—FRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L #E#TFITolR)

Note 2011 2010
PitsE
Operating Activities ReEE
Surplus for the year TEFEERER 6,331 13,697
Adjustments for: HEIEE:
Interest Income FBWA (364) (362)
Dividend Income BEBUIA (651) (560)
Net Realised and Unrealised Gain HithiZ &5 v EBIRAREIRMFIE (2,705) (2,013)
on Other Securities B
Operating Surplus before Changes in EEEEEIRICEERER 2,611 10,762
Working Capital
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable FEMTIR TR K FE < FRIE 2 ($E00)/iRE (2,283) 35
and Prepayments
Decrease in Accounts Payable FE(TIRFR A FEET B FA 2 iR () 1)
and Accruals
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities REEMEEZRERH 327 10,756
Investing Activities BEEE
(Increase)/Decrease in Time Deposits with Original  ZFRHERBE =1 BrYEHR (8,455) 15,269
Maturity over Three Months EFRZ (B
Payment for Purchase of Investments BREE (4,406) (7,131)
Interest Received BRFIE 334 324
Dividends Received ERiEE 305 419
Proceeds from Sales of Unlisted Equity-linked Notes H &3k FrhiZEHIEZHE 2,000 1,507
Proceeds from Sales of Listed Securities HE Frhzas 7,144 1,659
Net Cash (Used in)/Generated from Investing NERE(FRR)EEBRERE (3,078) 12,047
Activities
Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash REFIATZEWZ (GRS (2,751) 22,803
Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year RERRESEEW-FENELS 41,440 18,637
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year RERBREEEY-FRER 10

The notes set out on pages 7 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NEHRFEtREEZTRZMERAHBHER &M

38,689
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THE TRUSTEES OF NEW ASIA COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
HEEPXABHGEERRES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R AT

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of The Trustees of New
Asia College (the “College”) reflect the state of
affairs of all the funds of the College at 30 June
2011 and the College’s results and cash flows for
the year then ended. The assets of the College
are vested in The Board of Trustees of the College,
under the provisions of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs, amendments to HKFRSs and new
Interpretations that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the College. The adoption of
the new and revised HKFRSs has no significant
impact on the financial statements of the College for
the years ended 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2011.

The College has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 16).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except otherwise stated in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

- REER
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A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the College is set out below.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets, other than the art collection, are
stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

The art collection is stated in the balance sheet at
cost less any impairment losses. The residual value
of the art collection is expected to be equal to or
greater than the carrying amount, and therefore the
art collection is not depreciated.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has
resulted in an increase in its future economic benefit,
such expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of fixed
assets, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

3 -5 years
3 years

Furniture and Equipment
Computer Equipment

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset are determined as the difference between
the net proceeds and the carrying amount of the
fixed asset and are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Impairment of Fixed Assets

An impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, is more than its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
an asset, or of the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, is the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the assets.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.
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(c)

(d)

Investments

The College’s policies for investments in securities
are as follows:

(i) Investments are recognised/derecognised on
the date the College commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.

(i) Investments in securities held for trading are
initially stated at fair value plus transaction
cost. At each balance sheet date the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

(i) Dated debt securities that the College has the
positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities.
Held-to-maturity securities are initially stated at
fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are stated in the balance sheet at
amortised cost less impairment loss.

Impairment loss for held-to-maturity debt
securities is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets).

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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(e)

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the College has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligation,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurence or non-occurence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefit
is remote.

Income Recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the College and the income and expenditure,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure as follows:

(i) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

(i)  Dividend Income

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(iii) Donations and Benefactions

Donations and benefactions are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure when the College becomes
entitled to the donations and benefactions and
it is probable that they will be received.
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(9)

Related Parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the College if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the College or exercise significant influence
over the College in making financial and
operating policy decisions, or has joint control
over the College;

(i) the College and the party are subject to
common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the College or a joint
venture in which the College is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the College or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity
under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
College or of any entity that is a related party
of the College.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.

INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME

BR~ BAEETS

ERBRTMTEIRRE - AERNBIEL 2

() BALTHRNEEIFERZEBE—ERSEPN
AEH SO REEARXEFE RN RE
ERR - HEHEHIARER

(i) AERMZRATZHEES

(i) FALBAEROBEATSEAS

ay

(iv) ZALBIERTEEEASABZFALN
ERREME ~ ARZFALER - SHEE
HIREATENEE

(v) BEATMEG)FIEATHERRERSHZ%
FEAATIES - HEIEFIZEATENE
B

(vi) BREENFIERVEFEREHRERNE

SREHRREFIETE -

BARIERRERSZEERtPERSERNRS
& OREEREZZEAARZTHEENRERS -

FIR BN

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA #TIT517R)

2011 2010
Bank Interest Income RITRBWA 123 152
Interest Income from Debt Securities BEESFNE
Listed outside Hong Kong EEBREN LT 94 94
Unlisted 111 56
Interest Income from Unlisted Equity Securities FF_EMEZFHIFIRUWA 36 60
Dividends from Listed Equity Securities LHESRE 651 560
Net Realised and Unrealised Gain Hithzd 5 2 B8R RREIRINF= 2,705 2,013
on Other Securities
3,720 2,935
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DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS RIE R IR
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAEHTF7T517R)

2011 2010
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries  i3E5f - BiEE RiSE 5,878 8,713
Others Hit 4,327 10,985
10,205 19,698
EXPENDITURE 3X%iH
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MAEHETFITHITR)
2011 2010
Learning and Research : ERgig KL ER TR -
Instruction and Research HENAR
Conference Expenses 2REH 819 545
Student Helpers B4 EhE 59 79
878 624
Other Academic Services Hth#EBARTE
Visiting Scholars ShFEEA 64 18
64 18
Institutional Support : SRR
Management and General ERR—REIR
Student Helpers B4 138 138
Repairing and Maintenance RERMHE 27 31
Miscellaneous HIEZH 105 110
270 279
Premises and Related Expenses BFREHEXH
Contribution paid to The Chinese University BEMAREEPXARE ( “KE") 355 -
of Hong Kong (“CUHK” or the “University”) FfFiREBLERES
for Construction of Student Hostel
355 -
Student and General Education Services BYER—RBESEE
Student Financial Aids/Scholarships BYESER/REE 4,523 5,079
Student/Extra-curricular Activities BLERINEE 1,186 1,259
5,709 6,338
Other Activities HAthE
Gifts and Souvenirs BmAkicZm 114 338
Tea Reception and Banquet/Entertainment ZE/FERN 257 985
Miscellaneous MIELH 157 1,301
528 2,624
7,804 9,883




6. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF FUNDS

(i)

(ii)

RESTRICTED FUND

Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets which were financed
by funds with non-designated purpose.

Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions represent funds
received by the College from the Donors which
are used to support Scholarships, Student
Activities and Other College development
activities.

Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations
received by the College, usually with the
stipulation from the donors that the principal
amounts should remain intact in perpetuity or for
a defined time period for specific purposes.

OTHER FUNDS
Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions represent funds
received by the College from the Donors which
are used for general College development
activities.

General Endowment Fund

General Endowment Fund represents donations
received by the College. The principal amounts
remain intact and is mainly used for generate
interest and investment income.

Reserves

Reserves mainly represent interest and
investment income generated from General
Endowment Fund.

~ BENUERRRE

(i)

(i)

HEEE

BEER®

EEEEERIFREARNESRENETEEE

BOMRETBE ©

R RIER

B AEFEHRRRETEE - BRLIEME

RAERNBESE - FBRERBRST

BrEE
BErEESRABKEIMNIBENRE  BEREEE

BETEZREAH - BEFEREREEHEA
EHERRE -

HitnBE

BRI

B MERZHRERE AN - REAERA
R—EERERE -

—RELTEE

BAESEERWEIRIRENE - XERIFAE
FEARKEUEFNERRERA -

fEfR=

EiEEEEREH—RETESEFNFER
REWA -
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7. FIXED ASSETS EIR&EE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MA&M&FTT5Im)
Furniture
Art and Computer
Collection Equipment Equipment  Total
s BEKRKE SNRE #agE
Cost HAsE
At 1 July 2009 and “FEFNFEtB—HA 567 446 1" 1,024
30 June 2010 “E-SFRBA=1TH#&R
Accumulated Depreciation — Z&HiFE
At 1 July 2009 and “FEFNFEtB—HA - 446 1" 457
30 June 2010 “E-SFXBA=1TH&R
Net Book Value REFEE
At 30 June 2010 “S-BFRB=TH#&R 567 - - 567
Cost HAsE
At 1 July 2010 and “F-BFtB—HAK 567 446 1" 1,024
30 June 2011 —ES——FXB=1TBH%&%
Accumulated Depreciation  Z&HiFE
At 1 July 2010 and “F-BFtB—HAK - 446 1" 457
30 June 2011 “ES——FXB=1TH#&%
Net Book Value REFEE
At 30 June 2011 “S——FB=1TH#&R - -

567

567



INVESTMENTS 3&&
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAY TT5I7R)

2011 2010
Held-to-maturity Securities, HEEIHAES
at amortised cost RIS AR5
Overseas Listed Debt Securities EEBIE} L ERE 1,517 1,521
Unlisted Debt Securities IE T ETERES 4,000 2,000
5,517 3,521
Trading Securities, at fair value OEERES ' RAREBEENT
Equity Securities listed in Hong Kong EEE LR AE 15,510 17,647
Unlisted Equity-linked Notes JE IR - 1,638
15,510 19,285
Total investments BB 21,027 22,806
Less: Current Investments o TRERE
Equity Securities listed in Hong Kong EEE LIRS 15,510 17,647
Unlisted Equity-linked Notes JE LIRS AR - 1,638
15,510 19,285
Non-current Investments ERENRE 5,517 3,521

The fair value of held-to-maturity securities which were listed overseas and unlisted were HK$1,626,406 (2010:
HK$1,653,808) and HK$4,092,700 (2010: HK$2,029,260) respectively at 30 June 2011.

REB——FA=1H  #FBRN} LR AFE LHNFEERMARES A REESFISEE1,626,4067T (2010:
7M£1,653,8087T) K &HE4,092,7007T (2010: #EHE2,029,2607T) °

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS  FEMIRFR K FA{TFRIB
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MABHEFIT5IR)

2011 2010

Amount due from The Chinese University FEE BT AREBIRIE 1,137 -
of Hong Kong

Accounts Receivable FEUWTIRR 162 128

Prepayments and Other Receivables FEATTRIE R E At IR 1,120 86

2,419 214

The accounts receivable and prepayments are expected to be recoverable or recognised as expenditure within
one year.
FEIRTFR R R IR FEHAR — F AW Bt R A o

Note: The outstanding balance with The Chinese University of Hong Kong is unsecured, interest free and

has no fixed repayment terms.

Mizt: HEERKABEDIXABERIED - ZIERBHRBHDEIER - REMBECEEERG -
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10.

1.

12.

CASH AT BANK AND TIME DEPOSITS RITRBHER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A& IT5m)
2011 2010
Cash at Bank RITEM 310 170
Time Deposits EHAER 55,032 49,468
Cash at Bank and Time Deposits inthe  BEBBERAMRITR 55,342 49,638
Balance Sheet TEHIER
Less: Time Deposits with Original Maturity i&: T HAEE = B BrEHA (16,653) (8,198)
over Three Months 7R
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Cash HRERERAMIRE
Flow Statement MIREEEY 38,689 41,440
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS Bt R BT &R
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (MABHETFTTHITR)
2011 2010
Amount due to The Chinese University — BfI&EDPXKEBIRIE - 148
of Hong Kong
Accounts Payable FE(IRFR 94 583
Receipt in Advance FEYRTR 636 -
730 731
Note: The outstanding balance with The Chinese University of Hong Kong is unsecured, interest free and
has no fixed repayment terms.
fiizE: TESRAEEBEPIXABEIRIRT - ZIERSHRENNHEIRER - RENEETEEERGE -

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The College is a not-for-profit organisation and
forms part of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
The objective of the College is to complement the
University in the provision of a balanced and holistic
education. The College defines capital as including
various general and restricted funds balances. The
various funds represent the unspent balance of
donations, grants and income. These funds are
managed in accordance with the College’s financial
management procedures and the relevant funding
conditions, where applicable. The College’s primary
objective when managing capital is to safeguard the
College’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain a strong financial base to support the
development of the College. To achieve the above
capital management objective, the College follows
guidelines on investment and financial management
as set out in note 13.

There has been no change in the College’s capital
management practices as compared to prior year.
The College is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirement.

+

BEAXEE

FERZEMBREBEPIABNIELTIEE - SR
BNNHPABRHUFEHRTRENHBE - ERMER
EERRZEEAESVEAEE - STHESHARWIE
FRRVIBRR ~ FBIE RIMAKERY - ELEEEERIEHEREA
RIBRNERMBEEREF RIFRIFRAEE - X2
REEFEESTHENER - SEFRSREREEEN
MFRREBAMEINR - URHERNER - ERER
MiEE+=FriR RAVIRE R EIRES| - LUZRILIE
EAREENBRE -

FERMNESEERBRIRREMAE - INRBE@INED
FENRYEASFRRE



13.

(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The College’s financial instruments mainly include
bank deposits, debt securities and equity securities,
which are exposed to credit, interest rate, currency
and equity price risks. The risks on financial assets
are controlled in accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Investment Sub-
committee under the College’s Board of Trustees.
This is achieved through diversified asset allocation,
rules governing the selection and credit limits of
investment counterparties with reference to their
credit ratings and financial strength. The Investment
Sub-committee reviews investment strategies
and performance periodically to ensure that the
investment objectives and performance targets
are met. The Investment Sub-committee meets
periodically to manage and monitor risk exposures
associated with respective financial assets to ensure
that appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Credit Risk

The College’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to the investments in debt securities and bank
deposits. Management has a credit policy in place
and exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. The College places deposits with
major financial institutions with good credit ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the balance sheet.

Interest Rate Risk

The College is exposed to interest rate risk primarily
arising from its bank deposits due to fluctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

As at 30 June 2011, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in fixed
deposit interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased the
College’s surplus for the year and net assets at the
balance sheet date by approximately HK$550,000
(2010: HK$495,000). This analysis has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rate had occurred at the balance sheet date and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for bank deposits in existence at that date, with an
assumption that fixed term instruments which expire
during the next reporting period will be rolled over at
the expiry of that term at the new market rate.

=-ERIAREREE

AERNEMTEFZEUERITENR - EHEFRE
B FIEREREE - FIR - SMERRRERN
R - BLEERZERERREDE TRRE/VEFR
FIENIRERES| - BEOHEESE - BEARYE
EFREAREMBNREHFUEERMR - 18/
HERHRERIE AR - UEFRIZERREAKRIR
FEEE - RENMINZEEHREUEERERE
BRI - MR RERUtIREEE S

B EEER

FERNEERRERHEHESFRERIRITERA
EXE - EEECHR TEERR  IEHEREEk
FREAZINEERR - FERTIGESMFREFRR—
LEERFEETRLIRER AR

BRMBEEEMRAIEANEERRCUREERBR
HEEREBERL-

FRERR

AEREHNFREARIERERTERETSHE
RENTEEAINE -

AF=F——FB=1H & REREHERFRAEM
BEPBR BT HttBIERE - FERNERK
FEESSENIEIOEEATRRT CEF—BF

: BEN+ABATIT) o LESHERRARERE
EHAEHMEBRAREEERNERITENR - LERERNE
MR T RS SRR LI ARG -

NA17



NA18

(c)

(d)

Currency Risk

The functional currency of the College is the Hong
Kong dollar. The College is exposed to currency risk
primarily arising from bank deposits and investments
that are denominated in United States dollars (USD).
As the Hong Kong dollar is currently pegged to the
USD, the risk of movements in exchange rates
between the two currencies is insignificant.

Equity Price Risk

The College is exposed to equity price risk arising
from investments in equity securities listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (see note 8). These
investments have been chosen based on their longer
term growth potential and are monitored regularly
for performance against expectations. At 30 June
2011, it is estimated than an increase/decrease of
10% in these securities’ market prices with all other
variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the College’s surplus for the year and net
assets at the balance sheet date by approximately
HK$1,551,000 (2010: HK$1,929,000).

Fair Values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at
30 June 2011 and 2010. The fair values of equity
securities listed in Hong Kong are based on quoted
bid prices at balance sheet date. The fair values of
held-to-maturity debt securities disclosed in note 8
are based on market prices provided by counterparty
financial institution at balance sheet date.

A~ MRS

FERFFANEBRET - AERFTERIHERR
ITERBERTHEFRRIRE - AR BERIE TR T
» MEEBAERSEEERA

T - REERRR

FEREHNREERERKRBEEE RS LHiR
&% (RiEEe) - BEELERERERERENER
BN ARRZICHER  LERRRETSEBR -
E=F——FAA=t+THERSERBIMNERE D&
B MEMRAZEAE  FERNERLFEES
EmRMOEE—ehtAR—Fr CF—FF:
—BhATZBAFR) -

nREE

REB——RZF—FFXA=1H  ERTENKK
HEEAABEIBEANESR - #HE LHNRASE
SNBEERREEANEABRE - EMEENKEN
FEENMHEBESCANBERRBRASAMKE
FriZMEEE ANHSEREE -



(i)

(ii)

(iii)

14.

HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures
requires disclosures relating to fair value
measurements of financial instruments across
three levels of a “fair value hierarchy”. The fair
value of each financial instrument is categorised in
its entirety based on the lowest level of input that
is significant to that fair value measurement. The
levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments;

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data;

Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable
market data.

At 30 June 2011, the financial instruments of the
College carried at fair value were trading securities
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.
These instruments fall into Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy described above.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS BAERIE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

HEMBMERAER "SHTH @ #E, BRE=
EFH “ARAEERR HEAEEMIBANARE
EFt E - SEERMIENAAEEENZREERESR
BEKFERAX=BERLZ— - ZREFHROERAT -

() HFH—(REFM)  ZEMIEZLUERRTESL
RILARMER LA EERE

(i) FHZ : ZEWMTERLCERIRTS EAELIAR
BERE - WiREHS Lo ER RSN
B ERIGETRE

(i) FH=(RESR) : ZFEMTERUBIBHERD
MiR{E - EPEZNREAEETE _ LOTREEIMN
¢

E=EF——FA=1H ' rERHFENERIESRT
HER G LMNIEERS © RIBEULARBEEER
MNER  FERNERTEBRER— -

(UEBBTFTIT)

Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2011, not provided for in the financial statements, were as

follows:
RZF——FRXA=1H ' REVRBRRIBRERCEREESTAOT :
2011 2010
Contracted for [=5::59] - 381
Authorised but not Contracted for ERRBENREL - 2,811
- 3,192
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15.

16.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to the not-for-profit nature of the College and the
composition of the Board of Trustees (being drawn
from private and public organisations), the College
has received from time to time donations from its
Board of Trustee members, key management and
companies controlled or significantly influenced by
them. The receipts of such donations have all been
individually reported to and approved in accordance
with the financial regulations of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong (the “University”) by the
Board of Trustees and the University Council.

All transactions relating to the purchases of
goods and services and capital projects involving
organisations in which a member of the Board of
Trustees may have an interest are conducted during
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not
yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2011 and
which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.

The College is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these amendments,
new standards and new interpretations which is
expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significantimpact on the College’s
results of operations and financial position.

+a - BERAERS

+
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B REE S

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF UNITED COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEEPXABHHSERRED

We have audited the financial statements of the Trustees of
United College (the “College”) set out on pages 2 to 22, which
comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 2011, the statement
of comprehensive income and expenditure, the statement of
changes in funds and the cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such
internal control as the Board of Trustees determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Statue 12(7) of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Board of Trustees, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the College as at 30 June 2011 and of its
surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

23 November 2011

FAEEENUTEE "#Hf, \EERIIERE"REE -+ EHS
S "BER" /RESHMBRE - WHBHROER"S——F
AA=tTHENEERGERESEEZALFENEERER - ES¥
BRTRAERER - URTEEFTBERME REMEREEY -

REGMMBERRARBENELE

REGHEARRETESMASRHNE MBS ENRRM
BHEK - USHMBERRELEEMATHNRRAEEER BRR
BRI ERIRERES] USRI A FERR KGR
BHHIEAIERERA -

HEEEE

EMNEEERRERMNBLZHERSMBERRBIRER - HMI2R
BB (EBPSIARBEA) (3511095)R212(7) WARTE & EREEER
EERE o RIS BRMNREECTRERMAR - HAMER
MAHREENAS  HECTHMALTEERNRIEEEET -

HMEREEBSMATEGNEEBEAETER - BLE
AR METERRE - WREARRTER - USERTELEH
BRREEAFEEMEAERERT -

BiZS MATERUENGRMBRRAESELIREENNER
BEE - INEEMNRERFIURRZBEMAFIE - SETAERREENE
RMEBHMBERREEEAERBENERE - TERTG%EREN -
RHENE B E E R RR VSRR U EHEEMA TR R RERIRY
AIERZEE] - LEREHEENERER - EXIFRHEERAERE
FINNMERRER - BT EETERESRANS RN
BEMNFREENERHEETNGEY - LA EMBEHRRNER
AT -

HEE - BAIFESHNBRREEREMEERHMNELE
RIZHER -

BR

BMRE - ZFUBBRCRESEMBRESENEEMATMR
MREERR -F——FA=THNMERR REEZE ILFERN
BRNRERE -

SRS RSB
E2 e 5= T
BEEPIREITE105
RFARE8HE

—F——ft+—-RA=+=H

ucC1



uc2

THE UNITED COLLEGE ENDOWMENT FUND

THE TRUSTEES OF UNITED COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BERAPXABESERREGHSEREE

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 2 @K% &
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 #E=—8——S$xA=1HLEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LE#&T5T55R)

Note 2011 2010
B 5%
Income WA
Interest and Investment Income FIB R E W= 3 9,745 7,661
Donations and Benefactions E[EYSE=E 4 4,457 10,566
Others Hifth 789 138
14,991 18,365
Expenditure ZiH 5
Learning and Research B3l R A5
Instruction and Research HERHE 1,927 1,708
Institutional Support ERREHBNARTS
Management and General EEN—RREIE 2,136 2,365
Premises and Related Expenses BFhEREXE 139 1,138
Student and General Education Services BE N —RHEEE 7,765 7,104
Other Activities HAER 1,894 2,089
13,861 14,404
Surplus for the Year REERER 1,130 3,961
Changes in Fair Value of Available-for-Sale Ot ERFRESAREE 24,869 17,482
Equity Securities g
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year AEEREKESETE

The notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
SIERELtREE-+ B R4 #5IRER —&M7 -
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THE UNITED COLLEGE ENDOWMENT FUND

THE TRUSTEES OF UNITED COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEREPXABESERRETHRSEREE

BALANCE SHEET ZE&E&R

AS AT 30 JUNE 2011 =—F——FA=1+H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LE#ETF5T5I7R)

Note 2011 2010
P
Non-Current Assets ERBNEE
Fixed Assets BE&EE 8 4,285 4,350
Investments BE 9 217,016 192,147
221,301 196,497
Current Assets mENEE
Funds Held by the Chinese University EHREBEPIARE 10 33,000 -
of Hong Kong FE
Student Loans BLam 11 239 191
Accounts Receivable and Prepayments FEWUIR TR A TR FRIE 12 3,863 256
Cash and Cash Equivalents REMREEEY 13 39,951 74,105
77,053 74,552
Current Liabilities mEaE
Accounts Payable and Accruals FE(IIRR K T E 14 1,572 331
Provision for Employee Benefits EE &S 15 277 111
1,849 442
Net Current Assets REEEFHE 75,204 74,110
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities REERRISEE 296,505 270,607
Non-Current Liability FERIBEE
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEF£ESE 15 (8) (109)
NET ASSETS EESHE 296,497 270,498
Restricted Funds EHRES 6 42,745 41,785
Other Funds HihEE 7 253,752 228,713
TOTAL FUNDS EEHE%E 296,497 270,498

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees on 23 November 2011

HFEERRESNR _S——F+— AT += A E RIS R RILIITSRE

Shum Choi Sang £7-4
Chairman &
Board of Trustees i&RE&&

S.T. Wong &35
Member &5
Board of Trustees i&RE&&

Thomas H.C. Cheung IRIES
Chairman &
Endowment Fund Committee E£ZE=

Peter P.F. Chan B3
Hon. Treasurer {2 5]&E
Endowment Fund Committee E£ZE=

The notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE UNITED COLLEGE ENDOWMENT FUND

THE TRUSTEES OF UNITED COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
EEPTXABESERREEHRSERES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS ES®&8%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 #Z=_F——S£5A=+tHLEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MA#E#EFrT5ImR)

Restricted Funds

(Note 6)
EHES
(i 6)
Capital Funds Donations Total
and
Benefactions
BEES =LY E =R HmEE
Balance at 1 July 2009 —EFhFLtB—BEER 3,856 31,475 35,331
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year F£EZHEWZE 413 6.041 6.454
Balance at 30 June 2010 “E-FFXA=1TH%&E 4,269 37,516 41,785
Balance at 1 July 2010 —2-2FtR—BH4&K 4,269 37,516 41,785
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year FEEZEKE (54) 1,014 960
Balance at 30 June 2011 —ES——FBA=1TH#&% 4,215 38,530 42,745

The notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
SIERELtREE-+ B ZHERAI#EIRER —&M7 -
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Other Funds

(Note 7)
HihEE
(PftEE 7)
Capital General Fair Value Other Total Total Funds
Funds Endowment Reserves Reserves
Funds
AREE Hith
EEES HIEES ffmE fiEE R BERB8
155 36,185 138,535 38,849 213,724 249,055
(74) - 17,482 (2,419) 14,989 21,443
81 36,185 156,017 36,430 228,713 270,498
81 36,185 156,017 36,430 228,713 270,498
(11) - 24,869 181 25,039 25,999
70 36,185 180,886 36,611 253,752 296,497
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THE UNITED COLLEGE ENDOWMENT FUND

THE TRUSTEES OF UNITED COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEPXABESERRETHSERER

CASH FLOW STATEMENT HREFRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 ZE_F——S£XA=1tHLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB T5ImR)

Note 2011 2010
FizE
Operating Activities RESEE)
Surplus for the Year REERE 1,130 3,961
Adjustments for : HAEIEE -
Depreciation e 182 182
Dividend Income BEEUIA (8,952) (7,602)
Investment Income BEBRA (708) -
Interest Income FEWA (85) (59)
Operating Deficit before Changes SEETEERIKE (8,433) (3,518)
in Working Capital Esig
(Increase) / Decrease in Student Loans Badgmzghm) / m (48) 13
(Increase) / Decrease in Accounts Receivable — FEWIRFRARIENFRIERZ (1,804) 122
and Prepayments (&) / imed
Increase / (Decrease) in Accounts Payable FEIMRF R FESTERZ 1,241 (381)
and Accruals I/ R
Increase in Provision for Employee Benefits EEEFEfE2 8 65 66
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities REEBFRAZIRE S8 (8,979) (3,698)
Investing Activities REERE
Payment for Purchase of Fixed Assets IBREREE (117) (521)
Dividend Received [SLEis 7,854 7,602
Interest Received BRFIE 88 108
Increase in Funds Held by The Chinese EHREBPXAERIELZ (33,000) -
University of Hong Kong 3Ehn
Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Investing  R&EZFEN(FRE) / EEZIRE (25,175) 7,189
Activities B
Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash and REMREEEY2 (D) /180 (34,154) 3,491
Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year IR&NREEEY) - EVEER 74,105 70,614
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year REMREEEY - FRER 13 39,951 74,105

The notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
SIERELtREE-+ B R4 TR —&RM7




THE UNITED COLLEGE ENDOWMENT FUND
THE TRUSTEES OF UNITED COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEREPXABESERKEGHSERES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of The Trustees of United
College (the “College”) reflect the state of affairs
of all the funds of the College at 30 June 2011 and
the College’s results and cash flows for the year
then ended. The assets of the College are vested
in The Board of Trustees of the College, under the
provisions of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs, amendments to HKFRSs and new
Interpretations that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the College. The adoption of
the new and revised HKFRSs has no significant
impact on the financial statements of the College for
the years ended 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2011.

The College has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 20).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except otherwise stated in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B}f#RsRMizE

—

RNER

BEER( “FER" VREGMBHRRFIT SR
BEENTF——FBA=+THZMBER - UREE
ZHILFENRENRERE - FERREZEEL
EENRKBEEPIABHROIFRRF -

FUBHRRERREESHMASB/HAAEERRE
SR (FEMBHREERN) - EREEEREE
RMER (FEMBREEAD - (FESETEAD
HERBGMAEERNZRATEARNSERA
THRES °

BESEEI LS BM T IME M EIETTNE BRI
REEMB B ERFIFETAERRE - ELEAIE
EFEREMNSSHHABBEREN - AEHREA LR
BENEEIIEEMBEL - HEAERBEE"TES—
BERZE——FRA=THILFEMM BRI R
EAFE -

FERILBER B EERAREYFETER K
AERE (REATSHRERMIGE 20) o

TEHm BB ERERET - BRTEERIIM BT BERPINLLGREA
25 LIBEEMAERERE -

EHRBIFT S BB MBS R MIEHRRET - EEE
fELLATHEET « FHE MR B EFRRASE R AR
WENEE - BF - WAKIH - FHERBREERZ
ERBEERLZSEEXBER THERSENRREE
B o MPUELETEAEGRRIEE S ZE X8 BHIIRE
{8 FEHENRERE BRI SRS © TRl
ETNBEDREHEBRCEREFTER
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(a)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the College is set out below.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has
resulted in an increase in its future economic
benefit, such expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
fixed assets, less their estimated residual value,if
any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 40 years

Equipment, Furniture
and Fittings

3 -5years

Shorter of useful
life or duration of
project

Equipment acquired for
Research Projects

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

ELMAEIERRRE S AWK - MRIFES

METERER R - HREESEXNARNE
B AIRIERTHERMAARAREIBRE - AIFEFY
{ERTHYHARIFNAR SR HARE T LARERR

FERFIRANE RS BERREAT -

FRGEER
EE&EE

HFEESERA @ BREERNAERRTTENR
EEERIK

BRAESEBABREM—EZEEEREERE
BB FRANER - 2R - EEREEEE LNR
AR A BT EIIBINZEENRREETF
iy BEXHERERML - MWHRZEEMMN
B o

ENFELERUEEEEN M AN REEGFTHIR
REEER)  LLUEGHTEZBENT - BEEE
AU ETERFRAIT -

BE 40 £FF

RIERE KRR 3-54

BRIIEE R OHAERFIEESE
Bl HohEEE

BE  BENERFERAMBREEFET ESRE
= o



(b)

An impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, is more than its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
an asset, or of the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, is the greater of its fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
assets. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset are determined as the difference between
the net proceeds and the carrying amount of the
fixed asset and are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Investments

(i) Investments are recognised/derecognised on
the date the College commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire. Investments in
equity securities are initially stated at fair value
plus transaction costs.

(i) The equity securities held by the College are
not for trading purpose and are classified
as “available-for-sale equity securities”. At
each balance sheet date, the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the fair
value reserve, except for impairment loss.

When there is objective evidence that available-
for-sale equity securities are impaired, the
cumulative loss that had been recognised
directly in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is
the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the College concerning the
underlying financial stability of the investee as
well as a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment below its cost.

HFfEEENREENREEEEMSRTWDEIKZ
I ERKISIIERRRERE - SIEIMAZRIE
EENEREE  LBAERE - EREERLIS
ERRAREREFERIRE - MAAARITHIRERE
RRERHIRETHELEENEBER - SRS
O EIEBENGERRCSZEN TS - IEEE
ERIESWEE -

ElEE ETEH SR EER T E L (E A me S
Bz EE HERSRIEFHEAIREER 2 =8ET
8 REEHEC Bt AZERZERA -

"E

(i) HEMERLIIREESSHRAERER L EZX
REEENZRERBZHAERT - IRAES
RE - HRAZRUAABENRSEREE -

(i) *7ERFENRTELHAZRACEERE - B
LEFEERIES "TItHERAES. - EBFEREE
H - BEESNAREBEREME @ [RiER
185 - FrEIRERREMEERE A REE
fEfRERRERR o

EREREERATHEERTETSRERRE
RERBE - HRFTBESRELEERFEEAMN
BR - MEHABEEERIZERA - MEZERR
KRN RTBESREUBABLERTER
ZLBITEREWRR ERERRRERRRZERM
BT - BENEHEESESRUBARNG &
REZFFEANMERE  URLREEEERN
RBERMANRE -

uc9



uc10

(c)

(iii) Impairmentlosses recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such assets is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

Funds placed with investment managers in
the name of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong comprise cash deposits, bonds and
equity investments managed by independent
investment managers. These funds are stated
at fair value and any change in the fair value
of the funds is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(d) Employee Benefits

(i) Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowances
and the cost to the College of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees
of the College.

(ii) Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment of not less than two
years. The gratuity, together with the total
amount of the College’s contributions to a
particular retirement scheme, will add up to
10% or 15% of the appointee’s basic salary
drawn during the contract period.

(i)  Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans, including Mandatory Provident Funds
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are
recognised as an expenditure in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as
incurred.

(iv)  Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the College demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of

withdrawal.

ﬁs

(i) TIRHERAESNRESRTEERRAE
MR LRATEE - HR - oRBEELHA -
EHEEERCARMEEWEA

UBBPXABZRENIREEMATIZMIAEE
EEREEM - BERRATES - BEREBEUA
REEIT - HARBEBEMNEEEREE
EEHRA °

(iv)

RERBEEEY

RENASEEVOFERTERMRSE - FHRRET
ME BB RABREIATER - DUAERNREMEES
HNIREIER - EEIEEROUSSHREREMAIR
EHEMRERZNEESBEARE)  LEBAR
=EBAEIHE -

EEET

(i) %E - BFHFR - EERMASEFEBEEEF
HIRRZS @ RES RAHERREHFEEAALR

(i) SERMFERLULEASH - BEERFEZLWEH
& o WHRIERAE RN EIPHE RN -
RBBEERSHIARFEN10%H15%

FEHRFURINGTEIC AR - BEEEEHEAE
ERGIZEFIELTEEHR - IREERERT
EEWSRAERRL

(iii)

BRRIEMERSEASREMED - F4 -
BAAKTIRERDIAETBIR - SiiRIBRXETEIE R
ERESMALLSHAFLHER - THERR
X e

(iv)



(e)

()

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the College has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where itis not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Income Recognition

Provided itis probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the College and the income and expenditure,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure as follows:

(i) InterestIncome

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

(i) Dividend Income

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(iii) Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure when the College becomes
entitled to the donations and benefactions and
it is probable that they will be received, which is
generally receipt of cash.

%~ #EERZEEAE

MRBMERENSHRB LB EEERT - MRH
SEHSHEENENERINAG - EULUELTISER
&t AERMERXEERHELCENAER
#ii - SRENPBRATEEAN - SURHHIR
E{FRE -

MREFEEYHEFRINRATREMRIE - A
HEEBBELTENMGE - IREZEBRAETE
& (BEERINRRTREMARERIBRS - ERERENR
FARE-BERZIERREY - BESBRIREREL
RHNE(T - FRIFREZ BN SATCTREMEE -

c - WARER

MREEMRAREGRA - TMAFIRE - (558
XAESTISEHETER - FERESRBETIELEES
ESTRATERHIA ©

(i) FIEUEE
FEWMEUE RN R E AT M R E
(i) BEE

EmREzsaRE BRI AR ERR B R

(iii) $BEERIBHR

RREBERREERGE AT URENEXIER
B - BREERWEIRER  EEEKXERA
HERBYA o
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(9)

(h)

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
on foreign currency translation are dealt with in the
relevant fund accounts through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Related Parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the College if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the College or exercise significant influence
over the College in making financial and
operating policy decisions, or has joint control
over the College;

(ii) the College and the party are subject to common
control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the College or ajoint
venture in which the College is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the College or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity
under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
College or of any entity that is a related party
of the College.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.

B~ ShgRE

FALSMEREMNC BIERS  RAR S H 2 IHEE
RABREBE -REERERGEHLOMESIECEE
BEBERAE  HLZRBIIMNEERZERELE - Fi
BEREBYEEERZRERLIFAFIBEEA

¥~ BEBS

TERRAITEIRRE - FERMBB S 215

() RATHENEERI[EEE—ERZEPTA
ZH - RO RBEAREFE RN RAEER
R SHEEHRNER

(i) AERFZALTHIZHENES

(i) FATBAIERNBELTASTELT
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(iv) RALTBAERTEEEASABZFALHIE
MREME ~ ARZFALTES - HHFEEGE
EAFENER
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(vi) BRRHENPAESRABFERFAVEENE
AURERIR EAIETE -
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BARERKENRSZERAMMEEIERNRZS
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INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME FE KRB kR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TT5IR)
2011 2010
Net Realised and Unrealised Gains on BB NHMESFERMRERIK 708 -
Trading and Other Securities Ema il
Dividends from Listed Equity Securities LR AESFER 8,952 7,602
Interest from Bank Deposits RITERFS 85 59
9,745 7,661
DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS EELEYNEEA
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TTHIR)
2011 2010
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries HEE - PIBENEE 3,285 3,894
Others Hit 1,172 6,672
4,457 10,566
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5. EXPENDITURE X
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT 7THIR)

2011 2010
Staff Cost Operating Total Staff Cost Operating Total
and Expenses and Expenses
Benefits Benefits
Sl BT E

RiEFl EEpx @E REN ZERx A%

Learning and Research Bfif &R
Instruction and Research BENHTE 105 1,822 1,927 244 1,464 1,708

Institutional Support (Note 5.1) = FREHBIARFE (FizE5.1)

Management and General BEN—KEE 2,124 12 2136 2,365 - 2,365

Premises and Related Expenses 1&FRBEIZH - 139 139 - 1,138 1,138

Students and General Education ZER—BRHE 629 7,136 7,765 549 6,555 7,104
Services E2

Other Activities H{thsE#5 12 1,882 1,894 1 2,088 2,089

2,765 9,169 11,934 2,915 9,781 12,696

Total Expenditure B H 2,870 10,991 13,861 3,159 11,245 14,404
5.1 Analysis of Operating Expenses on Institutional Support ERGHRFNEEZHA R
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (WA BHET TT5IR)
2011 2010
Management and General BB R—REEIE
Miscellaneous I 12 -
Premises and Related Expenses BFAERAXH
Renovation and Maintenance R TR RAE 139 1,138
Student and General Education Services BER—RBESH
Scholarships & Prizes RBEERERE 5,289 4,853
Student/Extra-curricular Activities B ERINEE 1,802 1,680
Microcomputer Laboratory BH=E 45 22
7,136 6,555
Other Activities H{ths75
College Publications ST 154 96
College Activities and Functions EbER 1,006 901
Exchange Loss BESIER - 941
Miscellaneous I8 722 150
1,882 2,088

9,169 9,781
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NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESTRICTED
FUNDS

Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets which were financed by
funds with non-designated purpose.

Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions represent funds
received by the College from the Donors which are
used to support Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries
of the College.

Fair Value Reserves

Fair Value Reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale equity
securities held at the balance sheet date and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies in
note 2(b).

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF OTHER FUNDS

Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets which were financed by
funds with non-designated purpose.

General Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations received
by the College, usually with the stipulation from the
donors that the principal amounts should remain
intact in perpetuity or for a defined time period for
specific purposes.

Fair Value Reserves

Fair Value Reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale equity
securities held at the balance sheet date and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies in
note 2(b).

Other Reserves

Other Reserves represent the reserves generated
by the College from interest and investmentincome
which are used to support college activities, student
activities, programmes or projects of the College.

BEEENHERRAR

BEEES
EEEEEHIFNERAENESRENEEEEN
WRETEE °

R RIER
B L IBTZ IR E A - PR AEMERAR
FERNREE - BIBRENBESERE -

AfeEEREEE

AREERFEEREEREREGEDAFENTIH#E
ERTESNRBLABEFEE - WARBIRMEE
2(b)MNBETBUERT AR

HittBEZHHE R AR

BEERE®

EEEEERFRERENEERENETEEN
IRELFE °

BXEE

BAESEERKEINERNE  BEEERERE
EERRETE  BEXANIEREHENIESTE
A o

D fEEREE

LhBEERFEEREEEEREENRSENTH#EH
ERFFSNRBLOABESEE  WARRIHEE
2(b)VBETBERMEE ©

HthSREE
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FIXED ASSETS ER&E
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT 7T5IR)
Buildings  Equipment, Total
Furniture
and
Fittings
HRARE
BrEs PEL ]

Cost %=

At 1 July 2009 —ESEAELA—-AES 4,175 1,602 5,777

Additions wE 521 - 521

Disposals HE - (19) (19)
At 30 June 2010 “ES-FBFEXRB=TH#&R 4,696 1,583 6,279
Accumulated Depreciation REtiIRE

At 1 July 2009 “EFhFLtB—BEER 327 1,439 1,766

Charge for the Year REEIRE 106 76 182

Written Back on Disposals HER Mm% - (19) (19)
At 30 June 2010 “E-TFEXRBA=1TH#&R 433 1,496 1,929
Net Book Value 2010 “_E-TFREEE 4,263 87 4,350
Cost R AE

At 1 July 2010 “E-FFtA—B#8k 4,696 1,583 6,279

Additions w"E 63 54 117

Disposals HE - (10) (10)

At 30 June 2011 t= St AV [ty ol = P2 4,759 1,627 6,386
Accumulated Depreciation e

At 1 July 2010 “ES-FSFt+tH—H#%&8 433 1,496 1,929

Charge for the Year REEIRFE 120 62 182

Written Back on Disposals HER D - (10) (10)

At 30 June 2011 “S——FB=1TH#&% 553 1,548 2,101
Net Book Value 2011 —E——FIREFE

4,206 79

4,285



10.

1.

12.

INVESTMENTS A=
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (WA BT TT5ITR)

2011 2010
Available-for-Sale Equity Securities Ot EREANGE
at Fair Value UL REEIR
- Listed in Hong Kong -EEB LT 217,016 192,147
FUNDS HELD BY THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG (“CUHK” or the “University”)
FHREBPIAE( “XEB” FRIE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT T5R)
2011 2010
Funds Placed with Investment Managers UEBPXREBEZREFN 11,304 -
in the name of CUHK BEBIATZRIE
Marketable Investments in the name of UEBPXRBERER 21,696 -
CUHK BERSFREZNE
33.000 -
STUDENT LOANS BEEWR
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LABHEET TTHIT)
2011 2010
Student Emergency Loans BEZESEN 81 47
Wong Fung Ling Student Loans SEMELEEM 20 10
Travel Loans for Non-Local Academic IEREBEREENETE 138 134
Activities Scheme
239 191
The student loans are expected to be recoverable or recognised as expenses within one year.
BAESMIRIEIFEHER —FRANESERAXE -
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS FEMUR R By 78 A+ FRIE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (WA BT TT5ITR)
2011 2010
Accounts Receivable FEUTIRTR 1,100 5
Prepayments FEIFRIE 1,861 131
Amount due from The Chinese University & B SIARER 902 120
of Hong Kong (Note) RIS (FiEE)
3,863 256

The accounts receivable, prepayments and amount due from The Chinese University of Hong Kong are

expected to be recoverable or recognised as expenses within one year.
FEWUIRTR ~ FEMTRIE R BINE B ARBIRIEINFAAR —FAKE S #ER AR

Note:  The outstanding balance with CUHK is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed repayment term.

MizE: EERRPXABERKRD @ ZERBHRAEDDRER - RRLERECEERG
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13.

14.

15.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REMREZEEY

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (WA BHET TT5ITR)
2011 2010
Cash at Bank and on Hand IRITHRBRRIRE 424 221
Short-term Deposits EHAER 39,527 73,884
39,951 74,105

Included in short-term time deposits is the following amount denominated in the following foreign currency:

HRITEIEMERTIIMIMEREEEE :
(Expressed in thousands)  (MAFI7)

2011 2010
Pounds Sterling (“GBP”) BaEE 800 800
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS R A T & A
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT 7THIR)

2011 2010
Accounts Payable FETIRFR 347 318
Receipt in Advance FAWERIE 1,215 -
Accruals FEEtEH 10 13

1,572 331

The accounts payable and accurals are expected to be settled within one year or are payable on demand.

FEAIIRTR K FEET B RISTE R — F AR EMIRE R AT

PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EEEF#H
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UBET7TIR)

2011 2010
Contract-end Gratuity HmE 157 103
Other Employee Benefits HittE S &7 128 117
285 220

Payable FET
Within 1 year R—%FR 277 111
After 1 year R—F#& 8 109
285 220



16.

17.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The College is a not-for-profit organisation and forms
part of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. It aims
to offer a balanced and holistic education with rich
college life to students in supporting their personal
growth and development. The College defines
capital as including various general and restricted
funds balances. The various funds represent the
unspent balance of donations, grants and income.
These funds are managed in accordance with the
College’s financial management procedures and the
relevant funding conditions, where applicable. The
College’s primary objective when managing capital
is to safeguard the College’s ability to continue as
a going concern and to maintain a strong financial
base to support the development of the College. To
achieve the above capital management objective,
the College sets guidelines on investment and
financial management. For funds with specific
purpose, they will mainly be placed in fixed deposits,
whereas funds invested in blue chip equity securities
are reserved for general use.

There has been no change in the College’s capital
management practices as compared to prior year.
The College is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirement.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The College’s financial instruments mainly include
bank deposits, equity securities and funds held
by the Chinese University of Hong Kong, which
are exposed to credit, interest rate, currency and
equity price risks. The risks on financial assets
are controlled in accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Endowment Fund
Committee under the College’s Board of Trustees.
This is achieved through diversified asset allocation,
rules governing the selection and credit limits
of investment counterparties with reference to
their credit ratings and financial strength. The
Endowment Fund Committee reviews investment
strategies and performance periodically to ensure
that the investment objectives and performance
targets are met. An investment sub-committee
under the Endowment Fund Committee meets
periodically to manage and monitor risk exposures
associated with respective financial assets to
ensure that appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

+x-

+6-

BErEH

FEREMBREEPIXABHIELEFERE - 15k
HRERERBERATE R TENHENEER
EEE - WEttPIRMRRAERR - ERNERERE
FE—RESNSAEE - MARENANEM - MEIER
HMWARIMHENPAAESESEA - BEESR
REERNVBEEEBRRKREE - ~1EREEES
NEBREERERSRAEEEEELBRENM
BiRRREFERNER - BEZLEN - Sk
E T HENRE RMEEENIES  c ERAEETE
BEREHRENR > MERRREERTESHNESA
BE—RAE -

FERNERNEEBRLSBANEEERFHEE - 2k
WL BIMEREMBERRE

TR IRREREE

FERFANEMIETERRTENR - REZJIHK
EFRREEPXASEME - AERZES ~ fIE -
SMERITREBNER - EREGE THESZH
TE TIREIES IRIEHIELERE - MEERGTHRER
BARRUMFSIRERS MEFIRFER - TEES
X TH—(EREVE - ZENSEHRETHEREE -
LAt tRAERNRS ~ BRUtIREVEEEE
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(a)

(b)

(c)

Credit Risk

The College’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
bank deposits. Management has a credit policy
in place and exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. The College places
deposits with major financial institutions with good
credit ratings. The credit risk associated with the
funds held by the Chinese University of Hong
Kong is considered to be low. The College has no
significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the balance sheet.

Interest Rate Risk

The College is exposed to interest rate risk primarily
arising from its short-term bank deposits due to
fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest
rates.

As at 30 June 2011, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in fixed
deposit interest rate, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease the
College’s surplus for the year and net assets at the
balance sheet date by approximately HKD395,000
(2010: HKD740,000). This analysis has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rate had occurred at the balance sheet date and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
short-term deposits in existence at that date, with an
assumption that fixed term instruments which expire
during the next reporting period will be rolled over at
the expiry of that term at the new market rate.

Currency Risk

The College’s foreign currency risk exposure mainly
arises from a GBP short-term deposit.

As at 30 June 2011, the percentage of financial
assets denominated in currencies other than HKD
to total assets is 3.4% (2010: 3.5%). The College
considers the effect of currency risk on the financial
statements not material.

Though the funds held by the University are also
invested in debt and equity securities and bank
deposits denominated in United States dollars,
management does not consider it necessary to
hedge the exposure on United States dollars given
that the Hong Kong dollars are currently pegged to
the United States dollars under the linked exchange
rate system adopted by the HKSAR Government.

$s

Z,~
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(d)

(e)

Equity Price Risk

The College is exposed to equity price risk arising
from available-for-sale equity securities. All of these
investments are blue chip shares listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and are included
in the Hang Seng Index. These investments have
been chosen based on their longer term growth
potential. Management monitors regularly the
performance of the investments to ensure their
suitability as investments for the College.The equity
price risk related to funds held by the University is
managed by professional managers through their
own risk management and assessment policies.
The investment managers’ investment strategies are
governed by the University’s investment and asset
allocation guidelines. The College also monitors the
risk exposure by reviewing periodic reports from the
custodians and investment managers.

As at 30 June 2011, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 10% in these securities’
market prices, with all other variables held
constant, would increase/decrease the College’s
net assets by approximately HKD22,022,000 (2010:
HKD19,200,000).

Fair Values

Financial instruments carried at fair value

HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, requires
disclosures relating to fair value measurements of
financial instruments across three levels of a “fair
value hierarchy”. The fair value of each financial
instrument is categorised in its entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

* Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments

* Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data

* Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable
market data

At 30 June 2011, the only financial instruments of
the College carried at fair value were available-for-
sale equity securities of HKD217,016,000 (2010:
HKD192,147,000) listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong. These instruments fall into Level 1 of
the fair value hierarchy described above.
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18. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS BAEIE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(UBEFTHIR)

Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2011, not provided for in the financial statements, are as

uc22

follows:

REF——FA=1H » REMBERERERERNREINAT -

2011 2010
Contracted for BN - 63
Authorised but not Contracted for EIREELRELN 1,190 1,105
1,190 1,168
19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS +h - BEEARS
Due to the not-for-profit nature of the College and BARAERTGIERFEE MREEREREBRT
the composition of the Board of Trustees (being BTN, BRI ARSRINEERBIRKRESR
drawn from private and public organisations), 5 AERISZTEAS ) REELNATESH
Lhen fOL'egfre r:ats rgcer'gei ;frOmt time to time BAREBHATNER - BLEERSH R EHE
onations Trom [ts Board of 1rusiees members, ERRASREG LIRS BP AL "AE, )i
key management and companies controlled or S5 3B B S o
significantly influenced by them. The receipts of :
such donations have all been individually reported
to and approved in accordance with the financial
regulations of the Chinese University of Hong Kong
(the “University”) by the Board of Trustees and the
University Council.
All transactions relating to the purchases of REREEREFEBETFEENEENRBRE M
goods and services and capital projects involving HiZI5E - lgesiaAERREE N ETNEREEFEN
organisations in which a member of the Board of Mg R - (BB L S IR B A EAFS R BB IE &
Trustees may have an interest are conducted during HOERRE TS (T o
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and
normal procurement procedures.
20. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW =+ -R#Z-—f—--SXA=+HLFEZHHEBCHE

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 30
June 2011 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements.

The College is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and new
interpretations which is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the College’s results of
operations and financial position.

ERERMESET - T ENRRETREENE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B REER S

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SHAW COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
HBEEPNABRRERKRED

We have audited the financial statements of the Trustees of Shaw
College (the “College”) set out on pages 2 to 21, which comprise
the balance sheet as at 30 June 2011, and the statement of
comprehensive income and expenditure, the statement of
changes in funds and the cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such
internal control as the Board of Trustees determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Statue 12(7) of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong Ordinance (Cap. 1109), and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Board of Trustees, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the College as at 30 June 2011 and of its
surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

18 November 2011

FEREEMATEE "B, ) EERIERE"EEE—_+—HEX
Sk &R /RESHMHHE - WHBEHREER=S—%
AAE=THMEESERESEZHILFENEEIERR - E2E9)
RMRERER - URTEEFBERMIEREMPIEEREEY

RETMMBHRRARIENEE

REGHEARRBETEDMASRMNEEMEBREEARERM
BHEK - USHMBRRMELEEMATHNRRECEEER SRR
BRI ERNIAERER] - MEMISRR A FERRIREEE SR
BHMERIEREL

HHETEE

HANEIEREEMINBSLEZSVBERRERER - ZAIZEER

CERPIARBEG (51109F)RT212(7) MRE & ERBIERE
BIRE o BRILLLSH  RFIRERESEFIREEMARE - HAMERAE
BEENAE - HEAHMATETRAIEEESIE -

HMEREBEESMASRMNEBBTERETER - BLE
AIEREMETERRE - WREIRRITER - USEREIEFM
BRRESF A HAEAERE -

B R TR L E IR MR R T R A IR E SR
2 o FMEEAVTEFPEURICZENATATAIE - ARG EAERm
BYMERRTEEAERRIAERE - TERTAZSEMRN - ABED
ZRASERFERUBHRRUELEEMAFHIRRAERHASDE
Hl - LEREtEENERRER - BliJFRHEERIAETEH AIEE
BRER - BRI EETERESFRANSBRNGEIE AR
EHMVEEHMERTIVS IR - MR EMBIRRNERIHA -

HHAE - BAIFMESHEREERREMEEMRRMANELE
RZHER -

R

RS - AFUEBRCRESEMBHRSENEEMA TR
BREERR -F——FA=THNMEIRE REEZE LLFEN
BRRRERE

&t

EERE BB
£z E 3=
EBPIRIEITE 105
RFAREsE

—®——&+—A+tNE

SC1



SC2

THE TRUSTEES OF SHAW COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEEPNABERXERKRED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ZMmig&ER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011
B@E—F-——FAA=THLHFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L& 5t55R)

Note 2011 2010
PiEE
Income WA
Interest and Investment Income MEMITEW = 3 17,487 3,144
Donations and Benefactions Ei=EYSE R 4 76,356 25,507
Other Income EL g A 1,577 498
95,420 29,149
Expenditure s 5
Learning and Research Biii &%
Other Academic Services H{th24E AR5 619 549
Institutional Support EPrimHBh RS
Management and General EBEN—HREIE 884 482
Premises and Related Expenses BFAEETH 1,956 3,818
Student and General Education Services BYER—BHEEH 2,943 2,228
Other Activities HAthEE 801 41
7,203 7,118
Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income TEERBAEEEE 88,217 22,031

and Expenditure for the Year

The notes set out on pages 6 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE TRUSTEES OF SHAW COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEEPXABERXERRET

BALANCE SHEET EE&ER

AS AT 30 JUNE 2011

—F-—FXA=1+H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAE#EFT5I7R)

Note 2011 2010
FiiEE
Non-Current Asset ERENEE

Fixed Assets BE&EE 8 - 2
- 2

Current Assets RENEE
Investments e a1 9 4,720 1,046
Funds Held by The Chinese University of FHREEPXAE 10 140,908 59,936

Hong Kong A
Student Loans B4EER 11 812 887
Accounts Receivable FEUTIR TR 12 83 90
Cash at Bank and Time Deposits IRIT R EHATER 13 3,640 12
150,163 61,971

Current Liabilities wEas
Accounts Payable and Accruals RfIRR B ER 14 755 782
Provision for Employee Benefits EEEN£ESE 15 12
770 794
Net Current Assets MENEEFSE 149,393 61,177
Total Assets Net of Current Liabilities BEERGIHEE 149,393 61,179

Non-Current Liability ERBEIAE

Provision for Employee Benefits EEEF£EE 3 6
NET ASSETS EESHE 149,390 61,173
Restricted Funds EREE 6 148,697 60,436
Other Funds HihEE 7 693 737
TOTAL FUNDS EEHE%E 149,390 61,173

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees on 18 November 2011

BRERREEN"F——F+— BT\ B ERREERIMBRER

Clement Fung JBJ&i5 Chairman, X

Board of Trustees {{&&

Hamen Fan SEEE& Hon. Treasurer, Z25][E
Board of Trustees {{E&EE

Chan Chi Fai BR&H Member, Z8

Board of Trustees {XE&E&

The notes set out on pages 6 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE TRUSTEES OF SHAW COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEEPNABRXERKRED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS Ef &R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

HE_F-——-FFRA=STHLEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L{&#&F5T57R)

Restricted Other
Funds Funds
SHES HittEE
Other Total
Capital Endowment Restricted ~ Total Reserves Funds
Funds Funds Funds

BEE: BFXEES Hum=A

#RE ffRE BETHHR

Balance at 1 July 2009 Z“EZhF+tHA—H%4&EHR 7 18,873 19,373

Transfers (to)/from the #E(E)BEEERR (5) 2,767 19,421
Statement of
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

(Note 6)  (Note 7)
(Ff=E6) (FIEET)

38,253 889 39,142

22,183 (152) 22,031

Balance at 30 June 2010 —Z—FF;xA=1+H#&% 2 21,640 38,794

60,436 737 61,173

Balance at 1 July 2010 Z—Z—TF+H—H#&% 2 21,640 38,794

Transfers (to)/from the #E(E)BEEHERR (2) 80,722 7,541
Statement of
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

60,436 737 61,173

88,261 (44) 88,217

Balance at 30 June 2011 —&——&;xB=1+H#&% - 102,362 46,335

148,697 693 149,390

The notes set out on pages 6 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE TRUSTEES OF SHAW COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

BEEPXABRXERRET
CASH FLOW STATEMENT RERER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

HE—_F-——FRA=THLFE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAE#EFT5I7R)

Note 2011 2010
FfiaE
Operating Activities mESER)
Surplus for the Year REERE 88,217 22,031
Adjustments for: HAEIER
Depreciation e 2 5
Net Realised and Unrealised Gains on Trading BB NHMESFEIR MRERI (15,024) (3,097)
and Other Securities =iEEH
Interest Income FIBUWA @ -
Dividend Income RERDWA (2,459) (47)
Operating Surplus before Changes in Working LEGTEHILERIR 70,732 18,892
Capital
Decrease in Student Loans BEaRZRD 75 211
Decrease in Accounts Receivable EE R HEMEYIRTRZ D 30 -
Decrease in Accounts Payable and Accruals FE(TRFR A FEET B A 2 i (27) (11)
Increase in Provision for Employee Benefits EEEF£EfmZEm - 16
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities REEBEEIREFHE 70,810 19,108
Investing Activities BEER
Increase in Time Deposits with Original Maturity FREREBIE =B B ERER (3,581) -
over Three Months 2238
Payment for Purchase of Listed Securities AR EhRES (4,353) -
Proceeds from Sales of Listed Securities HE& LSS MIE 692 3,696
Increase in Funds Held by The Chinese ERREEPIARERIELZ (63,603)  (22,853)
University of Hong Kong 1ghn
Dividend Received EMEE 51 47
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities BRERBFMAZIRE S (70,794) (19,110)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents IR& MIRE S B2 IN/GED) 16 )
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year RERIREEEY - FVEHR 12 14
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year REMREEEY) - FLEHE 13 28 12

The notes set out on pages 6 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.
NEHREARREE-+—BMERRMBERRC—EMD
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THE TRUSTEES OF SHAW COLLEGE
THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEEPXABRXERRET

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ER R AT

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of The Trustees of Shaw
College (the “College”) reflect the state of affairs
of all the funds of the College at 30 June 2011 and
the College’s results and cash flows for the year
then ended. The assets of the College are vested
in The Board of Trustees of the College under the
provisions of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs, amendments to HKFRSs and new
Interpretations that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the College. The adoption of
the new and revised HKFRSs has no significant
impact on the financial statements of the College for
the years ended 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2011.

The College has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 18).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except otherwise stated in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the College is set out below.

—_—
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(@)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Where it can be clearly demonstrated
that subsequent expenditure on an asset has
resulted in an increase in its future economic benefit,
such expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of fixed
assets, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Equipment, Furniture, 5 years
Fixtures and Fittings
Computer Equipment 3 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

An impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, is more than its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
an asset, or of the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, is the greater of its fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
assets. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of a fixed
asset are determined as the difference between
the net proceeds and the carrying amount of the
fixed asset and are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Investments

(i) Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets and are initially
stated at fair value. At each balance sheet date
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

(i) Funds placed with investment managers in
the name of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong comprise cash deposits, bonds and
equity investments managed by independent
investment managers. These funds are stated
at fair value and any change in the fair value
of the funds is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

(iii) Investments are recognised/derecognised on
the date the College commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial insitutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are ready convertiable into
known amounts of cash, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the College has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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(e)

(f)

Income Recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the College and the income and expenditure,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure as follows:

(i) Interest Income

Interestincome is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

(ii) Dividends

Dividend income from listed securities is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(iii) Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure when the College becomes
entitled to the donations and benefactions and
it is probable that they will be received.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
on foreign currency translation are dealt with in the
relevant fund accounts through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
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(9)

(h)

Employee Benefits

(iy Salaries, paid annual leave, housing allowances
and the cost to the College of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees of the College.

(ii) Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment of not less than two
years. The gratuity, together with the total
amount of the College’s contributions to a
particular retirement scheme, will add up to
10% or 15% of the appointee’s basic salary
drawn during the contract period.

(iii) Contribution to defined contribution retirement
plan are recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure as incurred.

(iv) Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the College demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Related Parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the College if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the College or exercise significant influence
over the College in making financial and
operating policy decisions, or has joint control
over the College;

(i) the College and the party are subject to
common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the College or a joint
venture in which the College is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the College, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity
under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
College or of any entity that is a related party
of the College.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.
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INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME B RGE WS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TT5IR)
2011 2010
Net Realised and Unrealised Gains on BEMNHMESFERNMRERK 15,024 3,097
Trading and Other Securities e
Dividends from Listed Securities LHRERE 2,459 47
Interest Income from Bank Deposits RITERFE 4 -
17,487 3,144
DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS EELEYSEEEA
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT TT5IR)
2011 2010
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries IBES . PES NSRS 67,633 3,185
College and Student Development Fund ERNEBEREES 8,723 22,322
76,356 25,507
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EXPENDITURE i

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT 7THIR)
Staff Cost Operating
and Benefits Expenses Total
BT
KiEFl SER% FEEE]
Learning and Research: Efii RS :
Other Academic Services Hth20E RS 430 189 619
430 189 619
Institutional Support (Note 5.1): ErRHBARTE (FMIEE5.1):
Management and General EEN—REEIR 865 19 884
Premises and Related Expenses BFAERRH - 1,956 1,956
Students and General Education Services B4 h—RRHBEER - 2,943 2,943
Other Activities HthE% - 801 801
865 5,719 6,584
Total Expenditure for 2011 “E——FHETH 1,295 5,908 7,203
Learning and Research: Bilf MR
Other Academic Services HEL{thZ B3 AR 421 128 549
421 128 549
Institutional Support (Note 5.1): EPREHENRRTS (FiEE5.1):
Management and General EHEN—HREIE 473 9 482
Premises and Related Expenses EBF BRI - 3,818 3,818
Students and General Education Services B4 M—REHEER - 2,228 2,228
Other Activities HAth=E7#% - 41 41
473 6,096 6,569
Total Expenditure for 2010 “E-FFEELTH 894 6,224 7,118




5.1 Analysis of Operating Expenses on Institutional Support EREBRFEAVEEREZ S

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ABEET TTHIR)
2011 2010
Management and General EEN—RREIR
General Insurance RIGE 17 4
Depreciation e 2 5
19 9
Premises and Related Expenses BFRBR%H
Miscellaneous HMIEX 1,956 3,818
1,956 3,818
Students and General Education Services BEN—BBESERE
Scholarship and Prizes REE NIZE 1,889 1,648
Student Activities B4EE) 1,054 580
2,943 2,228
Other Activities HthEE3
(Write-back of)/Provision for Overdue B EFUEA(EE) % (11) 9
Student Loans
Miscellaneous #IE 812 32
801 41
5,719 6,096
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NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESTRICTED
FUNDS

Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets which were financed by
funds with non-designated purpose.

Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations received
by the College, usually with the stipulation from the
donors that the principal amounts should remain
intact in perpetuity or for a defined time period for
specific purposes.

Other Restricted Funds

Other Restricted Funds represent the unspent
balance of funds donated for the development
of the College. In addition, the Funds also
comprise the unspent balance of donations which
support student scholarships, bursaries and
development.

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF OTHER FUNDS
Other Funds

Other Funds represent the unspent balance of
funds generated from college activities.
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8.

FIXED ASSETS EREE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUEHSTFIT5ITR)
Computer Equipment, Total
Equipment Furniture,
Fixtures and
Fittings
=M ~ R &
Ehi KB FEEL]

Cost B

At 1 July 2009 and “EEAFELtRA—BR

30 June 2010 “E-SFHA=THZH&ER 409 308 717
Accumulated Depreciation HEHRrE

At 1 July 2009 —EThELB—-H2&ES 409 301 710

Charge for the Year REEIRE - 5 5

At 30 June 2010 “E-SFXBA=THHER 409 306 715
Net Book Value at 30 June 2010 —F—FFAA=1THIREFE - 2 2
Cost % |

At 1 July 2010 —E-2FtH—H 409 308 717

Disposals HE (155) - (155)

At 30 June 2011 “E——FXRB=1THZ &R 254 308 562
Accumulated Depreciation ZEHrE

At 1 July 2010 “ES-SFtH—HeER 409 306 715

Charge for the Year REERE - 2 2

Written Back on Disposal HEZERE (155) - (155)

At 30 June 2011 —S——FRB=1THZER 254 308 562

Net Book Value at 30 June 2011

—E——FRAZTHIEEEE
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9.

10.

1.

12.

INVESTMENTS BE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UBETFITHIR)
2011 2010
Current investments mEngE
Trading Securities, at Fair Value 5ERS  BRAnBEENTR
Equity Securities, Listed in Hong Kong EEE LIRS 3,580 21
Unit Trusts, Listed in Hong Kong TEEEBLHNENGETEES 1,140 1,025
4,720 1,046
FUNDS HELD BY THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG (“CUHK?” or the “University”)
FHREBPIAE( “XEB” FRIE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (U BHETFITHIR)
2011 2010
Funds Placed with Investment Managers DBEBPIABERETR 22,034 6,555
in the name of CUHK KREERASIZMIE
Marketable Investments in the name of PIETEP I AEZHEZR 118,874 53,381
CUHK BERSKREZNE
140,908 59,936
STUDENT LOANS BEEM
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB TTAIR)
2011 2010
Student Loans Outstanding REEEBLEEM 951 1,037
Impairment Provision for Overdue Student Loans BLOFuaiaEE (139) (150)
812 887
The movement in the impairment provision for MUT—BRITRAEEALBEETRIARHEIVES)
overdue student loans during the year is as
follows:
At 1 July tB—Hx2#&8k 150 141
Impairment loss recognised E{EEE - 9
Impairment provision written back o (11) -
At 30 June ANA=TH2ERR 139 150

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable is expected to be recoverable
within one year.
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FERIRFRFEEAR —E AT -



13.

14.

15.

CASH AT BANK AND TIME DEPOSITS

RITREMER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (LUEHETFITHITR)
2011 2010
Cash at Bank RITEM 28 12
Time Deposits EHAEM 3,612 -
Cash at Bank and Time Deposits inthe ~ BEBBRARITR 3,640 12
Balance Sheet EHATFR
Less: Time Deposits with Original Maturity i&: 7 HA B =18 AR EHA (3,612) -
over Three Months =R
Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Cash IREFRERANIRE
Flow Statement RIREEFEY 28 12

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS

Accounts payable and accruals include payables
to students from overseas on student exchange
programme.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The College is a not-for-profit organisation and forms
part of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. The
College aims to provide general education and
development activities for University students. The
College defines capital as including various general
and restricted funds balances.

The various funds represent the unspent balance
of donations, grants, and income. These funds are
managed in accordance with the College’s financial
management procedures and the relevant funding
conditions, where applicable.

The College’s primary objective when managing
capital is to safeguard the College’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain a
strong financial base to support the development
of the College.

To achieve the above capital management objective,
the College follows guidelines on investment and
financial management as set out in note 16.

There has been no change in the College’s capital
management practices as compared to prior year.

The College is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirement.
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16.

(a)

(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The College’s financial instruments mainly include
bank deposits, studentloans, accounts receivable,
equity securities and funds held by the University,
which are exposed to credit, interest rate, foreign
currency and equity price risks. The risks on
financial assets are controlled in accordance with
the investment guidelines approved by the Finance
Committee under the College’s Board of Trustees.
This is achieved through diversified asset
allocation, rules governing the selection and credit
limits of investment counterparties with reference
to their credit ratings and financial strength. The
Finance Committee reviews investment strategies
and performance periodically to ensure that the
investment objectives and performance targets
are met. A sub-committee under the Finance
Committee meets regularly to manage and monitor
risk exposures associated with respective financial
assets to ensure that appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit Risk

The College’s exposure to credit risk is primarily
attributable to bank deposits and funds held by
the University. For funds held by the University,
the risk is managed by the University’s financial
management policies and practices.

The College places deposits with major financial
institutions with good credit ratings.

Credit risk associated with student loans and
accounts receivable is immaterial to the College
and all doubtful receivables are adequately
provided for.

Interest Rate Risk

The College is exposed to interest rate risk
primarily arising from its bank deposits due to
fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates.
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(c)

As at 30 June 2011, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in bank
deposit interest rate, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease the
College’s surplus for the year and net assets
at the balance sheet date by approximately
HK$36,000 (2010: HKS$NIl). This analysis has
been determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet
date and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for bank deposits in existence
at that date, with an assumption that fixed
term instruments which expire during the next
reporting period will be rolled over at the expiry
of that term at the new market rate.

Foreign Currency Risk

The functional currency of the College is
the Hong Kong dollar(*"HKD”). The College’s
monetary assets and liabilities are denominated
mainly in HKD while those denominated in
other currencies are not material. Though the
funds held by the University are also invested
in debt and equity securities and bank deposits
denominated in United States dollars, as
the HKD is pegged to the USD, the College
considers the risk of movements in exchange
rates between the HKD and the USD to be
insignificant. The College also has RMB
denominated time deposits which represented
2% of the total assets as at 30 June 2011. The
College considers the effect of the relevant
currency risk on the financial statements is not
material.
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(d)

(e)

Equity Price Risk

The College is exposed to equity price risk arising
from equity and unit trust investments listed in Hong
Kong, both classified as trading securities (see
note 9). The Finance Committee and investment
sub-committee of the College closely monitor the
risk of each of the investments to ensure their
suitability as investments for the College. The equity
price risk related to funds held by the University is
managed by professional managers through their
own risk management and assessment policies. The
investment managers’ investment strategies are
governed by the University’s investment and asset
allocation guidelines. The College also monitors the
risk exposure by reviewing periodic reports from the
custodians and investment managers. At balance
sheet date, if the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 5% higher/lower, with all
other variables held constant, the College’s surplus
for the year would have increased/decreased by
approximately HK$4,259,000 (2010: increased/
decreased by HK$492,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed equity securities.

Fair Values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at
30 June 2011 and 2010. Fair values of trading
securities are based on quoted bid prices at the
balance sheet date. Fair values of funds held by
the University are based on market value quoted
by external fund managers at the balance sheet
date.

The amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, require disclosures relating to fair value
measurements of financial instruments across three
levels of a “fair value hierarchy”. The fair value of
each financial instrument is categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant
to that fair value measurement. The levels are
defined as follow:

* Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data

* Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable
market data
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17.

18.

At 30 June 2011, the only financial instruments of the
College carried at fair value were equity securities of
HK$78,921,000 (2010: HK$1,046,000) listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. These instruments
fall into Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy described
above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to the not-for-profit nature of the College and the
composition of the Board of Trustees (being drawn
from private and public organisations), the College
has received from time to time donations from its
Board of Trustees members, key management and
companies controlled or significantly influenced by
them. The receipts of such donations have all been
individually reported to and approved in accordance
with the financial regulations of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong (the “University”) by the
Board of Trustees and the University Council.

All transactions relating to the purchases of
goods and services and capital projects involving
organisations in which a member of the Board of
Trustees may have an interest are conducted during
the normal course of business and in accordance
with the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not
yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2011 and
which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.

The College is in the process of making an
asscessment of what the impact of these amendments,
new standards and new interpretations which is
expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the College’s
results of operations and financial positions.
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THE TRUSTEES OF SHAW COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

FUND STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011
SCHEDULES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Schedule 1
COLLEGE FUND
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
2011 2010
Income
Interest and Investment Income 132 135
Miscellaneous Income 546 503
678 638
Expenditure
College Salaries 475 473
Visiting Scholars 122 116
General Education Activities 5 2
Physical Education Activities 42 61
Other College Activities and Miscellaenous 78 138
722 790
Deficit for the year (44) (152)
Net Deficit Transferred to Income and (44) (152)

Expenditure Statement




Capital Accumulated Donations

ENDOWMENT FUNDS
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Income Expenditure Capital

Schedule 2

Accumulated

at Income at  received during during at Income
1/7/2010  1/7/2010 during year  year year 30/6/2011 at 30/6/2011
Donation from Lee Shih Lun Tang 13,933 2,557 - 4,537 - 13,933 7,094
for College Development
Donation from Mr. Chu Nien Tsu 5 1 - - - 5 1
Donation from Mr. Hamen Fan 1,000 14 - 93 - 1,000 107
Donation from Dr. Tan Siu Lin - - 1,000 13 - 1,000 13
Donation from the Che Scientific 2,600 335 - 268 - 2,600 603
Co. (Hong Kong) Ltd
Donation from The Shaw 1,000 136 - 104 - 1,000 240
Foundation Hong Kong Limited
for College Development
Donation from The Shaw - - 65,531 8,670 - 65,531 8,670
Foundation Hong Kong Limited
for Scholarships and Bursaries
Dr. Yu Yui Chiu, Nelson - - 500 1 - 500 1
Endowment Fund for Professor
DC Lau Memorial Scholarships
T.K. Lam Charitable Foundation 50 9 - 5 - 50 14
Scholarship
18,588 3,052 67,031 13,691 - 85,619 16,743
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OTHER RESTRICTED FUNDS
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

STUDENT LOAN FUNDS BALANCES

Schedule 3

Balance Donations Income Loans Loans Balance
at Received  during repaid granted at
1/7/2010 during year ~ year during year during year 30/6/2011
College Student Loans 2,722 - 249 - - 2,971
College Student Travel Loans - 307 - 34 141 124 358
Exchange Programme
3,029 - 283 141 124 3,329
D. H. Chen Foundation Student Loans 69 - 7 18 10 84
The Shaw Foundation Hong Kong Limited 657 - 61 164 103 779
Student Loans of Shaw College
3,755 - 351 323 237 4,192
STUDENT LOANS OUTSTANDING
Balance Loans Loans Balance
at repaid granted at
1/7/2010 during year during year 30/6/2011
College Student Loans 135 - - 135
College Student Travel Loans - 332 141 124 315
Exchange Programme
467 141 124 450
D. H. Chen Foundation Student Loans 43 18 10 35
The Shaw Foundation Hong Kong Limited 527 164 103 466
Student Loans of Shaw College
1,037 323 237 951




OTHER RESTRICTED FUNDS
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Schedule 3 (Cond't)

Balance Donations Income/ Expenditure Balance
at received (Loss) during at
1/7/2010  during year during year year 30/6/2011
COLLEGE DEVELOPMENT FUND
Development of Computing Facilities 124 - 12 - 136
donated by Lam Kin Chung Morning
Sun Charity Fund
Donation for Amenity Facilities Renovation 77 - (3) 74 -
Donation for College Development Fund in 39 - 3 - 42
Memory of Late Mother of Prof. P.C. Ching
Donation for Multi-purpose Learning Centre - 47 3 - 50
Conversion Project
Donation for Shaw College Foundation Fund - 849 385 300 934
Donation from Association of Hong Kong 347 - 31 - 378
Quanzhou Charity Promotion Limited
Donation from Dr. Yu Yui Chiu, Nelson 476 - 44 - 520
Donation from LKCMSCF & HW Ho 7,416 3,000 786 400 10,802
Donation from Lui Wai Yu, Paddy 95 - 9 104
Donation from Miss Ng Yuen Ping, Jasmin 1,687 - 154 - 1,841
Donation from Mr. Fung Siu To, Clement 87 - 7 3 91
Donation from Mr. Koon Wing Yee 1,260 - 116 1,080 296
Donation from Mr. Lok Chi Hung 310 200 38 - 548
Donation from Mr. Pang Kam Chun 601 - 54 - 655
Donation from Mr. Patrick Huen 9,820 - 864 722 9,962
Donation from Mr. Chu Ka Lok, Peter 118 - 1 - 129
Donation from Mr. Xiao Zheng Yuan - 3,000 138 - 3,138
Donation from Mr. Yeung Kin Yeung, Jason 57 - 5 - 62
Donation from Ms. Belinda Lee 91 - 9 - 100
Donation from Ms. Cheng Kit Yin, Kelly 1,416 - 112 216 1,312
Donation from Ng Chi Ho 118 - 10 - 128
Donation from Pac-Fung Securities Ltd. 660 - 61 - 721
Lam Kin Chung Morning Sun Charity Fund 689 - 62 - 751
Renovation of Shaw College Fund 196 - 17 - 213
Shaw College Development Fund 1,023 90 81 481 713
Tolo Lyrics Cantonese Operatic Singing Concert 20 - 2 - 22
26,727 7,186 3,011 3,276 33,648
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OTHER RESTRICTED FUNDS
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Schedule 3 (Cond't)

Balance Donations Income/  Expenditure Balance
at received (Loss) during at
1/7/2010  during year during year year 30/6/2011
SCHOLARSHIP FUND
Choy Wei Oi Yuk Memorial Scholarship 67 - 6 4 69
Donation from Mr. Law Kwok Hung 201 - 13 125 89
Donation from Ms. Cheung Ching, Alice 501 - 38 320 219
Donation from Ms. Ly Xu Nu, Susan 493 - 38 213 318
Donation from Pharmacia-Upjohn Sweden 8 - 1 3 6
Donation from The Hong Kong Construction 99 - 8 69 38
Association Limited
Dr. Yu Yui Chiu, Nelson Scholarships 400 20 36 84 372
Dr. Tan Siu Lin Scholarships 65 - 5 10 60
Kwok Tsun Kee Scholarship Fund 2 - - 2 -
Lam Kin Chung Morning Sun Charity Fund 87 - 8 20 75
Scholarships
Lu Wen Yun, Jenny Scholarships 8 - - 5 3
Ma Sing Kuen Award - 4 - 4 -
Mr. & Mrs. Terence Lam Scholarship 10 - 1 5 6
Mr. & Mrs. Yu Ping Keung Memorial Scholarships 23 - - 23 -
Mr. Chuk Nogn Hong Scholarships - 100 3 75 28
Ms. Wong Wai Ling Scholarships 353 - 24 160 217
Peter Kung Scholarship 6 10 1 10 7
Professor Ambrose King Scholarship Fund 18 - 2 5 15
Professor Ching Pak Chung Scholarship Fund 11 - - 5 6
Shanghai Commercial Bank Scholarships 3 50 2 6 49
Shaw College Scholarship Fund 112 57 18 53 134
Shaw College Social Service Scholarships donated 42 - 4 18 28
by Prof. Ching Pak Chung
Shaw College Xiude Jiangxue Alumni Scholarship 7 6 1 9 5
TDK/SAE Scholarships 21 - 2 10 13
The Shaw Foundation Hong Kong Limited 1 - - - 1
Scholarship
Wing Hang Bank Scholarships 62 30 7 30 69
2,600 277 218 1,268 1,827




Schedule 3 (Cond't)

OTHER RESTRICTED FUNDS
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Balance  Donations Income/  Expenditure Balance
at received (Loss) during at
1/7/2010  during year during year year 30/6/2011

BURSARY FUND
Donation from George Chung 33 - 3 18 18
Donation from Hong Kong Shun Lung Yan 39 - 3 11 31
Chak Foundation Limited
Donation from Mrs. Helen Fong 1 - - - 1
Dr. Quo Wei Lee Bursaries to Needy Students - 65 - 65 -
Koo Shing Cheong Bursary Fund for Needy 471 - 43 - 514
Students
Mrs. Emily Fung Bursary 104 260 13 130 247
Mrs. Li Dak Sum Bursary 454 - 40 61 433
Ms. Pang Chung Kiu Bursary 186 - 15 37 164
Professor Deborah Davis Emergency Fund for 54 - 5 - 59
Needy Students
1,342 325 122 322 1,467
STUDENT DEVELOPMENT FUND
China Internship Programme 137 - 17 - 154
Donation for Rebuilding of Sichuan Project 275 - 20 53 242
Donation from Dr. Yu Yui Chiu, Nelson 100 - 9 - 109
Donation from Mr. Fung Siu To, Clement 57 400 20 57 420
Donation from Mr. Koon Wing Yee 545 - 50 - 595
Donation from Mr. Lee Woo Sing for Lee Woo 174 - 16 - 190
Sing Hong Kong History Resource Centre
Donation from Ms. Cheung Ching, Alice 501 - 45 148 398
Donation from Pac-Fung Securities Ltd 189 - 17 - 206
Donation from Sir Chow Chung Kong 20 - 2 - 22
Global Vision Award Programme - Australia 138 - 13 - 151
Global Vision Award Programme - China 56 - 9 4 61
Lee Woo Sing Hong Kong History Resource 600 390 55 503 542
Centre
Madam Man Education Fund - 300 2 95 207
Shanghai Fraternity Association - The Tsung 307 400 32 91 648
Zung Educational Development Fund
Shaw College Student Development Fund 235 47 25 3 304
3,334 1,537 332 954 4,249
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Schedule 3 (Cond't)

OTHER RESTRICTED FUNDS
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Balance  Donations Income/  Expenditure Balance
at received (Loss) during at
1/7/2010  during year during year year 30/6/2011

OTHERS
2nd International Conference on Traditional 1 - - - 1
Chinese Literature of Hong Kong
Shaw College Raffle Ticket - - 13 13 -
Shaw College Silver Jubilee Celebration - - 648 648 -
Activities
1 - 661 661 1
34,004 9,325 4,344 6,481 41,192

Total Restricted Funds Balance 148,697
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
iRvE L

TO THE COMMITTEE OF OVERSEERS FOR MORNINGSIDE COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEBPNABREERRED

We have audited the financial statements of Morningside
College (the “College”) set out on pages 2 to 16, which
comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 2011, the statement
of comprehensive income and expenditure, the statement of
changes in funds and the cash flow statement for the period from
2 January 2008 to 30 June 2011 and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

THE COMMITTEE OF OVERSEERS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Committee of Overseers for the College is responsible for
the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the
basis of preparation and accounting policies set out in note 1
to the financial statements and for such internal control as the
Committee of Overseers determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This reportis made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Committee
of Overseers, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements of the College for
the period from 2 January 2008 to 30 June 2011 have been
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the basis
of preparation and accounting policies as set out in note 1 to the
financial statements.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

10 November 2011
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

MORNINGSIDE COLLEGE
BEEPTIABREER

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 2% &

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2011
EE—F——FRA=+HLNEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L& 5T5I7R)

From 2 January 2008
to 30 June 2011

H=FFEN\F-B=H

M z-—g--%£xA=+A

Income
Interest and Investment Income
Donations and Benefactions
Matching Grants
Other Income

Expenditure
Institutional Support
Management and General
Student and General Education Services

Surplus and Total Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure for the Period

WA
B RREW =
EEEEYNE SR
Bo BN E
HAIIA

Xk
EFREHENARTES
BEEE—RER
BER—BHEEH

AR 2B K AN AR
EEWE

5,498
14,146
67,810

994
88,448

4,658

1,333

5,991

82,457

The notes set out on pages 6 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.
FIEREAREETREMERAMFEHRKR —E -



THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
MORNINGSIDE COLLEGE
HEPYAKEBREER

BALANCE SHEET EE& &R

AS AT 30 JUNE 2011

—®--FxA=+A

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB#FT5Im)

Note
FfsE 2011
Non-Current Asset ERBEE
Fixed Assets EE&EE 9 -
Current Asset RENEE
Funds Held by The Chinese University of ERREEPIAKE 10 82,457
Hong Kong EL| _—
82,457
Net Current Assets MENEEFE 82,457
NET ASSETS BEFHE 82,457
Restricted Funds HRES 7 59,538
Other Funds HithEE 8 22,919
TOTAL FUNDS =k np et

Approved and authorised for issue by the Committee of Overseers on 10 November 2011

REERREENR-F——F+— Bt A ERRBEZRIMBRE

Gerald Lok-chung Chan FRZ45=

Leonie Man-fung Ki ZC X Bl

Chairman, X[E
Committee of Overseers [REIE

Vice-Chairman, gl [E
Committee of Overseers PRES S

The notes set out on pages 6 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NHREANRETAEZMEREMBRR—85 -

82,457

MC3



MC4

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
MORNINGSIDE COLLEGE

BEEPIABREEMR

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS EE#8x
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2011
BE-F-—FAA=+tALEH

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LUEHTTT5I7R)

Restricted Other
Funds Funds
EREE HittEE
(Note 7) (Note 8)
(MisE 7) (Ffi5E 8)
Other
Restricted
Endowment Funds Hostel Total Operating Total
Funds H#hER Reserves Reserves Funds
BAER 2E BE#EE AR mupms EEEMHE
Balance at 2 January 2008 —EENFE—HA"HEEH - - - - -
Transfer from/(to) the HBE/(E)ZEKER 55,571 3,881 86 59,538 22,919 82,457
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Balance at 30 June 2011 —E——FxBA=1TH%&%HR 55,571 3,881 86 59,538 22,919 82,457

The notes set out on pages 6 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

MORNINGSIDE COLLEGE
EEPYABREER

CASH FLOW STATEMENT R ERER
FOR THE PERIOD 30 JUNE 2011

@E_F——FA=1+THLIE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LEHETTT5IR)

From 2 January 2008
to 30 June 2011
m=SF/\F-HA=H
E-¥——F5A=1+H

Operating Activities

Surplus for the Period

Adjustments for :
Depreciation
Net Realised and Unrealised Gains on Trading

and Other Securities

Interest income
Other interest and investment income

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities

Investing Activities
Payment for Purchase of Fixed Assets
Net Increase in Funds Held by The Chinese
University of Hong Kong
Interest and Investment Income Received
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents
- Beginning of Period

Cash and Cash Equivalents
- End of Period

wEES)
RHAR 2 ER 82,457
HAEIER:
e 12
BE REMEEIR AR ERES (1,833)
HE
FEUWMA (2,914)
HAthFl 2 Rt B = (751)
BEENEEIREFH 76,971
BEE
IBREEEE (12)
ERREEDPXRERIELZ (82,457)
by
BRFIEARERA 5,498
BRERBMAIREFHE (76,971)
RERIREEEMIBM -

RERIREEFEY - BHEER -

REMREEEY) - BREGR -

The notes set out on pages 6 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
MORNINGSIDE COLLEGE
HEEPXABRESEMR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR RMIGE

1.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of Morningside College
(the “College”) reflect the state of affairs of all
the funds of the College at 30 June 2011 and the
College’s results and cash flows for the period
from 2 January 2008 to 30 June 2011. These
financial statements have been prepared solely
for the information of, and use by the Committee
of Overseers.

These financial statements have been prepared
based on the accounting policies set out below
which are consistent with the recognition and
measurement criteria of the applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except otherwise stated in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenditure. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the College is set out below.

-_—
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2.
(a)

(b)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated in the balance sheet
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the assets to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Where it can be clearly
demonstrated that subsequent expenditure on
an asset has resulted in an increase in its future
economic benefit, such expenditure is capitalised
as an additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
fixed assets, less their estimated residual value,if
any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Computer Equipment 3 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

An impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
is more than its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an asset, or of the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, is
the greater of its fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use ,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the assets. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of a
fixed asset are determined as the difference
between the net proceeds and the carrying
amount of the fixed asset and are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Investments

Funds placed with investment managers in
the name of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong comprise cash deposits, bonds and
equity investments managed by independent
investment managers. These funds are stated
at fair value and any change in the fair value
of the funds is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
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(c) Income Recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the College and the
income and expenditure, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, income is recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure as follows:

(i) Interest Income

Interestincome is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

(i) Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure when the College
becomes entitled to the donations and
benefactions and it is probable that they
will be received.

(d) Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the
year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
foreign exchange rate ruling at the balance
sheet date. Exchange gains and losses on
foreign currency translation are dealt with
in the relevant fund accounts through the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

(e) Employee Benefits

(i) Salaries, paid annual leave, housing
allowances and the cost to the College of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the College.
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()

(ii)

(iif)

Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment of not less than two
years. The gratuity, together with the total
amount of the College’s contributions to a
particular retirement scheme, will add up to
10% or 15% of the appointee’s basic salary
drawn during the contract period.

Contribution to defined contribution retirement
plan are recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure as incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the College demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Related Parties
For the purposes of these financial statements,
a party is considered to be related to the College

if:
(i)

(ii)

(i)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the College or exercise significant influence
over the College in making financial and
operating policy decisions, or has joint control
over the College;

the College and the party are subject to
common control;

the party is an associate of the College or
a joint venture in which the College is a
venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management

(vi)

personnel of the College or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity
under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence
of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
College or of any entity that is a related party
of the College.

Close family members of an individual are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.
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3.

INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME  FIB R3S B
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L&#ETF5T5I5R)

From 2 January 2008
to 30 June 2011
H-F¥F/\F—H=H
E-¥—-—-F7XA=1+H

Net Realised and Unrealised Gains EBENHMESFERN
on Trading and Other Securities REIRW R BEE

Interest Income from Time Deposits and EHER R ERESAR
Debt Securities

Other Interest and Investment Income HittFI B A E W=

DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS fEHBAIERR
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LL##&FT5T)

1,833
2,914
751

5,498

From 2 January 2008
to 30 June 2011
m=SE\F—A=H
E-E-—-FxA=1+H

Scholarships, Bursaries and Prizes REBE - hBENIES
College and Student Development Fund ERABEERES

OTHER INCOME  HftBlRA
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAEH#&TFIT5T)

4,202
9,944

14,146

From 2 January 2008
to 30 June 2011
H=FS/\F-A=H
E-E-—-F1XA=1+H

Residence Fees and Communal Dining BEMNER
Miscellaneous Hith

945
49

994



6. EXPENDITURE %
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L#E#EFT5lm)

From 2 January 2008 to 30 June 2011
H=FS/\F-A=H
E-F-—FxA=1+H

Staff Costs Operating

and Benefits Expenses Depreciation Total
BT &
Ki@EFl EEMX hE |
Institutional Support (Note 6.1): ZFeERBIARTS (FiizE6.1)
Management and General EER—REIE 4,280 366 12 4,658
Student and General Education BEXR—&RHE . 1,333 i 1,333
Services =%

Total Expenditure for the period HARI#E3<H 4,280 1,699 12 5,991

6.1 Analysis of Operating Expenses on Institutional Support E[RHBIRFEHNEERZSH

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L{&#ETF5T5I7R)
From 2 January 2008
to 30 June 2011
H=-FFN\F—-HA=H
E-®8-—-fxA=1+H

Management and General BIEA—REE

Service fee IRI5E 196
Office expenses MAEZH 99
Advertising EEE 45
Training and development AR R 26
366

Student and General Education Services BYER—RHEEHE
Scholarship, Bursaries and Prizes RS, BB S RiEE 288
Residence fees and communal dining FEMER 994
Orientation Camp b 51
1,333
1,699
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7. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESTRICTED

8.

MC12

FUNDS

Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations received
by the College, usually with the stipulation from the
donors that the principal amounts should remain
intact in perpetuity or for a defined time period for
specific purposes.

Other Restricted Funds

Other Restricted Funds represent the unspent
balance of funds donated for the development of the
College. In addition, the Funds also comprise the
unspent balance of donations which support student
scholarships and bursaries.

Hostel Reserves

Hostel Reserves represent the unspent balance for
hostel operation.

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF OTHER FUNDS
Operating Reserves

Operating Reserves represent the unspent balance
of funds generated from college activities.
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9. FIXED ASSETS ElR&E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (Li&#F5T515R)

Computer
Equipment
i
Cost % |

At 2 January 2008 —EENF-H”HHER -
Additions during the period 1&hn 12
At 30 June 2011 ZE——FXRB=1THZ &R 12

Accumulated Depreciation HEHRE
At 2 January 2008 “EENF-BTH &R -
Charge for the period NEARGIREE 12
At 30 June 2011 “E——FB=1THZ#&EH 12

Net Book Value
at 30 June 2011

=
~AETHIREFE

10. FUNDS HELD BY THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG (“CUHK?” or the “University”)

FHREEPKEB( “XB” )RIEA

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LU#EHTTT515R)

2011

Funds Placed with Investment Managers UEBEPIABREETN 46,629
in the name of CUHK BREBMASIZIE

Marketable Investments in the name of UEEBEPIABREETN 35,828
CUHK BEEHFRECTIE

82,457
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11. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The College is a not-for-profit organisation and
forms part of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. The College aims to provide general
education and development activities for
University students. The College defines capital
as including various general and restricted funds
balances.

The various funds represent the unspent balance
of donations, grants, and income. These funds
are managed in accordance with the College’s
financial management procedures and the
relevant funding conditions, where applicable.

The College’s primary objective when managing
capital is to safeguard the College’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain a
strong financial base to support the development
of the College.

To achieve the above capital management
objective, the College follows guidelines on
investment and financial management as set
out in note 12.

The College is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirement.

+--&FrEE

FERZEEPIXABHET—EMS - BIEF
B - NERMIIRE BT LIRHERH
BAABNESE - XERNWESEFRAEAES
REMBEZAIRLEER -

FERNESKFEETEZARERER - BB
BWIA 5 BRI 5 EIEBUER N B RS R %
XIRE (WEA) REE -

FEREFEFINTEERRHIFERMEIE
f@MOIFHERRE -

FERBRUKERMHEEERES ( RME
12) - LUERI EEREENERE -

KERLAZHIRIMEREMNERRE



12.

(a)

(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The College’s financial instruments includes funds
held by the University, which is exposed to credit
and foreign currency.

Credit Risk

The College’s exposure to credit risk is primarily
attributable to funds held by the University. The
risk is managed by the University’s financial
management policies and practices.

Foreign Currency Risk

The functional currency of the College is the Hong
Kong dollar. The College’s monetary assets and
liabilities are denominated mainly in Hong Kong
dollars while those denominated in other currencies
are not material. Though the funds held by the
University are also invested in debt and equity
securities and bank deposits denominated in United
States dollars, management does not consider it
necessary to hedge the exposure on United States
dollars given that the Hong Kong dollar is currently
pegged to the United States dollar under the linked
exchange rate system adopted by the HKSAR
Government.
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13.

(ii)

14.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to the not-for-profit nature of the College
and the composition of the Committee of
Overseers (being drawn from private and public
organisations), the College has received from
time to time donations from its Committee of
Overseers members, key management and
companies controlled or significantly influenced
by them. The receipts of such donations have
all been individually reported to and approved
in accordance with the financial regulations
of The Chinese University of Hong Kong (the
“University”) by the University Council.

All transactions relating to the purchases
of goods and services and capital projects
involving organisations in which a member of the
Committee of Overseers may have an interest
are conducted during the normal course of
business and in accordance with the University’s
financial regulations and normal procurement
procedures.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the period ended
30 June 2011 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements.

The College isinthe process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments, new
standards and new interpretations which is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the College’s results of
operations and financial positions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
iRvE L

TO THE COMMITTEE OF OVERSEERS FOR S.H. HO COLLEGE

THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
BEEPXABEGERRED

We have audited the financial statements of S.H. Ho College (the
“College”) setouton pages 2 to 16, which comprise the balance
sheet as at 30 June 2011, the statement of comprehensive
income and expenditure, the statement of changes in funds and
the cash flow statement for the period from 2 January 2008 to
30 June 2011 and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

THE COMMITTEE OF OVERSEERS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Committee of Overseers for the College is responsible for
the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the
basis of preparation and accounting policies set out in note 1
to the financial statements and for such internal control as the
Committee of Overseers determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This reportis made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Committee of Overseers, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements of the College for
the period from 2 January 2008 to 30 June 2011 have been
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the basis
of preparation and accounting policies as set out in note 1 to the
financial statements.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

26 November 2011
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

S.H. HO COLLEGE

BEEPIKBEHEMR

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 2 E# % &
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

HE—_T-——FRA=1THLEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BT T5Im)

From 2 January 2008

to 30 June 2011

Note m=SSN\E—-A=AH
iz ZE-B-—-FXA=+1H

Income KA
Interest and Investment Income ISV e =1 3 20,333
Donations and Benefactions LY E P 4 103,130
Matching Grants Ec¥iwaBnE 188,078
Other Income HAtg A 5 2,359
313,900
Expenditure % 6
Institutional Support EPreHBNARTS
Management and General BEN—REIE 5,470
Student and General Education Services BEN—BHEERE 2,903
8,373
Surplus and Total Comprehensive AEARZ R N A HAR 305,527
Income and Expenditure for the Period EEWE -

The notes set out on pages 6 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.
SIEHRBARETBZMERRNHBRRE &M -
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
S.H. HO COLLEGE

HEPNXKEBEEER

BALANCE SHEET EE& &R

AS AT 30 JUNE 2011

—2—-—-FxA=1+H

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L{&#ETF5T55R)

Note
FisE 2011
Non-Current Asset EREEE
Fixed Assets ER&E 9 182
Current Assets RaEE
Funds Held by The Chinese University of ERREEPIARE 10 304,542
Hong Kong b
Prepayment FETRIE 803
305,345
Net Current Assets RENEEFE 305,345
NET ASSETS EEFHE 305,527
Restricted Funds ERES 7 304,438
Other Funds HithEE 8 1,089
TOTAL FUNDS BT 305,527

Approved and authorised for issue by the Committee of Overseers on 26 November 2011

EGERREINR-F——F+— AT+ Bt ERREFRILIABRR

Ho Tzu-leung fo]-F#¢ Chairman, X E

Committee of Overseers PRES S

Samuel S. M. Sun FH3Z Member, &

Committee of Overseers FTES S

The notes set out on pages 6 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.
FIEREANEETREMERSMFHRKR —E -
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
S.H. HO COLLEGE

BEEPIKBEHEMR

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS EE#8x
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2011
BE-F-——FA=+ALNE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LUEHTTT5I7R)

Restricted Other
Funds Funds
EHEE HihEE
(Note 7) (Note 8)
(PfE 7) (HIzE 8)
Other
Restricted
Capital Endowment Fynds  Hostel  Total Operating  Total
Funds Funds  gmmp Reserves Reserves  Funds

HEE: BrEE me HRHRE AE  LEREGE E36S

Balance at 2 January 2008 _—ZSNF—H”RH#ER

Transfer from/(to) the LEASHEEA N EES 182 278,409 25,778 69 304,438 1,089 305,527
Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Balance at 30 June 2011 88—
ANBA=1THBH#E 182 278,409 25,778 69 304,438 1,089 305,527

The notes set out on pages 6 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.
SIEREAREETAEZMERSNHIFEHRK—E -
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

S.H. HO COLLEGE
BEPIKBEEHER

CASH FLOW STATEMENT RERER
FOR THE PERIOD 30 JUNE 2011

@E_F——FA=1+THLIE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LEHETTT5IR)

From 2 January 2008

to 30 June 2011

H=-B¥/\F—-A=H
E-®——F5A=+AH

Operating Activities
Surplus for the Period
Adjustments for :
Depreciation
Net Realised and Unrealised Gains on Trading
and Other Securities
Interest income
Other interest and investment income
Operating Surplus before Changes in
Working Capital
Increase in Prepayment
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities

Investing Activities
Payment for Purchase of Fixed Assets
Net Increase in Funds Held by The Chinese
University of Hong Kong
Interest and Investment Income Received
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents
- Beginning of Period

Cash and Cash Equivalents
- End of Period

HEEE
REERER
REIEE:
e
EENHEMEEIRRARERN S
P
FBBA
HAthFl 2 R E W 5
EEESEMRIEERR

RITFRIEZIEM
RETBEEIREFH

REEE
BREEEE
EFRREEPIRBRELZ
1
ERFBRIZERA
REFE A IREFH

RELIREEEYZIEM

RENREEEY - BUGER

RENIREEFEY - BRER

The notes set out on pages 6 to 16 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NHREANRETAEZMEREMBRR—85 -

305,527

19
(11,473)

(8,819)
(41)

285,213

(803)

284,410

(201)
(304,542)

20,333

(284,410)
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG
S.H. HO COLLEGE

BEEPXABEEHER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR RMIGE

1.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of S.H. Ho College (the
“College”) reflect the state of affairs of all the funds
of the College at 30 June 2011 and the College’s
results and cash flows for the period from 2 January
2008 to 30 June 2011. These financial statements
have been prepared solely for the information of,
and use by the Committee of Overseers.

These financial statements have been prepared
based on the accounting policies set out below
which are consistent with the recognition and
measurement criteria of the applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except otherwise stated in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenditure. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the College is set out below.
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C))

(b)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated in the balance sheet
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the assets to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Where it can be clearly
demonstrated that subsequent expenditure on
an asset has resulted in an increase in its future
economic benefit, such expenditure is capitalised
as an additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
fixed assets, less their estimated residual value,if
any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Equipment, Furniture, 5 years
Fixtures and Fittings
Computer Equipment 3 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

An impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
is more than its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an asset, or of the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, is
the greater of its fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use ,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the assets. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of a
fixed asset are determined as the difference
between the net proceeds and the carrying
amount of the fixed asset and are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Investments

Funds placed with investment managers in
the name of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong comprise cash deposits, bonds and
equity investments managed by independent
investment managers. These funds are stated
at fair value and any change in the fair value
of the funds is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

|

)

~ EEEHBR

~ElREE
EEEEENTSERRHIELREBER IR
EERERA-

R EEERBAEREM—EZEEEREER
BEMEFANER - Hig - EFMEREEEEL
HRE hAE R AR T H ORI B ERIARIRAE
BN BEXHERERL - MIBZEEN
MIANm S o

TENERERMECEEN M AR EE MR
MERBEEGER)  LLUERIFEELRBEMGEHE
FERSEERSD - DIME ESREEBEME

EEEEMNMGETERFRT :
i ~ ZRELKRE A
= =f

BF - BENERFREMBEEGES)SESRE
& o
EFfEEENREENIREELEEMSRTKIERK
R - HIERISHRERREEBE - IREIREZ
WREBLEREE - MBRAERE - £REE
RUBEARRNREREHRERIRE - AR
NRERERMRERNVRETEMREENERER
5 A EE RO RNEERRE RENFE
g - AIEEEREBRESWOE -

Bl E & E 7 H Bk IR A E 4 2 T s Bl S
1B BZEEHERSNEFEAREERCZ=
RS - RUERWEZ B AZERZERA -

~BE

UEBPYARBREFRIREEM AT CMIEE
BRREEMR - B kRAES - BERIBELMUA
REENT  EAnBEEREANEEEIESE
EWZRA -

SH7



SH8

(c) Income Recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the College and the income
and expenditure, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, income is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as
follows:

(i) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

(i) Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure when the College
becomes entitled to the donations and
benefactions and it is probable that they
will be received.

(d) Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains
and losses on foreign currency translation are
dealt with in the relevant fund accounts through
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

(e) Employee Benefits

(iy  Salaries, paid annual leave, housing
allowances and the cost to the College of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the College.
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(c) Income Recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the College and the income
and expenditure, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, income is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure as
follows:

(i) InterestIncome

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

(i) Donations and Benefactions

Donations and Benefactions are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure when the College
becomes entitled to the donations and
benefactions and it is probable that they
will be received.

(d) Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains
and losses on foreign currency translation are
dealt with in the relevant fund accounts through
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

(e) Employee Benefits

(i) Salaries, paid annual leave, housing
allowances and the cost to the College of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the College.
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(ii)

(iif)

Contract-end gratuity is payable on completion
of a contract appointment of not less than two
years. The gratuity, together with the total
amount of the College’s contributions to a
particular retirement scheme, will add up to
10% or 15% of the appointee’s basic salary
drawn during the contract period.

Contribution to defined contribution retirement
plan are recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure as incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the College demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Related Parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the College

if:
(i)

(ii)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the College or exercise significant influence
over the College in making financial and
operating policy decisions, or has joint control
over the College;

the College and the party are subject to
common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the College or

(iv)

a joint venture in which the College is a

venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the College or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity
under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence
of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
College or of any entity that is a related party
of the College.

Close family members of an individual are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.
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3.

INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME IR B3R &Mz
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L& IT5R)

From 2 January 2008
to 30 June 2011
H-FF/\F—-HA=H
E-¥-—-FxA=1H

Net Realised and Unrealised Gains BEENHEMESERK
on Trading and Other Securities RERW RS

Interest Income from Time Deposits and EHTEREEBESIR
Debt Securities

Other Interest and Investment Income HAthF 2 Rt &=

DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS #EHERIER
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L#E#EFTolm)

11,473
8,819
4

20,333

From 2 January 2008
to 30 June 2011
H=-FF/\F—-HA=H
E-8-—-fxA=1+H

Scholarships, Bursaries and Prizes REE - PEERIZE
College and Student Development Fund ERKBEERER

OTHER INCOME  HftilA
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LU TTT517R)

28,009
75,121

103,130

From 2 January 2008
to 30 June 2011
m=SE\F—A=H
E-F-—-F1XA=1+H

Residence Fees and Communal Dining BEAER
Miscellaneous Hith

1,640
719

2,359



6. EXPENDITURE i
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L&H#FITHI5R)

From 2 January 2008 to 30 June 2011

m=SEN\F-HA=H
E=®-—FxA=+A

Staff Costs ~ Operating

and Benefits Expenses Depreciation Total
BT M

R tEF BERX hE #aEE

Institutional Support (Note 6.1): ZpzEEBIARTE (FiisE6.1)
Management and General BB —AEIE 4,655 796 19 5,470
Student and General Education Z4%X—&H¥E . 2,903 i 2,903

Services ]

Total Expenditure for the period HAR#7H 4,655 3,699 19 8,373

6.1 Analysis of Operating Expenses on Institutional Support ZEfRiHERIENEERZ 2

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L& HEFITolmR)

From 2 January 2008

to 30 June

201

m=SS/\F—A=H
E=S-——FXxA=+A

Management and General BER—REIE
Service fee IR#E
Office expenses WAEZH
Advertising BEE
Training and development 1R R B

Student and General Education Services BER—BHESE

Scholarship, Bursaries and Prizes REE, BB RIEE
Residence fees and communal dining FEMER
Orientation Camp R

Student activities BARE

796

2,903

3,699

276
288

73
159

545
1,839
274
245
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NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESTRICTED
FUNDS

Capital Funds

Capital Funds represent the balance of net book
value of the Fixed Assets which were financed
by funds with non-designated purpose.

Endowment Funds

Endowment Funds represent donations received
by the College, usually with the stipulation from
the donors that the principal amounts should
remain intact in perpetuity or for a defined time
period for specific purposes.

Other Restricted Funds

Other Restricted Funds represent the unspent
balance of funds donated for the development of
the College. In addition, the Funds also comprise
the unspent balance of donations which support
student scholarships and bursaries.

Hostel Reserves

Hostel Reserves represent the unspent balance
for hostel operation.

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF OTHER FUNDS

Operating Reserves

Operating Reserves represent the unspent
balance of funds generated from college
activities.
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10.

FIXED ASSETS ElR&E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LT IToImR)

Fixture Furniture  Computer Total
and Fittings Equipment
45 BHH G A
Cost R AE
At 2 January 2008 “EENFE-BTHRER - - - -
Additions during the period b=l 48 137 16 201
At 30 June 2011 g5 48 137 16 201
ANA=THZ#&ER
Accumulated Depreciation ZEHRE
At 2 January 2008 “BENF-BTH#E&R - - - -
Charge for the period AEARERE 2 10 7 19
—3——%
At 30 June 2011 ANBA=1THz &8k 2 10 7 19
Net Book Value —EF——5F 46 127 9 182
at 30 June 2011 ~A=1THIREFE
FUNDS HELD BY THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG (“CUHK?” or the “University”)
FHRBAEPKRE( “XB” )RIAE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (IA#&#TFIT517R)
2011
Funds Placed with Investment Managers UEBPIXARBEHRER 207,073
in the name of CUHK KEIB NS IE
Marketable Investments in the name of DEBPIARBEZERER 97,469
CUHK BERSKREZNE

304,542
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1.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The College is a not-for-profit organisation and
forms part of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. The College aims to provide general
education and development activities for
University students. The College defines capital
as including various general and restricted funds
balances.

The various funds represent the unspent balance
of donations, grants, and income. These funds
are managed in accordance with the College’s
financial management procedures and the
relevant funding conditions, where applicable.

The College’s primary objective when managing
capital is to safeguard the College’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain a
strong financial base to support the development
of the College.

To achieve the above capital management
objective, the College follows guidelines on
investment and financial management as set
out in note 12.

The College is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirement.

+--&FEH
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12.

(a)

(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The College’s financial instruments includes funds
held by the University, which is exposed to credit
and foreign currency.

Credit Risk

The College’s exposure to credit risk is primarily
attributable to funds held by the University. The
risk is managed by the University’s financial
management policies and practices.

Foreign Currency Risk

The functional currency of the College is the Hong
Kong dollar. The College’s monetary assets
and liabilities are denominated mainly in Hong
Kong dollars while those denominated in other
currencies are not material. Though the funds
held by the University are also invested in debt and
equity securities and bank deposits denominated
in United States dollars, management does not
consider it necessary to hedge the exposure on
United States dollars given that the Hong Kong
dollar is currently pegged to the United States
dollar under the linked exchange rate system
adopted by the HKSAR Government.
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13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i)

Due to the not-for-profit nature of the College and the
composition of the Committee of Overseers (being
drawn from private and public organisations), the
College has received from time to time donations
from its Committee of Overseers members,
key management and companies controlled or
significantly influenced by them. The receipts of
such donations have all been individually reported
to and approved in accordance with the financial
regulations of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong (the “University”) by the University Council.

(ii) All transactions relating to the purchases of

14.

goods and services and capital projects involving
organisations in which a member of the Committee
of Overseers may have an interest are conducted
during the normal course of business and
in accordance with the University’s financial
regulations and normal procurement procedures.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not
yet effective for the period ended 30 June 2011
and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.

The College isin the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments, new
standards and new interpretations which is
expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the College’s
results of operations and financial positions.
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THE CHINESE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG

S.H. HO COLLEGE

FUND STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2011
SCHEDULES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Schedule 1
ENDOWMENT FUNDS
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Donations /
Matching Capital at Balance at

Grants Income Expenditure  30/6/2011 30/6/2011

COLLEGE DEVELOPMENT FUND

College Development Fund 25,000 4,470 5,660 25,000 (1,190)
- From the Third Matching Grant

College Special Fund 30,054 1,888 - 30,054 1,888
- From the Fourth Matching Grant

The S.H. Ho Foundation Limited 25,000 4,230 - 25,000 4,230

- Supporting Student
Development Programmes
To Improve and Maintain Campus 36,770 618 - - 37,388
and Student Facilities - From
the Fifth Matching Grant
To Support Student Development 12,500 210 - - 12,710
Programmes - From the Fifth
Matching Grant
Trustees of Ho Sin-Hang Education 49,987 4,207 970 49,987 3,237
Fund for Establishment of College

179,311 15,623 6,630 130,041 58,263
SCHOLARSHIP FUND
College General Scholarship Fund 25,008 440 445 26,475 (1,472)
for Local and Non-local Students
College Non-local Students’ Scholarship 60,000 3,066 - 64,727 (1,661)
- From the Third Matching Grant
Wu Yee Sun Exchange 1,000 18 - 1,059 (41)
Scholarship Fund
Young Chi Wan Exchange 1,000 18 - 1,059 (41)
Scholarship Fund
87,008 3,542 445 93,320 (3,215)

266,319 19,165 7,075 223,361 55,048
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OTHER RESTRICTED FUNDS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Schedule 2

Donations /
Matching Balance at
Grants Income Expenditure  30/6/2011
SCHOLARSHIP FUND
Dr. and Madam Ho Tzu Leung Distinguished ) ) 100 (100)
Medical Student Scholarship i 20 20
Dr. and Madam Ho Tzu Leung Distinguished B
Nursing Student Scholarship
Dr. Tze Leung Ho Charitable Foundation for 500 85 B 585
Dr. T.L. Ho Scholarship for Outstanding
Medical Students 2010-2015
Dr. Tze Leung Ho Charitable Foundation for 500 . - 500
Dr. T.L. Ho Scholarship for Outstanding
Medical Students 2011-2016
Mainland Scholarships for S.H. Ho College 10,000 168 } 10,168
- From the Fifth Matching Grant
S.H. Ho College Exchange Scholarships - 50 50 )
(Inaugural Brown-CUHK Summer Institute)
S.H. Ho College Hostel Residence - 12 12 -
and Dining Bursaries
S.H. Ho College Matriculation Scholarships - 144 144 -
for Academic Excellence (Local)
S.H. Ho College Matriculation Scholarships - 60 60 -
for Academic Excellence (Mainland)
S.H. Ho College Matriculation Scholarships - 55 55 -
for Academic Excellence (Overseas)
S.H. Ho College Residence Scholarships for - 12 12 -
Early Admissions Scheme Students
S.H. Ho College Scholarships for Early - 86 86 B
Admissions Scheme Students
S.H. Ho College Scholarships for General - 6 6 -
Education (Induction Course)
S.H. Ho College Special Scholarship Fund 13,504 867 - 14,371
for Non-local Students - From the
Fourth Matching Grant
Student Exchange Scholarships 250 4 - 254
- From the Fifth Matching Grant
24,754 1,569 545 25,778
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